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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

E5ER

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wu Hongquan, aged 58, was appointed as an executive
director of the Company on 5 August 2015 and as the chairman of
the Board on 19 November 2015. He holds a bachelor’'s degree in
engineering from Xi'an Metallurgy and Architecture College (Fa%
JAEEEERT), and an executive master of business administration
degree from Northwestern Polytechnical University (FAit T3 K23,
Mr. Wu has received the qualification of senior engineer.

From 1981 to 1984, Mr. Wu served as an engineer in the technology
department of Shanxi Taiyuan Iron & Steel Company (LU 7aK R
#H727)). From 1984 to 2004, he successively served as an engineer,
deputy general manager and general manager in Xi'an Gas
Company (AL E A A A]). From 2004 to 2008, he served as deputy
general manager in Xi‘an Natural Gas Headquarters (FIZXAR
#@ /2 7F]). From 2006 to 2010, he served as director of Xi‘an Qinhua
Natural Gas Co., Limited (AZHEFE XA TG A A]). Since 2008, he
served as the chairman of Xi'an Communication Gas Corporation
Limited (AL MR R AR E LA F]) which is the holding company
of Xi'an Communication Energy (Hongkong) Co., Limited (FE%& 3
BELIR (B8) AR 72 A)), a substantial shareholder of the Company.
Since 2013, he served as the director of Xi'an Communication
Energy (Hongkong) Co., Limited (A& R BEER (F8) BRAR)).

Mr. Wu accumulated more than 30 years of experience in energy
and natural gas industry.

Mr. Huang Yilin, aged 47, was appointed as an executive director
of the Company on 23 January 2015. Mr. Huang graduated from
The Institute of Finance and Economics of Radio and Television (&
RE#EEFT) in 1992 and is engaged in management related works
since graduation. During the past years, Mr. Huang was the general
manager of Shantou Sanye Plastic Company Limited (ILZET =%
#BH B AT, Shenzhen China Investment Company Limited (&3
MHEE HR AR, Shenzhen Rihuisheng Group Company Limited
CRYIT HEREBE AR AR and Shenzhen Hongxun Investment
Company Limited (RINTIBEAIREFR A7) respectively and
has extensive theoretical knowledge and practical experience in
corporate modern management.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

E5ER

Mr. Chan Shi Yin, Keith, aged 55, was appointed as an executive
director of the Company on 23 January 2015 and as the members
of each of the nomination committee and remuneration committee
of the Company on 30 January 2015. He was also appointed
as (i) an authorized representative of the Company under The
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Authorised Representative”) and
(i) the authorized representative of the Company for the purpose
of accepting service of process and notices in Hong Kong (the
“Process Agent”) on 23 January 2015.

Mr. Chan has over 30 years of experience in finance, investment and
management and worked in different sectors such as insurance,
bullion and foreign exchange investment, project mergers and
acquisitions, corporate consulting services and fund investment.
Mr. Chan was the regional manager of American International
Assurance Company (Bermuda) Limited GER AR (BRE) B
fRA7R]) from 1984 to 1992 and senior vice president of Emperor
Financial Services Group (2% @5 E]) from 1992 to 1994. Since
then, he founded Top Gun Investment Limited, his self-financing
financial investment company, in 1994 and was the president
until 2013. Top Gun provides corporate planning and consulting
services to enterprises in listing, project investments (especially
in real estate and new energy industry), corporate finance and
solicitation of business. From 2013 to date, Mr. Chan founded TIEN
Credit Limited and is a director. This company provides different
financial credit services to institutional clients and corporate
shareholders, especially to listed corporate shareholders. Mr. Chan
is also the chairman of the board and executive director of Hong
Kong TIEN Group and the president and executive director of
China New Energy Group Holdings Limited since 2013, responsible
for fund management, including new energy industry fund and
securities investment fund. Moreover, Mr. Chan also sets up fund
management company and industrial merger and acquisition fund
in China.

PREFE AL » 555% * M2015F1A23REZR
FARRBMITES RN2015F1 A300 &
ZAERARRREZEZESCRTFMNEESRH
ZHRE o IR 2015F1 A23 B E R T A()
ERBARSMERARZES EMRAIET
ZARNRFEBAR(EEAR]D RHERE
BXAEEFXEMBAARRZRIERRE
(DEEBFEXHREAD -

PREEFERINFZ o/ RENEELR
ERERRE B2 RIERE - EHBH
B CEFEARBLESRESTRES -
BRELEB1984FE19NFREBRARR
(ARE)BRAAMERRELERB19924F
FIAFRRESHEETRERBEH -
Lh1& - BR1994FRIME B ESRMIRE QT
Top Gun Investment Limited i 42 & &
FE2013F AL - Top GunBE AT ERMHD
FREILFEARY  SESK T HER
B(LHEREHERFEIRITE)  tERE
KiBE - B2013F 25 - RAERIBFEXRE
EERABYHEES - ZRFABEREE
EPMAEERR - LEEIMEERR - &
HEBV B EERE - B2013F A - BRI
EMEERECREEEERERRNTE
ERPHERERAIRNITES  AEE
TER  BREFEREXESREFREE
Dok MAEENRPERIESERER
AIRERFEES -

Annual Report 2016 3 g



BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

E5ER

Ms. Li Yali, aged 43, was appointed as an executive director of
the Company on 16 November 2015. She graduated from Xi'an
University of Finance and Economics (FAZEEER) in 1992,
specialized in auditing and Shaanxi Institute of Finance and
Economics (BREEEIAXZ2ET) in 1993, specialized in accounting. In
2014, she has obtained a master of business administration degree
from Shaanxi University Master of Business Administration (BR7E
TEEER). Ms. Li also acquired the Accounting Professional
Qualification (&&TAIE ) and Certified Tax Manage Auditor
Qualification (G T B IR E ).

From 1997 to 2008, Ms. Li was the financial manager of the natural
gas program division and the CNG Company when working in Xi‘an
Natural Gas Headquarters (FAZZ RKARAR A F]). From 2008 to 2011,
Ms. Li successively served as the minister of finance department
of Xi’an Communication Gas Corporation Limited (FAZ R BIAR
BREEAF]). Since 2011, she served as the financial officer of
Xian Communication Gas Corporation Limited (A& B AER
FHEAF]) which is the holding company of Xi"an Communication
Energy (Hongkong) Co.,Limited (AL X BEEIR () BRAR), a
substantial shareholder of the Company. Since 2013, Ms. Li served
as the director of Xi'an Communication Energy (Hongkong) Co.,

Limited (AL XBELIR (BE) BRAA).

Ms. Li has extensive experience in the financial and investment
management among the energy and gas industry.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

E5ER

Mr. Zhang Zhensheng, aged 52, was appointed as an executive
director of the Company on 19 November 2015. He graduated
from Yan'an University, specialized in Chemistry, and obtained a
bachelor degree of science. In 2007, he graduated from Bulacan
State University, Philippines with a master degree of business
administration. Mr. Zhang is an engineer.

From 1989 to 2006, Mr. Zhang had successively served as the
deputy station manager, deputy officer, officer and other positions
in Yanchang Oilfield Administration Bureau ({EKHTEEE D). From
2006 to 2012, he worked as the senior officer, deputy director,
director and deputy general manager in the Yanchang Petroleum
Sale Company (E&AHEEHE A R]). From 2012 to 2015, he also
served as the general manager of Henan Yanchang Petroleum Sales
Co., Limited (A RERAMIHEERR AT, an indirect non-wholly
owned subsidiary of Yanchang Petroleum International Limited
(stock code: 346). Yanchang Petroleum International Limited is one
of the subsidiaries of Shanxi Yanchang Petroleum (Group) Co., Ltd.
(BREGE =AM (5E) AR EE R F]). Shanxi Yanchang Petroleum
(Group) Co., Ltd. is one of the ultimate beneficial owners of Xi‘an
Communication Energy (Hongkong) Co., Limited (Fa% XX iB8LIR
(&%) BBR2A7)), a substantial shareholder of the Company. Since
2015, Mr. Zhang has served as the deputy general manager of
Yanchang Petroleum Products Marketing Company ({& &4 H 5% =
EMmi&$872 7)) and served as the director of Xi'an Communication
Energy (Hongkong) Co., Limited. He is also currently the vice
chairman and general manager of Xi'an Communication Gas
Corporation Limited (ALZXBMRERE LA A]) which is the
holding company of Xi’an Communication Energy (Hongkong)
Co.,Limited (AL XBEER (F8) AR A),
shareholder of the Company.

a substantial

Mr. Zhang has over 20 years of experience in energy and natural
gas industry.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

E5ER

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Zhang Xianlin, aged 62, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company on 16 December 2008.
Mr. Zhang is also the chairman of Remuneration Committee, and
members of each of Audit Committee and Nomination Committee
of the Company. Currently, Mr. Zhang is the director of Chinese
Fund Investment Management Limited. Mr. Zhang graduated
from Huazhong University of Science and Technology with a
Master Degree in Business Administration and a Doctor Degree
in Management. He is a Chinese certified public accountant and
senior accountant. During the period from 1974 to 2007, he served
in the senior management positions in China National Aviation
Corporation (Group) Limited and the Civil Aviation Administration
of China. Besides, Mr. Zhang was a general manager in China
National Aviation Company Limited, an executive director in
Hong Kong Dragon Airlines Limited, the chairman of the Board of
Supervisors in Air Macau Company Limited and the chairman of
the Board of Supervisors in Air China Limited (stock code: 753), a
company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong.

Mr. Zhang was also a non-executive director of Cathy Pacific
Airways Limited (stock code: 293), a company listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong, during the period from August 1997 to
May 2005. Mr. Zhang has over 35 years of extensive experience in

enterprise finance and investment management.

Mr. Kwok Hong Yee, Jesse, aged 63, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company on 8
November 2011. Mr. Kwok is also the chairman of the nomination
committee, and members of each of the audit committee and
remuneration committee of the Company. Mr. Kwok is a solicitor
and notary public and is the sole proprietor of Messrs. Jesse H.Y.
Kwok & Co. with substantial previous working experiences acting
as solicitor of the Supreme Court of Hong Kong. He obtained his
degrees of Bachelor of Laws (LLB) and Master of Laws (LLM) in Civil
Laws from the Peking University in the People’s Republic of China.
Mr. Kwok was appointed as a Temporary Magistrate between
December 1994 and March 1995, and a Temporary Adjudicator of
the Small Claims Tribunal in July 1998. He is also a Panel Arbitrator.
He is also a member of the Law Society of Hong Kong, the Law
Society of United Kingdom, Singapore Academy of Law and is the
Counsel Member of the Hong Kong Society of Notaries.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

E5ER

Mr. Kwok was an independent non-executive director of China
Infrastructure Investment Limited (stock code: 600), a company
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, during the
period from August 2005 to August 2012.

Mr. Ho Chun Kit, Gregory, aged 38, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director, the chairman of the audit
committee, and members of each of the nomination committee
and remuneration committee of the Company on 9 February
2015. He holds a bachelor degree of accounting from the Monash
University of Australia and is a member of the Certified Public
Accountants of Australia. He has worked for several international
accounting and business advisory firms for more than 10 years
in providing accounting, auditing, financial, corporate advisory
and corporate restructuring services to listed companies. He
subsequently sets up his own corporate advisory firm.

Mr. Ho is also an executive director of China Oil Gangran Energy
Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 8132) since May 2013 and an
independent non-executive director of Sunrise (China) Technology
Group Limited (stock code: 8226) since April 2014. Mr. Ho has also
been an executive director of Seamless Green China (Holdings)
Limited (stock code: 8150) for the period from January 2012 to
April 2014. All these companies are listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market of the Stock Exchange.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company recognizes the importance of maintaining a high
standard of corporate governance with an aim to protect the
interest of shareholders.

The Company has adopted the Corporate Governance Code
contained in Appendix 14 (the “Code”) of the Listing Rules. During
the year ended 31 March 2016, the Company complied with all
applicable provisions of the Code except for the deviation as
stated below:

Code Provision A.1.3

Under Code provision A.1.3, notice of at least 14 days should
be given of a regular Board meeting to give all directors an
opportunity to attend. For all other Board meetings, reasonable
notice should be given. Due to the practical reasons, 14 days’
advanced notifications have not been given to all meetings of the
Board. Reasons have been given in the notifications in respect of
those meetings of the Board where it is not practical to give 14
days’ advanced notification. The Board will use its best endeavours
to give 14 days’ advanced notifications of Board meeting to the
extent practicable.

Code Provision A.2.1

Under Code provision A.2.1, the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer ("CEO") should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. The division of responsibilities
between the chairman and CEO of the Company should be clearly
established and set out in writing. During the year, the roles of
the chairman and the CEO of the Company were not separated
and were performed by Mr. Huang Yilin until his resignation as
Chairman of the Board on 19 November 2015. Subsequently, on 19
November 2015, the position of the chairman of the Company has
been taken up by Mr. Wu Hongquan, who also performs the role of
CEO.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Code Provision A.6.7

Under Code provision A.6.7, independent non-executive directors
and other non-executive directors, as equal board members,
should give the board and any committees on which they serve
the benefit of their skills, expertise and varied backgrounds and
qualifications through regular attendance and active participation.
They should also attend general meetings and develop a balanced
understanding of the views of shareholders. Due to other business
engagement, certain independent non-executive directors were
unable to attend the general meetings of the Company.

Code Provision C.2.5

Under Code provision C.2.5, the Company should have an internal
audit function. The Group conducted an annual review on the need
for setting up an internal audit department. Given the Group's
simple operating structure, it was decided that the Board would
be directly responsible for internal control of the Group and for
reviewing its effectiveness.

THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Company and oversees the Group's business strategic decisions
and performances.

Board Composition

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises five Executive
Directors, Mr. Wu Hongquan (Chairman), Mr. Huang Yilin, Mr. Chan
Shi Yin, Keith, Ms. Li Yali and Mr. Zhang Zhensheng; and three
Independent Non-executive Directors, Mr. Zhang Xianlin, Mr. Kwok
Hong Yee, Jesse and Mr. Ho Chun Kit, Gregory.

The Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company are
persons with academic and professional qualifications in the
fields of accounting and appropriate expertise. They provide
strong support towards the effective discharge of the duties and
responsibilities of the Board. Each Independent Non-executive
Director gives an annual confirmation of his independence to
the Company and the Company considers these directors to be
independent under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Board Diversity Policy

The Company has adopted the board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”) in 2013. The Company recognises and embraces
the benefits of having a diverse Board to enhance the quality
of its performance and as an essential element in maintaining
strategic objectives and sustainable development of the Group. All
appointment of the Board members will be based on merits against
objective criteria and with due regards for benefits and balance of
diversity on the Board. The Board diversity will be considered in
terms of, among other things, gender, age, professional experience
and qualifications and educational and cultural background, and
any other factors that the Nomination Committee may consider
relevant and applicable from time to time towards complementing
and extending the skills, know-how and experience of the Board.

Meetings

Details of Directors’ attendance records at the Board meetings and
general meetings of the Company during the year ended 31 March
2016 are set out below:
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Meetings Attended/Held

HERY,BITEERH
AGM SGM Board
BRREFAE REBIAE Ezg
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Wu Hongquan SRR E
(appointed on 5 August 2015) (R2015F8 A5 HELR(T) 11 0/0 14/15
Mr. Huang Yilin BERMESE 171 1/2 29/29
Mr. Chan Shi Yin, Keith REBELAE 71 2/2 28/29
Ms. Li Yali FRMEZL
(appointed on 16 November 2015) (R2015FE11 B16HERE) 0/0 0/0 6/7
Mr. Zhang Zhensheng RIRE RS
(appointed on 19 November 2015) (R2015F 11 A19B R ) 0/0 0/0 4/6
Mr. Lin Chengdong MR A
(resigned on 16 November 2015) (201511 A16H ML) 0/1 1/2 19/20
Mr. Mo Tsz Yuk HFEaE
(resigned on 16 November 2015) (R2015FE11 B16HEE) 1/1 2/2 20/20
Independent Non-executive Directors BIkHITES
Mr. Zhang Xianlin REMELE 01 1/2 23/29
Mr. Kwok Hong Yee, Jesse BERLE 11 1/2 18/29
Mr. Ho Chun Kit, Gregory Al S & 0/1 1/2 25/29
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Apart from regular board meetings of the year, the Board of
Directors will meet on other occasions when a board level
decision on a particular matter is required. The Directors
receive details of agenda items for decision and minutes of
committee meetings in advance of each board meeting. The
Board of Directors has reserved for its decision or consideration
matters covering corporate strategy, annual and interim results,
Directors’ appointment, succession planning, risk management,
major acquisitions, disposals and capital transactions, and other
significant operational and financial matters. Major corporate
matters that are specifically delegated by the Board of Directors
to the management include the preparation of annual and interim
accounts for board approval before public reporting, execution
of business strategies and initiatives adopted by the Board of
Directors, implementation of adequate systems of internal controls
and risk management procedures, and compliance with relevant
statutory requirements, rules and regulations.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Under Code provision A.2.1, the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer ("CEQ") of the Group should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual. The division
of responsibilities between the chairman and CEO of the Group
should be clearly established and set out in writing. The roles of
the chairman and the CEO of the Group was not separated and was
performed by the same individual, Mr. Huang Yilin acted as both
the chairman and CEO from 30 January 2015 to 19 November 2015.
Subsequently, on 19 November 2015, the position of the chairman
of the Company has been taken up by Mr. Wu Hongquan, who also
performs the role of CEO.

The Directors meet regularly to consider major matters affecting
the operations of the Group. As such, the Directors consider that
this structure will not impair the balance of power and authority
between the Directors and the management of Group and believes
that this structure will enable the Group to make and implement
decisions promptly and efficiently.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

All the Independent Non-executive Directors are appointed
for terms of three years. In addition, all Directors are subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at the Annual General
Meeting pursuant to the Bye-laws of the Company.

According to the Company’s Bye-laws, any Director appointed
by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office until the first
general meeting of Members after his appointment and be subject
to re-election at such meeting; and any Director appointed by the
Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only
until the next following Annual General Meeting of the Company
and shall then be eligible for re-election.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors are continually encouraged to update themselves
with legal and regulatory developments, and the business and
market changes to facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities.

All Directors are requested to provide the Company with their
respective training records pursuant to the Code.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

During the year, the Directors have confirmed their participation
in appropriate continuous professional development activities by
ways of attending seminars or self-reading set out below:

FAN - EFEHER UTARSERALEH
SEdETHEMRNEERESEERE
B :

Attending
seminars Self-reading

HEMNE BTBIE

Executive Directors BiITES
Mr. Wu Hongquan REERSE

(appointed on 5 August 2015) (201558 ASAEZ ) 4 v
Mr. Huang Yilin mRMEE = v
Mr. Chan Shi Yin, Keith BREFB L - v
Ms. Li Yali FoAE

(appointed on 16 November 2015) (FR2015F 11 A16BEZ ) v v
Mr. Zhang Zhensheng SRR A ST

(appointed on 19 November 2015) (R2015F 1M A19REEE) v v
Mr. Lin Chengdong MR E N/A N/A

(resigned on 16 November 2015) (7201511 A16BBHE) A4 F -3 A
Mr. Mo Tsz Yuk RFERT4E N/A N/A

(resigned on 16 November 2015) (FA2015%11 B16H & T) T iE A TiE A
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHITES
Mr. Zhang Xianlin REMELE v v
Mr. Kwok Hong Yee, Jesse BERLE 4 v
Mr. Ho Chun Kit, Gregory AIEAEEE v v

DIRECTORS" SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Having made specific
enquiry of all directors, Directors confirmed that they had complied
with the required standard set out in the Model Code throughout
the year ended 31 March 2016.

EZETIBESFRS

AR R B LR BIM 1058 2 A
FABEBETBEER S 2 EBEFR (128
Al - @ASREEEHARSHEL  EF
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee of the Company currently comprises
three Independent Non-executive Directors and one Executive
Director, and is currently chaired by Mr. Kwok Hong Yee,
Jesse. Its primary duties include reviewing the structure, size
and composition of the Board, identifying individuals suitably
qualified to become Board members, assessing the independence
of Independent Non-executive Directors and making
recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating to the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors, and reviewing the
Board Diversity Policy etc.

The Nomination Committee held three (3) meetings during the
year ended 31 March 2016. The attendance of each member of the
Nomination Committee at the meetings during the year is set out
below:

RHEEE
AARIREBEECHIBB I IFRNTEE R —
FHTESHERK  BRNRPERLEEEE
f REZEBEVIEFEBERNESS
2o RERAK WEeAEABERIK
BREEEREZALT  FEBIUIERTES
2B REAREFTEAESTZHEBE
ERNESSRHEEBERRRIESSNE
Z AL BUR ©

REZE2016F3A31H Jtiﬁ T—E:
BERIT=ZQ)XEHE °

FE /;S%u“jfuﬂﬁfzﬁDT-

Meetings
COMMITTEE MEMBERS Attended/Held
ZEERE BEHE 2T
Mr. Kwok Hong Yee, Jesse (Chairman) SEELE(EE) 3/3
Mr. Zhang Xianlin REMELE 3/3
Mr. Ho Chun Kit, Gregory e se £ 3/3
Mr. Chan Shi Yin, Keith REFELELE 2/3

During the year, the Nomination Committee has reviewed the
structure and composition of the Board; reviewed the Company’s
Board Diversity Policy; discussed the causal vacancies for the
resigned Directors; assessed the independence of Independent
Non-executive Directors and made recommendations on the
appointment and re-appointment of Directors.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee of the Company currently comprises
three Independent Non-executive Directors and one Executive
Director, and is currently chaired by Mr. Zhang Xianlin. Its primary
duties include making recommendations to the Board on the
Company'’s policy and structure for all remuneration of Directors
and senior management, reviewing the remuneration package and
recommending salaries, bonuses, including the incentive awards
for Executive Directors and senior management, and ensuring no
Director or any of his associates is involved in deciding his own
remuneration etc.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Remuneration Committee held three (3) meetings during the

FTMEB@REZ2016F3A31RIEEER

year ended 31 March 2016. The attendance of each member of the 55%{7 RBRedE  SHWNEZESKHERNEKF

Remuneration Committee at the meetings during the year is set out EexztEDENT

below:

Meetings

COMMITTEE MEMBERS Attended/Held
EZEEHE SRHE BT
Mr. Zhang Xianlin (Chairman) REMEE(EE) 3/3
Mr. Kwok Hong Yee, Jesse PEHE KL 3/3
Mr. Ho Chun Kit, Gregory B 4 3/3
Mr. Chan Shi Yin, Keith PREFB L 2/3

During the year, the Remuneration Committee has considered FR > HNEESLLXELENELE DT

and reviewed the existing terms of the appointment letters of the
Directors with reference to the factors including salaries paid by
comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities
of the Directors, employment conditions elsewhere in the
Company and desirability of performance-based remuneration.
The Remuneration Committee considers that the existing terms
of the appointment letters of the Executive and Independent
Non-executive Directors are fair and reasonable. Details of the
remuneration policy of the Directors are set out on page 49 of this
report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee of the Company currently comprises three
Independent Non-executive Directors, and is currently chaired
by Mr. Ho Chun Kit, Gregory. Its primary duties are to review and
supervise the financial reporting system, risk management and
internal control system of the Group etc.

The Audit Committee held two (2) meetings during the year ended
31 March 2016. The attendance of each member of the Audit
Committee at the meetings during the year is set out below:

ixffz#He BEFHHZEREEE K
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Gk - HFNEZBERR - %ﬂﬁ&é MIRHTT
BTN BEBERFBAFEE BF 2

FR RS BRI S H49E -
w=2LRBg

/

ARRZEREZEGRKBIEIBBIULIFNT
B BATHRMEREEETERE BRZ
BesIERAEREHNMREBARE MK
Rz - BREERAREEGES -

EZEEENEHE2016FE3A3BIEEER
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Meetings
COMMITTEE MEMBERS Attended/Held
ZE8HE BEHE R
Mr. Ho Chun Kit, Gregory (Chairman) LA (EE) 2/2
Mr. Zhang Xianlin REMELE 2/2
Mr. Kwok Hong Yee, Jesse HERTE 2/2
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

During the year, the Audit Committee has reviewed with
management the accounting standards and practices adopted
by the Group, and discussed auditing, internal control and
financial reporting matters including the Group's audited financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2015 and
the unaudited financial statements for the six months ended 30
September 2015 respectively, In June 2016, the Audit Committee
reviewed the Group’s audited financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2016 prior to recommending them to the Board for
approval.

AUDITORS" REMUNERATION

During the year ended 31 March 2016 under review, the
remuneration paid to the Company’s auditors, Messrs. HLB
Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited, is set out as follows:

Services rendered

FR BRZESCHEREERMASEER
W et ERIRED - WHEZ - NEPEE
FOHBEREE (D HIBEAEEHE2015
FIANHBUEFEZ BRI BFREREBE
201559 H30R LA R 2 RS FEIZ Y B
RVEITHR - R2016F67 BEREEGE
BMAEBEHZE2016F3IANBUHEFEEZRKE
M EHREE  TRESSRIEZHES
=41 o

ZEET N &

RETEIE & E2016FE3A3MBHIEEER -
ENARRISEBMEESHMEBMERA
AlZBEFHH T ¢

Fees paid/payable

Frig AR 7% e ENEH
Audit services ZEURTS 960
Non-Audit services (Note) IEZEARTS (K aE) 309

Note: The Audit Committee is of the view that the auditors independence was not
affected by the provision of these non-audit related services during the year
ended 31 March 2016.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility to prepare financial
statements for each financial year which give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Group. In preparing the accounts
for the year ended 31 March 2016, the Directors have adopted
suitable accounting policies which are pertinent to its operations
and relevant to the financial statements, made judgements and
estimates that are prudent and reasonable, and have prepared the
accounts on the going concern basis.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board is responsible for overseeing the Company’s risk
management and internal control systems.

To facilitate the effectiveness and efficiency of operations and to
ensure compliance with relevant laws and regulations, the Group
emphasizes on the importance of a sound risk management and
internal control systems which are also indispensable for mitigating
the Group's risk exposures. The Group's risk management and
internal control systems are designed to provide reasonable, but
not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss and
to manage and eliminate risks of failure in operational systems and
fulfillment of the business objectives.

The risk management and internal control system are reviewed
on an ongoing basis by the Board in order to make it practical
and effective in providing reasonable assurance in relation to
protection of material assets and identification of business risks.
The Board is satisfied that, based on information furnished to it and
on its own observations, the present risk management and internal
controls of the Group are satisfactory.

The Group is committed to the identification, monitoring and
management of risks associated with its business activities and
has implemented a practical and effective control system which
includes a defined management structure with limits of authority,
a sound cash management system and periodic review of the
Group's performance by the Audit Committee and the Board.

The Board has conducted review of the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control system are of the view that such
systems adopted for the year ended 31 March 2016 are sound
and are effective to safeguard the interests of the shareholders’
investment and the Company’s assets.

COMPANY SECRETARY'S TRAINING

During the year ended 31 March 2016, Mr. Law Ho Ming has
received no less than fifteen (15) hours of relevant professional
training to refresh his skills and knowledge.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Convening a Special General Meeting

Shareholders holding not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital
of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
can send a written request to the Board or the Secretary of the
Company to request a Special General Meeting (“SGM").

The written request should be deposited at the principal place
of business of the Company at Unit 4312, 43/F., COSCO Tower,
183 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong, for the attention of the
Company Secretary.

The written request must state the resolution(s), accompanied by a
statement of the matters referred in the proposed resolution(s) and
signed by the shareholders concerned.

The request will be verified with the Company’s share registrar and
upon its confirmation that the request is proper and in order, the
Company will convene a SGM within twenty-one (21) days of the
deposit of the request. The actual SGM shall be held within two (2)
months after the deposit of the written request.

Making Proposals at Shareholders’ Meeting
Shareholder can send a written request to the Board or the
Secretary of the Company to make proposal(s) at a shareholders’

meeting.

The written request must state the resolution(s), accompanied by a
statement of the matters referred in the proposed resolution(s) and
signed by the shareholder concerned.

The written request should be deposited with the Company at its
principal place of business at Unit 4312, 43/F., COSCO Tower, 183
Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong, at least fourteen (14) clear days
before the date of the shareholders’ meeting.

The request will be verified with the Company’s share registrar
and upon its confirmation that the request is proper and in order,
the Company Secretary will ask the Board to include the proposed
resolution(s) in the agenda for the shareholders’ meeting.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Procedures for nomination of Directors for election
The procedures for shareholders to propose a person for
election as a Director are available on the Company's website at
http://www.asiaresources899.com.

AMENDMENT TO CONSTITUTIONAL
DOCUMENT

During the year ended 31 March 2016, there were no significant
changes to the Company’s constitutional document.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company discloses relevant information to shareholders
through the Company’s annual report and financial statements, the
interim report, as well as the Annual General Meeting ("AGM").
The AGM allows the directors to meet and communicate with
shareholders.

To further promote effective communication, the corporate website
is maintained to disseminate Company announcements and other
relevant financial and non-financial information electronically on a
timely basis.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT, MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION

AND ANALYSIS
TERERERE R RO

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Asia Resources Holdings Limited
(the "Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group"),
| present herewith to the shareholders of the Group the annual
report and audited consolidated results of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2016.

RESULTS OF THE YEAR

In the fiscal year ended 31 March 2016, the consolidated revenue,
net, contributed from continuing operations (mainly money
lending and securities) of the Group amounted to approximately
HK$4,454,000 (2015 net negative revenue: HK$3,560,000).
Accordingly, the Group’s continuing operations reported a gross
profit of approximately HK$4,354,000 for the year (2015 gross loss:
HK$3,783,000).

The Group recorded a loss attributable to the owners of the
Company amounted to approximately HK$76,205,000 for the year
ended 31 March 2016 (2015: HK$157,152,000). The decrease in
loss was mainly due to (i) the decrease in provision for impairment
on intangible asset (the exclusive right owned by PT. Dampar
Golden International (“PT. Dampar”), an indirect non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Group, for the year ended 31 March
2016 as compared to the provision for impairment made in the
corresponding year ended 31 March 2015; and (ii) the profit
recorded from the discontinued operations of Pharmaceutical
Business in Siping.

Basic and diluted loss per share from continuing and discontinued
operations for the year ended 31 March 2016 was HK$0.018 (2015:
basic and diluted loss per share, from continuing and discontinued
operations of HK$0.084).
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT, MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION

AND ANALYSIS
TEREEEEEN MO

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the management
reshuffled, scaled down and disposed non-performing business
units with continuous loss to improve the Group's structural
cost effectiveness. As such, the Group expanded its property
investment business; developed the money lending business; and
trimmed those unsatisfactory business units, including the disposal
of the pharmaceutical business in Siping on 12 June 2015, and the
cessation of the patisserie coffee shop and the indoor recreation
playground business in Hangzhou in August and November 2015
respectively.

Apart from streamlining the operation of its existing businesses,
the Group is actively exploring opportunities to achieve further
business diversification, with an aim to broaden its revenue stream

and earning base.

Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group is committed to the long term sustainability of
the environment and communities in which it operates. As a
responsible corporation, the Group has complied with all relevant
laws and regulations regarding environmental protection, health
and safety, workplace conditions and employment and has
adopted effective measures to achieve efficient use of resources,
energy saving and waste reduction.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

During the year ended 31 March 2016, there was no incident of
significant non-compliance to any relevant laws and regulations in
all material aspects for the Group.

Relationship with Suppliers, Customers and other

Stakeholders

During the year ended 31 March 2016, there were no material and
significant dispute between the Group and its key stakeholders,
including employees, customers, suppliers, banks, regulators
and Shareholders. The Group will continue to ensure effective
communication and maintain good relationship with each of its key
stakeholders.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT, MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION

AND ANALYSIS
TEREEEEEN MO

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Pharmaceutical Operation Business (Discontinued

Operations)

On 15 April 2015, the Group announced the disposal of the
Pharmaceutical Operation business, which was subsequently
completed on 12 June 2015. The financial results of the
Pharmaceutical Operation business disposed for the period from
1 April 2015 to 12 June 2015 have been presented as discontinued
operations.

The disposal not only significantly curtailed the burden of the
operating loss of Pharmaceutical Operation business, but had also
brought in approximately HK$36,000,000 net cash to the Group
enhancing our balance sheet and cash flow status further.

Property Business

Dalian Properties

Since completion of the acquisition of Dalian Properties on 13 June
2014 through our wholly owned China subsidiary, Dalian Chuanghe
Landmark Co. Ltd.* (KEEIFME B R A F]) (“Dalian Chuanghe”),
which continues engaging in the development of urban land for
residential purpose in the real estate sector and as planned to
develop 55 buildings on the said land with 21 buildings in the first
phase (“Phase 1) and 34 buildings in the second phase (“Phase I1").

Currently, Phase | is still under development. The name of the
property under development is “Xin Tian Jia Yuan* (:{H1{E8)",
located at Ziteng West Street, Dalian Economic and Technological
Development Zone* (KELL ERMTFAZER). Pre-sale permit for
Phase | with a saleable area of approximately 42,540 square metres
had been obtained in April 2014. As at 31 March 2016, Dalian
Chuanghe had completed about 98% of the construction of Phase
I. The Phase | development was expected to be completed in
November 2016. Up to 31 March 2016, Dalian Chuanghe achieved
contracted sales of approximately RMB85,169,000 (of which pre-
sale deposits of approximately RMB81,299,000 were received), and
contracted gross saleable area of approximately 13,980 square
metres.

Regarding Phase Il, which was planned to construct with a total of
34 buildings with estimated saleable area of 69,000 square metres,
construction work was expected to be commenced and completed
in 2017 and around 2019 respectively.
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Accordingly, the Dalian operation segment recorded a loss of
approximately HK$5,572,000 for the year ended 31 March 2016
(2015: HK$8,503,000). The loss was mainly comprised of operation
and administrative expenses.

Yantian Properties

(A) The Group entered into an agreement on 24 June 2014 and

a supplemental agreement on 15 April 2015 to purchase the
property at a consideration of approximately RMB100,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$126,000,000).

The property to be acquired represents 46 units of Jinma
Creative Industry Park (formerly known as “Kingma Information
Logistic Park”) which is situated at Depot No. 2, 3rd Road and
Shenyan Road Intersect, Inner Logistic Park, Yantian Bonded
Area, Yantian District, Shenzhen City, the PRC* (F BRI
BE M = B R R YR E R = 5% B B R B B A BB AR 5% HE5)
("Jinma Creative Industry Park”) with a total saleable area of
approximately 8,699 square metres.

As at 31 March 2016, the Group had obtained physical
possession of the property and totally paid conditionally
refundable deposit of RMB?0,000,000 in accordance with the
terms of payment stated in the sales and purchase agreement.
The remaining balance of the consideration of approximately
RMB10,000,000 shall be paid within 30 days from the date on
which the relevant building ownership certificates have been
issued in favour of the purchaser.

On 15 May 2015, the Group entered into another agreement,
to further purchase the property at a consideration of
approximately RMB65,107,800 (equivalent to approximately
HK$81,384,750).

The property to be acquired represents 30 units of
Jinma Creative Industry Park with a total saleable area of
approximately 5,400 square metres.

As at 31 March 2016, the Group had obtained physical
possession of the property and totally paid conditionally
refundable deposit of RMB60,000,000 in accordance with the
terms of payment stated in the sales and purchase agreement.
The remaining balance of the consideration of approximately
RMBS5,107,800 shall be paid within 30 days from the date on
which the property has been registered under the name of the
purchaser.
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On 10 November 2015, the Group entered into a
third agreement, to further purchase the property at a
consideration of approximately RMB101,628,955 (equivalent to
approximately HK$121,954,746).

The property to be acquired, being a single-storey reinforced
concrete building designated for office and storage uses,
is the Block 2 of Jinma Creative Industry Park with a total
saleable area of approximately 4,957 square metres.

As at 31 March 2016, the Group had totally paid conditionally
refundable deposit of RMB100,000,000 in accordance with the
terms of payment stated in the sales and purchase agreement.
The remaining balance of the consideration of approximately
RMB1,628,955 shall be paid within 30 days from the date on
which the property has been registered under the name of the
purchaser. Delivery of the physical possession of the property
shall take place on or before 30 September 2016 (or such other
date as may be agreed by the purchaser and vendor).

Zengcheng Properties

(A)

On 15 April 2015, the Group entered into an agreement to
purchase the property at a consideration of approximately
RMB130,150,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$162,688,000).

The property to be acquired comprises a portion of two four-
storey (excluding of a single-storey basement) commercial
buildings in a commercial and residential development project
with a total gross floor area of 8,562.52 square metres located
at Jinma Waterfront Square, Donghu Lakeside, Zengjiang
Street, Zengcheng City, Guangdong Province, the PRC
("Jinma Waterfront Square”).

As at 31 March 2016, the Group had totally paid conditionally
refundable deposit of RMB120,000,000 in accordance with the
terms of payment stated in the sales and purchase agreement.
The remaining balance of the consideration of approximately
RMB10,150,000 shall be paid within 60 days after the date on
which all conditions for the delivery of physical possession of
the property having been fulfilled and the relevant procedures
for such delivery are completed.
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(B)

On 5 June 2015, the Group entered into a second agreement,
to further purchase the property at a consideration of
approximately RMB75,598,740 (equivalent to approximately
HK$94,498,425).

The property to be acquired comprises a portion of two four-
storey (excluding of a single-storey basement) commercial
buildings in a commercial and residential development project
with a gross floor of approximately 4,200 square meters
located at Jinma Waterfront Square.

As at 31 March 2016, the Group had totally paid conditionally
refundable deposit of RMB74,000,000 in accordance with the
terms of payment stated in the sales and purchase agreement.
The remaining balance of the consideration of approximately
RMB1,598,740 shall be paid within 60 days after the date on
which all conditions for the delivery of physical possession of
the property having been fulfilled and the relevant procedures
for such delivery are completed.

On 27 August 2015, the Group entered into a third agreement,
to further purchase the property at a consideration of
approximately RMB80,760,876 (equivalent to approximately
HK$100,951,095).

The property to be acquired comprises 20 units of commercial
property in a shopping arcade and 24 units of residential
property in three residential buildings in a commercial and
residential development project known as Jinma Donghu
Residence located at Zengjiang Street, Zengcheng City,
Guangdong Province, the PRC.

As at 31 March 2016, the Group had paid conditionally
refundable deposit of RMB55,000,000 and the remaining
refundable deposit of RMB25,000,000 had been paid
subsequently in accordance with the terms of payment stated
in the sales and purchase agreement. The final payment of
the consideration of approximately RMB760,876 shall be paid
within 60 days after the date on which all conditions for the
delivery of physical possession of the property having been
fulfilled and the relevant procedures for such delivery are
completed.
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Hangzhou Properties

Since the opening of the indoor recreation playground and
patisserie coffee shop at the two properties in Hangzhou in 2014,
the performance of these two businesses was far from satisfactory.

The management after taking into consideration of the weak
performance of the two businesses; the relative small size of the
properties and the administration cost involved, the management
had ceased the patisserie coffee shop and the indoor recreation
playground businesses in August and November 2015 respectively.

It is the intention of the Group to dispose of the Hangzhou
properties although the Group would still consider leasing them
out. The Hangzhou Properties business segment had recorded
operational loss of approximately HK$1,700,000 for the year ended
31 March 2016 (2015: HK$2,900,000).

Iron Ore Mining Operation

While facing the Ministerial Regulation No.1/2014 promulgated
by the Indonesian Government regarding the export restriction of
iron sand still in force, the management had decided to stem the
export of the iron sand trading business of PT. Dampar Golden
International (an indirect 60% non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Group) ("PT. Dampar”) in Indonesia during the year ended 31
March 2016 as the purity level of the iron sand did not meet the
minimum requirement under the Indonesia mining regulation.
Coupled with the continuous low iron ore prices curtailed the
profit margin of the iron mining business, the management had
also postponed the setting up of the sponge iron factory, and
ceased all activities at the mine site in order to reduce overheads
and machinery rental charges. All processing plants had been
dismantled and removed to warehouse storage. Meanwhile, the
Group continues to maintain a minimum skeleton crew to maintain
the safe custody of the plant and machineries and basic functions of
the administration.

As a result of the above mentioned issues, a further impairment of
the remaining carrying value of intangible asset (the exclusive right
owned by PT. Dampar) totalling HK$26,557,000 was recognized in
accordance with the valuation report of an Independent Valuer.
Under the circumstances, the Company is considering disposing
the Indonesia mining business to potential risk-taking investors
who are interested in the mine so that the management can focus
their effort on the other business units.
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For the year under review, this segment recorded a loss of
approximately HK$2,810,000 (2015: HK$6,409,000).

Money Lending Business

On 17 July 2015, the Board announced the Group has, through
its wholly-owned subsidiary, Asia Financial Holdings (Hong
Kong) Limited (“Asia Financial”) obtained a money lenders
licence in Hong Kong on 9 July 2015. Under the Money Lenders
Ordinance (Chapter 163 of Laws of Hong Kong), Asia Financial has
commenced the money lending business on 9 September 2015.
The Money Lending Business recorded a profit of approximately
HK$3,248,000 for the year ended 31 March 2016.

Securities And Other Trading Business
During the year under review, the Group conducts investments in
the stock market and trading in gold bullion.

For the securities trading business, despite the management
wishes to enlarge its securities trading portfolio in order to improve
the performance of the Group. However, the volatility of the stock
market during the year under review, makes the management to be
more prudent in taking risk on the securities trading business.

For the year ended 31 March 2016, the trading of securities has
generated a net gain of approximately HK$306,000 (2015: net loss
of approximately HK$3,840,000) and received dividend income
of approximately HK$24,000 (2015: HK$410,000). However, the
securities business recorded a loss of approximately HK$6,490,000
(2015: HK$10,965,000).

While, trading in gold bullion added additional contribution of
approximately HK$9,440,000 to the Group (2015: HK$2,409,000).

Other

During the year under review, the Group paid interest for
convertible notes /bonds of approximately HK$13,142,000
(2015: HK$26,096,000) and incurred non-cash finance costs of
approximately HK$30,774,000 (2015: HK$36,779,000) as a result of
the imputed interests on the convertible notes /bonds issued.

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend for
the year ended 31 March 2016 (2015: Nil).
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE

Shareholders’ equity increased to approximately HK$2,047,938,000
as at 31 March 2016 from approximately HK$1,080,938,000 as at
31 March 2015. As at 31 March 2016, the short term and long term
interest bearing debts to shareholders’ equity was 9.7% (2015:
approximately 26.8%).

2014 CONVERTIBLE NOTES

Reference is made to the announcements of the Company dated
11 July 2014, 3 September 2014, 25 September 2014, 15 October
2014, 22 October 2014, 29 October 2014 and the circular of the
Company dated 8 September 2014 relating to the placing of
convertible notes due 2016 in an aggregate principal amount
of HK$608,000,000 under specific mandate (the “2014 CN
Placing”). The 2014 CN Placing was completed in three tranches
on 15 October 2014 and 22 October 2014 and 29 October 2014
respectively (the “2014 Convertible Notes”). As at 31 March
2016, the maximum net proceeds from the 2014 CN Placing of
approximately HK$599,600,000 was applied as intended and
utilized (i) as to approximately HK$500,000,000 for the acquisition
of real estate properties and PRC companies; and (ii) as to
approximately HK$99,600,000 for the general working capital of the
Group.

During the year under review, (i) the holders of the 2014
Convertible Notes — Tranche 1 12% per annum coupon rate
convertible notes with the principal amount of HK$190,000,000
("Tranche 1 — 2014 Convertible Notes”) had converted an
aggregate total of the principal amount of HK$49,400,000 into
130,000,000 Shares at a conversion price of HK$0.38; (i) the holders
of the 2014 Convertible Notes — Tranche 2 12% per annum coupon
rate convertible notes with the principal amount of HK$190,000,000
("Tranche 2 — 2014 Convertible Notes”) had fully converted the
outstanding HK$57,000,000 into 150,000,000 Shares at a conversion
price of HK$0.38; and (iii) the holders of the 2014 Convertible Notes
— Tranche 3 12% per annum coupon rate convertible notes with the
principal amount of HK$228,000,000 (“Tranche 3 — 2014 Convertible
Notes”) had fully converted the outstanding HK$121,600,000 into
320,000,000 Shares at a conversion price of HK$0.38.

As at 31 March 2016, the principal amount of Tranche 1 - 2014
Convertible Notes outstanding was HK$9,997,800.
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EQUITY FUND RAISING ACTIVITIES

Placing of New Shares

On 6 May 2015, the Company entered into a placing agreement
with a placing agent. According to the agreement, the Company
agreed to place up to 340,000,000 shares at the placing price of
HK$0.42 per Share to not less than six independent placees. The
maximum gross proceeds from the placing was HK$142,800,000.
The placing of new Shares was completed on 22 May 2015. (For
details, please refer to the announcements of the Company dated
6 May 2015 and 22 May 2015).

As at 31 March 2016, the net proceeds of the placing of
approximately HK$141,000,000 was applied as intended and
utilised (i) as to approximately HK$121,900,000 for the acquisition
of real estate properties and PRC company; and (ii) as to
approximately HK$19,100,000 for the general working capital of the
Group.

Share Subscription

On 19 May 2015, the Company entered into a share subscription
agreement, which the Company has conditionally agreed to
allot and issue a total of 1,330,000,000 subscription shares at the
subscription price of HK$0.36 per Share. The share subscription was
subsequently completed on 16 November 2015. (For details, please
refer to the announcements of the Company dated 22 May 2015
and 16 November 2015 and the circular of the Company dated 6
July 2015).

As at 31 March 2016, the net proceeds of the share subscription of
approximately HK$478,000,000 has yet to be used.

Placing of 2015 Convertible Bonds

On 21 May 2015, the Company entered into a convertible bonds
placing agreement (as amended by the supplemental deed) with
a placing agent (the “2015 CB Placing Agreement”) in relation
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to the placing of a 3-year convertible bonds due 2018 (the
“2015 CB Placing”) in the aggregate principal amount of up to
HK$432,000,000 (the “2015 Convertible Bonds”). The conversion
price is HK$0.72 (subject to adjustment). Each of the 2015
Convertible Bonds shall bear interest at a rate of 4% per annum
from the date of issue payable annually in arrears.

As disclosed in circular of the Company dated 6 July 2015, (i)
the directors of the Company (the "Directors”) believe that the
2015 CB Placing could strengthen the Company’s cash resources
and working capital position for the development of the Group's
existing business. The additional capital will also facilitate the
efficient and timely execution of such potential investments as and
when they arise; (ii) the closing price per Share as quoted on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
on the last trading day preceding the signing of the CB Placing
Agreement was HK$0.65; and (iii) the net proceeds raised per
Conversion Share was approximately HK$0.711. The 2015 CB
Placing was completed on 20 August 2015. (For details, please
refer to the announcements of the Company dated 21 May 2015, 20
August 2015 and the circular of the Company dated 6 July 2015).

During the year under review, the holders of the 2015 Convertible
Bonds had converted an aggregate total of the principal amount
of HK$187,200,000 into 260,000,000 ordinary shares at a conversion
price of HK$0.72.

As at 31 March 2016, the net proceed from the 2015 CB Placing
was approximately HK$426,350,000 was applied as intended and
utilised (i) as to approximately HK$337,130,000 for the acquisition
of real estate properties and PRC company; and (ii) as to
approximately HK$89,220,000 for the general working capital of the
Group.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT, MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION

AND ANALYSIS
TERERERE R RO

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 March 2016, the Group had total assets of approximately
HK$2,560,721,000 (2015: HK$1,663,281,000) which was financed
by current liabilities of approximately HK$288,195,000 (2015:
HK$298,297,000), non-current liability of approximately
HK$232,658,000 (2015: HK$275,613,000), non-controlling interests
of approximately deficit balance HK$8,070,000 (2015: surplus
balance HK$8,433,000) and shareholders’ equity of approximately
HK$2,047,938,000 (2015: HK$1,080,938,000).

The Group’s current ratio as at 31 March 2016 was approximately
5.09 (2015: 4.10) and gearing ratio, representing the total of bank
borrowings and the sum of convertible notes/bonds, divided by
the shareholders’ equity was approximately 9.7% (2015: 26.8%). As
at 31 March 2016, approximately 100% of debts were denominated
in Hong Kong Dollars and with fixed interest coupon rate (2015:
approximately 79% interest bearing debts were denominated in
Hong Kong dollars with fixed interest coupon rates, 20% interest
bearing debts were denominated in Renminbi with variable interest
rates, and the remaining balance of debts were denominated in
Renminbi with fixed interest rate).

As at 31 March 2016, the Group had pledged certain of its buildings
with aggregate carrying amount of Nil (2015: approximately
HK$22,765,000), plant and machinery amount of Nil (2015:
approximately HK$12,940,000), and land use rights amount of Nil
(2015: approximately HK$3,911,000) to secure banking facilities
granted to the Group.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT, MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION

AND ANALYSIS
FRRERERE RO

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

DURING THE YEAR

Acquisitions

Yantian Properties

(A) The Group entered into an agreement on 24 June 2014 and
a supplemental agreement on 15 April 2015 to purchase the
property at a consideration of approximately RMB100,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$126,000,000) (For details,
please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 24
June 2014 and 15 April 2015 respectively).

(B) The Group entered into a second agreement on 15 May
2015, to further purchase the property at a consideration of
approximately RMB65,107,800 (equivalent to approximately
HK$81,384,750) (For details, please refer to the announcement
of the Company dated 15 May 2015).

(C) The Group entered into a third agreement on 10 November
2015, to further purchase the property at a consideration of
approximately RMB101,628,955 (equivalent to approximately
HK$121,954,746) (For details, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 10 November 2015).

Zengcheng Properties

(A) The Group entered into an agreement on 15 April 2015 and
a supplemental agreement on 15 June 2016 to purchase the
property at a consideration of approximately RMB130,150,000
(equivalent to HK$162,688,000) (For details, please refer to the
announcements of the Company dated 15 April 2015 and 15
June 2016 respectively).

(B) The Group entered into a second agreement on 5 June 2015
and a supplemental agreement on 15 June 2016 to further
purchase the property at a consideration of approximately
RMB75,598,740 (equivalent to HK$94,498,425) (For details,
please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 5
June 2015 and 15 June 2016 respectively).

(C) The Group entered into a third agreement on 27 August
2015, to further purchase the property at a consideration of
approximately RMB80,760,876 (equivalent to HK$100,951,095)
(For details, please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 27 August 2015).
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT, MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION

AND ANALYSIS
TREHREEEE BN M

Acquisition of 100% equity interest of Guangzhou Shi An Ye
Investment Development Company Limited* (BMiT X ¥ RER/E
BR 2 A])

The Group entered into a share transfer agreement on 17 March
2015 to acquire 100% equity interest of Guangzhou Shi An Ye
Investment Development Company Limited* (B/MNTM&LEEE
R AR AT at a consideration of RMB10,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$12,500,000) (For details, please refer to
the announcement of the Company dated 17 March 2015). The
acquisition was completed in May 2015.

Acquisition of 100% equity interest of Shenzhen Shi Longxinchang
Industrial Company Limited* (R EKEEXZRRER L E])

The Group entered into a share transfer agreement on 18 September
2015 to acquire 100% equity interest of Shenzhen Shi Longxinchang
Industrial Company Limited* (RYITTIEMRE BEEBERBRAF]) and
the sale loan for a total consideration of RMB13,600,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$16,320,000) (For details, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 18 September 2015). The
acquisition was completed in October 2015.

Acquisition of 35% equity interest of Shenzhen Zhaosheng Anye
Investment Development Company Limited* (FYIB B ZH#RE %
RERAA])

(A) The Group entered into a share transfer agreement on 9
February 2015 to acquire 15% equity interest of Shenzhen
Zhaosheng Anye Investment Development Company Limited*
(RYNBHLEREERBRAT]) ("Shenzhen Zhaosheng
Anye") at a consideration of RMB130,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$162,500,000). (For details, please refer to
the announcement of the Company dated 9 February 2015).
The acquisition was completed in May 2015.

(B) The Group entered into a second share transfer agreement
on 31 July 2015, to further acquire 20% equity interest
of Shenzhen Zhaosheng Anye at a consideration of
approximately RMB250,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$312,500,000). (For details, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 31 July 2015). The
acquisition was completed in September 2015. After the
acquisition, Shenzhen Zhaosheng Anye which is owned as to
35% by the Group and has become an associate of the Group.
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Disposals

Disposal of 100% equity interest of Siping Ju Neng Medicine
Industry Co, Ltd.* (W FEFEEXBERALF)

The Group entered into a conditional sale and purchase agreement
on 9 April 2015 with the purchaser Mr. Pan Guohua* (BB ZE L
A), an independent third party in respect of the sale of 100%
equity share of Billion Source Investments Limited (which has two
subsidiaries company, Silver Epoch Investments Limited and Value
Brilliant Investments Limited, investment holding companies, and
one indirect wholly owned subsidiary, Siping Ju Neng Medicine
Industry Co, Ltd.* (O FE&ZEX B R A7), a company engaged in
manufacturing and sale of pharmaceutical products in the PRC) at
a consideration of RMB30,000,000. (For details, please refer to the
announcements of the Company dated 15 April 2015 and 12 June
2015, and the circular of the Company dated on 18 May 2015). The
disposal of the PRC pharmaceutical business was completed on
12 June 2015 and the consideration as determined on that date at
approximately HK$37,902,000.

Disposal of 100% equity interest of Guangzhou Shi An Ye
Investment Development Company Limited* (BM i ZE K EH/E
BR2A])

The Group entered into a share transfer agreement on 18 January
2016 to dispose 100% equity interest in Guangzhou Shi An Ye
Investment Development Company Limited* (B/MNM %515 & &
RBPRAF]) at a consideration of RMB10,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$12,027,000). The disposal was completed in
March 2016.

Disposal of 100% equity interest of Shenzhen Shi Longxinchang
Industrial Company Limited* (Y EEXZ/RER L 7))

The Group entered into a share transfer agreement on 31
March 2016 to dispose 100% equity interest of Shenzhen Shi
Longxinchang Industrial Company Limited* (FIITEMREE
¥ EAMRAA]) and the sale loan for a total consideration of
RMB13,600,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$16,320,000). The

disposal was subsequently completed in April 2016.
Save as disclosed above, there was no other material acquisition or

disposal of subsidiaries or associates of the Company during the
year under review.

*  For identification purpose only
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AND ANALYSIS
TEREREEEN MM

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Details of significant subsequent events are set out in note 48 to
the consolidated financial statements.

EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATION IN EXCHANGE
RATES

Most of the Group's assets, liabilities and business transactions are
denominated in Hong Kong Dollars, Renminbi, Indonesian Rupiah
and US Dollars which have been relatively stable during the year
ended 31 March 2016. The Group was not exposed to material
exchange risk and had not employed any financial instruments for
hedging purposes.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICY
The Group has a total of approximately 73 employees in Hong
Kong, Indonesia and the PRC as at 31 March 2016. The total cost
(staff salary and director emolument) for the year ended 31 March
2016 amounted to approximately HK$42,741,000. Remuneration
packages are generally structured according to market situations
and individual performance. Apart from the mandatory provident
fund and statutory retirement benefits, the Group also provides
medical benefits and sponsors employees in different training and
continuous education programs.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to
thank our shareholders and business associates for their ongoing
support and extend our appreciation to our management team and
staff members for their contributions to our achievements in the
year.

By order of the Board

Wu Hongquan
Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 June 2016
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEFHE

The directors of the Company present their annual report and
the audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 44
to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2016 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 54 to 55.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movement in the share capital of the Company during
the year ended 31 March 2016 are set out in note 33 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE OPTIONS

Details of share options are set out in note 36 to the consolidated

financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group's business during the year ended 31 March
2016 are set out in “Management Discussion and Analysis” on page
23 which forms part of this Directors’ Report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group’s financial position, business results and prospects
would be affected by a number of risks including operational risk,
market risk and financial risk. The Group's property business in
the PRC which is susceptible to change in government policies
and foreign currency risk. The Group's money lending business is
subject to credit risk. The Group's securities trading business is
affected by the volatility of the stock market. The Group's financial
risk management objectives and policies are shown in note 5 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEFHE

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the
contributed surplus of the Company is available for distribution
to shareholders. However, a company cannot declare or pay a
dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed surplus, if:

(i) itis, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities
as they become due; or

(i) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than
the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and
share premium accounts.

The Company has deficit at 31 March 2016 which comprises
contributed surplus of approximately HK$180,030,000 less
accumulated losses of approximately HK$3,070,428. Accordingly,
the Company has no reserves available for distribution to
shareholders as at 31 March 2016.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group spent an
aggregate amount of approximately HK$2,693,000 on the
acquisition of property, plant and equipment for expansion and
improvement of the facilities of its pharmaceutical and mining
business and aggregate amount of approximately HK$Nil on
disposal of property, plant and equipment.

Details of these and other movements in property, plant and
equipment of the Group during the year ended 31 March 2016 are
set out in note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS" SERVICE

CONTRACTS

The Directors of the Company during the year ended 31 March
2016 and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors
Mr. Wu Hongquan (appointed on 5 August 2015
and Chairman on 19 November 2015)
Mr. Huang Yilin
Mr. Chan Shi Yin, Keith
Ms. Li Yali (appointed on 16 November 2015)
Mr. Zhang Zhensheng (appointed on 19 November 2015)
Mr. Lin Chengdong (resigned on 16 November 2015)
Mr. Mo Tsz Yuk (resigned on 16 November 2015)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Zhang Xianlin

Mr. Kwok Hong Yee, Jesse

Mr. Ho Chun Kit, Gregory

In accordance with Clause 86(2) of the Company’s Bye-laws, Ms.
Li Yali and Mr. Zhang Zhensheng will retire at the Annual General
Meeting, and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election as
Directors at the Annual General Meeting.

In accordance with Clause 87(1) of the Company’s Bye-laws, Mr.
Huang Yilin and Mr. Chan Shi Yin, Keith will retire at the Annual
General Meeting, and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election as Directors at the Annual General Meeting.

The term of office of each of the Independent Non-executive
Directors is for a term of three years subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at the Annual General Meeting as required
by the Company’s Bye-laws.

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting has any unexpired service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT
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DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests in Shares
As at 31 March 2016, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executives in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance ("SFO"), as recorded in the register maintained by the
Company under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified
to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the "Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model Code”)
as set out in the Listing Rules were as follows:

Long positions in shares of the Company
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Number of ordinary shares held

BEZEBRYA
Total interests
as percentage
Number of of the issued
Personal Family Corporate  share options Total  share capital
Name of director interest interests interests held interests (Note 1)
HERTRAZ
BEZBRE AREREIN
BEEpg AR Rk DRER L] aRs (1)
Huang Yilin BRM 70,000 - - 27,000,000 27,070,000 0.51%
Chan Shi Yin, Keith R 8 1,200,000 - 26,310,000 27,000,000 54,510,000 1.02%
(Note 2)
(Hi2)
Zhang Xianlin REM = = - 1,840,000 1,840,000 0.03%
Kwok Hong Yee, Jesse ~ FEZ - - - 1,700,000 1,700,000 0.03%
Notes: Hiat -
1. The percentages calculated are based on the total number of issued shares of 1. ZEASWIHRBAQFN2016F3ABZEE

the Company of 5,343,690,000 Shares as at 31 March 2016.

2. The corporate interests in an aggregate principal amount of HK$9,997,800 —
12% coupon Convertible Notes due 2016 (at a conversion price of HK$0.38)
(equivalent to 26,310,000 conversion shares) are registered in the name of TIEN
Credit Limited, a company wholly-owned by Mr. Chan Shi Yin, Keith, a Director.

1T 48 815,343,690,000/% A& (D 515 o

2. NEERFEXREZ2ERBRARBREEBRA
RAlB T B2 N20165F 5 2 A 4 #50 59,997,800
BT —12B RS RRER (J20.38 B T 2 BIRE)
(¥ 126,310,00008 B[R ) 2 D EIERE
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2016, none of the Directors
or the chief executives or their associates had any interests of short
positions in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company, subsidiaries or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The share option scheme adopted by the Company on 14 January
2002 (the "2002 Share Option Scheme”) had been terminated on
9 August 2011 and a new share option scheme (the “2011 Share
Option Scheme”) was adopted by the Company on 9 August 2011.

2002 Share Option Scheme

As at 31 March 2016, the number of shares in respect of which share
options remained outstanding under 2002 Share Option Scheme
was 3,220,000.

A2 AsiaResources Holdings Limited S5 ERIEBAR AR

B EXXHTHRTEEIN - R2016%F3831H @ #
BERRETBTRAESRBEZHEALR
AAE - HEBARSREAMEEEE(EER
BHEREEEMEXVER) Z ERRH - HE
R ESHT A BLER AR RBIEES
MEEEPIEIS2GATE 2 ZRMRN - 3
TRBIRESFRIZBANS AN QR R 2 T
Ak B #E s o

RENREET 2

ANRNFF20025F1 A14 B H 2 B E 2
([2002F BE R ERT S ) E R 201 F8 AR 1
BIE - MARTER201ME8RIRHHR—IA
BT 2I([20M FEEIRET2I]) -

2002 F B IR AEET 2

R2016F3A31H + R2002F B AT EI18
THEARTEZEREIYR ZBRNDEE B
3,220,000/ °
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During the year under review, the details and movements in the REEEEA - RIFE2002F BIRET 82 &%
share options granted under 2002 Share Option Scheme are as 2 BB 2 B MBI -
follows:

Number of share options

EREREA

Adjusted
exercise Outstanding  Granted  Exercised Lapsed Cancelled Outstanding
price  at 1 April during during during during at 31 March

Date of grant  Exercisable period per share 2015  theyear  theyear  theyear  the year 2016
R2015% R2016%
shiEae 4A18 3A318
RiAH T8 88  HAGE REARE REATE REAXR REAEE  HATE
(Note 1)
(Ht1)
HKS
BT
Category 1: Directors
A g%
Zhang Xianlin 12 Jul 2011 12 Jul 2011 - 11 Jul 2021 1775 140,000 - - - - 140,000
REH META2E META1ZBENNETANE
Tong Leung Sang 12 Jul 2011 12 Jul 2011 - 11 Jul 2021 1775 140,000 - - (140,000 - -
(Note 2)

aRE(MH2) NV1F78128  011FTB12BE01E7R118

Lum Pak Sum 12 Jul 2011 12 Jul 2011 = 11 Jul 2021 1775 140,000 - - (140,000 - -
(Note 3)
WEH(HZ3) NV1F7A128  011FTB12BE01E7R118

140,000

Total for Directors 420,000 - - (280,000)
e

Category 2: Employees
ER- BR

Employees 12 Jul 2011 12 Jul 2011 =11 Jul 2021 1775 3,080,000 = = = - 3,080,000
B8 W1ETR128 01F7A12BE2021%7 4118

Total for 3,080,000 - - - - 3,080,000
Employees

(L)

Total for all 3,500,000 - - (280,000)
categories

FARA st

3,220,000
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Notes:

1. The closing price of the Company'’s shares quoted on the Stock Exchange on the
date of grant was HK$0.071 (adjusted to HK$1.775 upon capital reorganization

became effective on 3 June 2013);
2. Mr. Tong Leung Sang resigned on 4 February 2015;

3. Mr. Lum Pak Sum resigned on 1 February 2015.

2011 Share Option Scheme

On 20 April 2015, 117,000,000 share options were granted to
Directors and employees of the Company under 2011 Share Option
Scheme at an exercisable price of HK$0.395 per share.

Reference is also made to the circulars of the Company dated 22
July 2015 and 11 August 2015. On 26 August 2015, an ordinary
resolution was duly passed by the shareholders at Annual General
Meeting of the Company, approving, inter alia, to refresh the
scheme mandate limit under the 2011 Share Option Scheme of the
Company adopted on 9 August 2011. The refreshed scheme limit as
at 26 August 2015 was 374,029,000.

A4 AsiaResources Holdings Limited S5 ERIEBAR AR

Byt

1. ARABRHRELBHRBRMARZKTES
0.0718 T (R AREHN2013F6 A38 AR A FHE
B1.77587T)

2. BRHESRER2015F2 A48 EHT

3. MIEZRELENR2015F2A1BEHT -

2011 FE B IR RET 2

M2015F4 4208 + AR EIRIE2011F E K
R EIRITEEBER0395B TREENES
#% 4117,000,00017 BE A% A -

ZIRMA AR BHA2015%7 A22H8 %2015
FEANMHZHEE » R2015F8H26H » —18
TBRBENARARIZBRRAF KRG ER
RIENXBB - UHE(EPBE)EHERQF
20118 H9B 48,2 2011 F i fx i 51 8118
TZET8IIREREE - R2015F8A26H 2
B HETEIPR B8 5374,029,00017 °
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During the year under review, the details and movements in the REBEEEA - RIBE2011FERET D&
share options granted under 2011 Share Option Scheme are as o BB 2 B R EEIT -
follows:

Number of share options

EREHE
Reclassification
Exercisable Outstanding Granted of categories  Exercised Lapsed  Cancelled Outstanding
price  at 1 April during during during during during  at 31 March
Date of grant Exercisable period per share 2015 the year theyear  the year the year the year 2016
R2015% R2016%
) B8R 4A1H Bl ) 3A31H
RHAH %8 hﬁ% HATE  REARE  ENAE REATE  REAXN  REREE  HAGR
HK
A
Category 1: Directors
Rhl- 2
Huang Yilin 20 Apr 2015 20 Apr 2015 - 19 Apr 2025 0.395 - 27,000,000 - - - - 27,000,000
Eh 1554A08 2015545208 22025548198
Chan Shi Yin, Keith 20 Apr 2015 20 Apr 2015 - 19 Apr 2025 0.39 - 27,000,000 - - - - 27,000,000
RHE WSEAANE  NISEARNRENBEA9R
Zhang Xianlin 26 Aug 2014 26 Aug 2014 - 25 Aug 2024 0.3%2 200,000 - - - - - 200,000
REM NIUESANE  NI4EEABBENNUFIALA
30ct 2014 30ct 2014 - 2 Oct 2024 0520 1,000,000 - - - - - 1,000,000
DWEI0A38 2014510A3RZ04E10A28
20 Apr 2015 20 Apr 201519 Apr 2025 0.395 - 500,000 - - - - 500,000
1554A08 01554208 Z202554A19R
Kwok Hong Yee, Jesse 26 Aug 2014 26 Aug 2014 - 25 Aug 2024 0.352 200,000 - - - - - 200,000
JEZ N1458A268  01458R26AZ00458A25R
30ct 2014 30ct 2014 - 2 Oct 2024 0520 1,000,000 - - - - - 1,000,000
WWUEI0A3E 2014510A3RZ0UE10A28
20 Apr 2015 20 Apr 201519 Apr 2025 0.395 - 500,000 - - - - 500,000
W1554A08 015545208 Z200554819R
Lu Jianling (Note 1) 26 Aug 2014 26 Aug 2014 - 25 Aug 2024 0.352 200,000 - - (200,000) - - -
EREWH1) 01458826 01458 A26AZ024%8725H
30ct 2014 30ct 2014 -2 Oct 2024 0520 8,000,000 - - - (8,000,000 - -
014510A3A 014F10A36Z2024%10828
Tong Leung Sang (Note 2) - 26 Aug 2014 26 Aug 2014 - 25 Aug 2024 0.352 200,000 - - (200,000) - - -
kali2) NIUESANE  NI4ESABBENNUFAA
30ct 2014 30ct 2014 -2 Oct 2024 0520 1,000,000 - - - (1,000,000 - -
01451043 014F10A38Z2024%10828
Lum Pak Sum (Note 3) 26 Aug 2014 26 Aug 2014 - 25 Aug 2024 0.35 200,000 - - - 200,000) - -
WERWS) 1458A26H  01458R26AZ200458A25R
30ct 2014 30ct 2014 -2 Oct 2024 0520 1,000,000 - - - (1,000,000 - -
014510438 014F10A38Z2024%10828
Lin Chengdong (Note 4) 26 Aug 2014 26 Aug 2014 - 25 Aug 2024 0.3%2 200,000 - 200,000 - - - -
WaR(Hi4) NIUESANE  NIESABBENNUFALBA
30ct 2014 30ct 2014 -2 Oct 2024 0520 8,000,000 - (8,000,000 - - - -
014510A3A 014F10A38Z2024%10828
20 Apr 2015 20 Apr 201519 Apr 2025 0.395 - 18,800,000  (18,800,000) - - - -
1554A08 015545208 Z202554R 198
Mo Tsz Yuk (Note 4) 20 Apr 2015 20 Apr 201519 Apr 2025 0.395 - 27,000,000 (15,000,000 (12,000,000) - - -
RFE(Hite) 1554A08  01554A208 22025548198
Total for Directors 21,200,000 100,800,000 (42,000,000  (12,400,000)  (10,200,000) - 57,400,000
£ h
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== A+ /_—l:
(iSea)
EETHE
Number of share options
EREHE
Reclassification
Exercisable  Outstanding Granted of categories  Exercised Lapsed Outstanding
price  at 1 April during during during during at 31 March
Date of grant Exercisable period per share 2015 the year theyear the year the year 2016
R2015% 20165
) B8R 4A1H el ) 34318
RHAH %8 hﬁ% HATE REARE  ENAE RERTE  REAKN WA
HK
i
Category 2: Employees
)y
Employees 26 Aug 2014 26 Aug 2014 - 25 Aug 2024 0352 8,600,000 - 200,000 (7,600,000) - 1,200,000
(Note 4)
8 WIEBA0E  NI4EBA6RZNUEALR (W)
30ct 2014 30ct 2014 -2 Oct 2024 0520 39,000,000 - 8000000 (100,000 (1,500,000) 45,400,000
(Note 4)
NUEI0A3E  NWEI0A3EZNUEFI0R2R (W)
20 Apr 2015 20 Apr 2015 - 19 Apr 2025 039 - 3,000,000 33,800,000  (1,000,000) - 35,800,000
(Note 4)
WSEAANE  NISEBNRENBEA9R (W)
Total for Employees 47,600,000 3000000 42000000 (8,700,000  (1,500,000) 82,400,000
Eagst
Category 3: Consultant
£5l= BB
Consultant 20 Apr 2015 20 Apr 201519 Apr 2025 0.395 - 13,200,000 - (13,200,000 - -
Ef W1554A08  01554A208 22025548198
Total for Consultant - 13,200,000 - (13,200,000) = =
Bt
Total for all categories 68,800,000 117,000,000 - (34,300,000 (11,700,000 139,800,000
FrEgRIAst
Notes: Htat -
1. Mr. Lu Jianling resigned on 23 January 2015; 1. ERESLER2015F1A23B BT
2. Mr. Tong Leung Sang resigned on 4 February 2015; 2. BRAESAER2015F2A4BEHT
3. Mr. Lum Pak Sum resigned on 1 February 2015; 3. MIEFREENR2015F2 A1 HEHT
4. Each of Mr. Lin Chengdong and Mr. Mo Tsz Yuk resigned as a director of Asia 4. MEREERR FEILEN2015F11A16BEEDR

Resources Holdings Limited on 16 November 2015, but Mr. Lin remained as
director of certain subsidiaries of the Group during the year; Mr. Mo remained
as director of certain subsidiaries of the Group till 17 March 2016. Therefore,
their respective outstanding options have been reclassified under "Employees”

category.

The closing price of the Company’s shares quoted on the Stock
Exchange on the respective dates of grant of 26 August 2014,
3 October 2014 and 20 April 2015 were HK$0.345, HK$0.520 and

HK$0.395 respectively.

Asia Resources Holdings Limited Z5iil & RIEHE AR A 7

MERIZEREBRARESE - BERFAMEEBER
EEETHBRARIZES  RAEBAREEET
WMEBARZES  HEE2016F3A178 - Bt » #
EEERRTEERECETSEE [RBE 1ER -

B IT I 0.3958 7T °
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DIRECTORS' RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed above in respect of the Directors’ interests in
securities and Share Options in the note 36 to the consolidated
financial statements, at no time during the year ended 31 March
2016, was the Company or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debt securities
(including debentures) of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2016, so far as was known to the Directors and the
chief executive of the Company, the following persons (other than
any director and chief executive of the Company) who had interests
or short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under
the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or as
recorded in the register to be kept by the Company under Section
336 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange:

EEREARMDSERER ZER

BEXHBEERNES 2 Ea MRAMB®RE
MiFE36 2 BRI R E SN - AR AL
M E AR RBE2016F3A31RLEFER
EREMES2ETIEMRZSE  BERARQ
Al EZAHEBARNRASEMEMEAE
BeBRPAEBES(BEES) MER -

N2

TERR 2w R

NN
W=

MR2016F3A31H REEREARFZEE
TERABFA A TAL(RAREHESER
FETBRABBRINRARB KRG KAEBERD
PEERERSSAR  MAREZELSRBEE
PISEXVERE2 R B3N B 2 B FE » 3k
B AR BIZARIEF HF KA E 15515533615
BAFEZERMA  HBTAEARQE K
RFT

Approximate
percentage of the

Number of issued share capital
issued ordinary of the Company
Name of shareholder Capacity shares held (Note 1)
EADFCRTRA
BEZERT ZHBRNBEDL
RRER 54 EBEREE (K1)
Xi'an Communication Energy Beneficial owner 1,330,000,000 24.89%
(Hongkong) Co., Limited (Note 2)
ARRBER(EE)BRAR ERBAAN (Ht:22)
Xi'an Communication Gas Corporation Limited Through a controlled corporation 1,330,000,000 24.89%
(Note 2)
AR BRRERET AT BRXEEE (Ht:22)
ML MERREERIREEEFR AR Through controlled corporations 1,330,000,000 24.89%
(Note 2)
AR mERRERRREEEERAR BRXEEE (Ht:22)
Shanxi Yanchang Petroleum (Group) Co., Ltd. Through controlled corporations 1,330,000,000 24.89%
(Note 2)
REERAH(EE)BERETAF BRXEEE (Ht:22)
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Notes:

(1) The percentages calculated are based on the total number of issued shares of
the Company of 5,343,690,000 Shares as at 31 March 2016.

(2) Xi'an Communication Energy (Hongkong) Co., Limited is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Xi'an Communication Gas Corporation Limited, which is owned as
to 49% by Shanxi Yanchang Petroleum (Group) Co., Ltd., 46.8% by FaZ ik mi&
MEMERIEEBBR AT and 4.2% by AR M AR AR (100% interest
controlled by AR M AR IEERIREEBERAR]).

Save as disclosed above, the Company had not been notified and is
not aware of any other person who had an interest or short position
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO as at 31 March 2016.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

There were no contracts of significance to which the Company, its
holding company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which
a Director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year ended 31 March 2016.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable donations accounting
to HK$Nil (2015: HK$33,000).

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2016 and up to the date of this
report, there was or is permitted indemnity provision in the Bye-
laws of the Company being in force. The Company has maintained
directors’ and officers’ liability insurance throughout the year,
which provides appropriate cover certain legal actions brought
against its Directors and officers arising out of corporate activities.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed in respect of Convertible Notes/Bonds and
Share Options in the notes 34 and 36 to the consolidated financial
statements, no equity-linked agreements that will or may result in
the Company issuing shares or that require the Company to enter
into any agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing
shares were entered into by the Company during the year ended 31
March 2016 or subsisted at the end of the year.

Asia Resources Holdings Limited 35 & RIZHK A R A &)

Byt
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate sales during the year ended 31 March 2016,
attributable to the Group's five largest customers comprised
approximately 88.5% of the Group's total sales (including
discontinued operations).

The Group had no major suppliers due to the nature of the
principal activities of the Group.

At no time during the year ended 31 March 2016, did a director,
an associate of a director or a shareholder of the Company, which
to the knowledge of the directors owned more than 5% of the
Company's issued share capital, have an interest in any of the five
largest suppliers or customers of the Group.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 March 2016, neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company'’s listed securities.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration policy of the employees of the Group is set up
on the basis of their merit, qualifications and competence. Apart
from the mandatory provident fund and statutory retirement
benefits, the Group also provides medical benefits and sponsored
employees in different training and continuous education program.

The remuneration of the Directors of the Company are decided,
having regard to the Company’s operating results, individual
performance and comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive
to Directors and eligible employees, details of which are set out in
note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

FERFPLERER
REE2016F3ANBIEFERN > AEE R
ABEFZAHAHEBMEAEERHEERY
88.5%(BIFERILET) »

AREETIZXKEH I MEER  AEH
W BHERER -

REZE2016F3A31 8 IEFEAERERE -
B EEU/MBEATINEZRAARELR
NAIEEITRASSIA £ 2 AR R IRR B EH
BAREETAAAREBIETS 2 -

BBE  LExBRARNFZ
EhmES
REE2016F3A3MBLEFERN » KAAFIR
HNBARMERE  LEXERARRE
Al ETHRES -

N BUR
AEEEEZHFMBREDRELRS - AE
BABEMAITE - BRHEAES ROATRK
RIS  AEETREERRNREEES
SIMEEEY RISEREHE -

\

ARBEEZHFWHIZREARAZLEE
B AARREMS LA B RGBFEM
RTE e

ARRDRM—EBRAEE - (EAHES

RABEREEZERE  FEHENEGRAMER
RMIFE36 ©
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company's Bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout
the year ended 31 March 2016.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements for the years ended 31 March
2015 and 2016 were audited by HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
Limited, which retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-appointment at the 2016 Annual General Meeting.

A resolution to re-appoint HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
and to authorise the Directors to fix their remuneration will be

proposed at the 2016 Annual General Meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Wu Hongquan
Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 June 2016
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

B 2 AR

BT g3t F a5 oA R )
Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

HLB

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
ASIA RESOURCES HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Asia
Resources Holdings Limited (the "Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 54 to 203,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 March 2016, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

31/F, Gloucester Tower & &

The Landmark IR

11 Pedder Street ETH115%
Central BihES

Hong Kong EELTITRE31E

HENERZRERDBAVERR
(RERZZMEA L ERAA])

AZERED (AT RSTE [ 39 )) B B EN F 54
E203HMEBERZERERAR(TERAR R
HMBRAR(LATEE [EEE ) 2HREME
Wk - RSP BEHREBIEN201653 A 31
BZHRAVBRAREEEZRIEFEZLE
AEERHEMEEAREER  SAESEHER
LGRS RER  URTBESTHERE
MHAFREER -

BERRESARARBEEBEGHMASHEM
BB BREERRFB(ATED) KE
ME WEMEBEEMAFHINRZEHEEY
BHEL TREEFTAA/BEZABPIES -
IEREEEMBRR T FEAR KRS
RME R B AR -
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B 2 AR

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in
accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Accountants. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors
consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedure that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimated made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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VR TR

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true BMRE  ZEGEVERREBRERSY
and fair view of the financial position of the Group as at 31 March BHRELENEEmMAFRE BEE£ER
2016 and of its financial performance and cash flows for the year 2016F3AN B2 HBMAREEREZE IE
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting FEZYBERRAERERE  WEZRRBED
Standards and have been properly prepared in compliance with the (R TFHEBI) TR T L BiRE

disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

HL Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited BEEEMERKAERA
Certified Public Accountants MEGEHRD

Shek Lui A=z

Practicing Certificate Number: P05895 HNEBEZHRS - PO589I5
Hong Kong, 24 June 2016 B - 201656 H24H
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

refBRmMEMEEIR

N\ 7
e

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #;Z=2016F3 831 H I &

Continuing operations
Revenue, net
Cost of sales

Gross profit/(loss)

Other revenue

Other gains

Gain on bargain purchase

Distribution and selling expenses

Administrative expenses

Share of results of an associate

Write down of obsolete inventories

Provision for impairment loss on
property, plant and equipment

Provision for impairment loss on
intangible assets

(Loss)/gain on disposal of subsidiaries

Finance costs

Loss before income tax
Income tax

Loss for the year from continuing
operations

Profit/(loss) for the year from
discontinued operations

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive (expenses)/
income, net of tax

Reclassification adjustments relating
to foreign operations disposed
during the year

Share of other comprehensive expense
of an associate

Exchange differences on translating
foreign operations

Other comprehensive (expenses)/
income for the year, net of tax

Total comprehensive loss for the year

Notes
(=2
BHEREER
WA - 58 7
$H & A A
EH,/(FE8)
Hi g A 8
H b 25 9
EAEGEI g 37
DN EHEE A
1TEBE S
B —EEERR 2 EE 21
T H 1T E MU 22
VI - BE R EREEE
B 11
EIEEREBERE
20
HEKB AR (EE) W 38
A& KA 10
B FTIS T AT E 18 11
FTiSHi 14
AEERESEEBIEFR
AEECDRIEER 2
BRSO (EE) 15
REEFE
Hith2mE(FX), Ik -
BRFi%
ERFREHEBINERZ
BN ERAE

DIEBME AR EMER
53

BEBINEBTELEZ
PEH EH

AFEEHMEE
(Fx), Mz BRHE

FEERHBRAE
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2016
HK$’'000
FERT

4,454

(100)

4,354
10,801
132

(3,650)
(87,111)
(732)
(3,493)
(4,156)
(26,557)
(25)
(30,774)
(141,211)
(1,664)
(142,875)

50,111

(92,764)

(28,408)

(5,264)

(64,228)

(97,900)

(190,664)

2015
HK$'000
TAT

(3,560)
(223)

(3,783)
4,286

93,087
(386)
(99,955)

(168,342)
2,186
(36,779)

(209,686)
(368)

(210,054)
(35,248)

(245,302)

4,378

4,378

(240,924)



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
fre8m MEEE RS R

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #;Z=2016F3 831 H I &

2016 2015
Notes HK$’'000 HK$'000
M=t THET FAET
Loss attributable to: FEETE -
Owners of the Company ViN/NETE F =N 17 (76,205) (157,152)
Non-controlling interest FEFE AR = (16,559) (88,150)
(92,764) (245,302)
Total comprehensive loss attributable to: fE{5 2 EEEAEEE
Owners of the Company KABHEE A (173,672) (153,526)
Non-controlling interest Bl iy (16,992) (87,398)
(190,664) (240,924)
HK$ HK$
BT BIT
Loss per share attributable to owners AT HEFAEGEERER
of the Company
From continuing and discontinued REFESEREBRILER
operations
~ Basic and diluted —EARNEE 17 (0.018) (0.084)
From continuing operations REFELEEK
~ Basic and diluted —EARREE 17 (0.030) (0.066)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these BEM 2 B s A S A M igmER 2 — 25 °
consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

wra ISR

As at 31 March 2016 72201643 H831H

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Interest in an associate
Deposits paid

Current assets

Inventories

Properties under development

Trade and bills receivables

Loan receivables

Prepayments, deposits and other
receivables

Amount due from an associate

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Bank balances and cash

Assets classified as held for sale

Current liabilities
Trade payables
Other payables and accruals
Receipts in advance
Tax payable
Amount due to a non-controlling
shareholder
Convertible notes

Liabilities directly associated with
assets classified as held for sale

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

FRBEE

WE - BERRE

B EE

ISl AN 5o
BEftEE

RBEE

FE

BRTYE

B 5 R M B R &
e E R
BNFE - BE R
Ho{th [l W AR K

JE U — ZK B ' A B 2 5ROR
REmRAFEARZ
T EE
RITEHNRE

DEBRIELEZEE

RBAE

B 5 RNERR

Hip RN BT & B
B IR

e IR

FE N — R IR R 2 IR

QEJES

BOBRFHELEZEE

2
BEEMABEZERE

RBEEFE
EERBERABRE

Asia Resources Holdings Limited 351 & RIZHA R A A

Notes

B &t

18
20
21
26

22
23
24
25

26
21

27
28

16

29
30

31
34

16

2016
HK$’'000
FERT

39,157

456,313
598,092

1,093,562

782,281
40,638

58,289
4,167

10,632
505,485

1,401,492
65,667
1,467,159
8,676
169,972

97,800
2,101

9,646

288,195

288,195
1,178,964

2,272,526

2015
HK$'000
TAT

47,859
32,727

359,922
440,508
3,777

733,257
45,347

14,508

5,820
337,495

1,140,204
82,569
1,222,773

59,946
171,337

482

389

232,154

66,143
298,297
924,476

1,364,984



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
wrE B IR ER

As at 31 March 2016 72201643 H831H

2016 2015
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Mo F&ET FBT

Capital and reserves EAXRf#HE
Share capital R& AR 33 1,335,923 694,848
Reserves & 712,015 386,090

Total equity attributable to owners of ZRAFEE AELEFEALE

the company 2,047,938 1,080,938
Non-controlling interest IR R (8,070) 8,433
2,039,868 1,089,371

Non-current liabilities FnBEME
Convertible bonds AT AR (E 34 188,448 229,289
Deferred tax liabilities EIEF A B F 35 44,210 46,324
232,658 275,613
2,272,526 1,364,984

The consolidated financial statements were approved and REGEUBREREBEETEN2016F6 A
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 24 June 2016 and 28R EREETIETHATATRERES

signed on its behalf by: g%
Mr. Huang Yilin Mr. Chan Shi Yin, Keith
BAMITE REFBLE
Director Director
BFE BFE

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these BEM 2 i B2 SR e MR —35H -
consolidated financial statements.

Annual Report 2016 Fii



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

A= N\ 7/

PN ﬁ::m@]i%

/\\/ \ T

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z201643 31 H (- F &

Attributable to owners of the Company

LN LN
PRC Attributable
Convertible  Share-based statutory to non-
Share Share Capital notes/bonds ~ payment Special reserve  Translation Accumulated controlling
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve funds reserve losses ~ Subtotal interest Total
TRREE/ HRE e FER
e ROEE BARE  EERE  XRERE  GORE  RE0EE ENRE 2R Mt EREE it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000. HK$000. HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
Thn Thr TR THEL TR TR TR Thn Thn Thn ThI T
note i) note i) (note il
(iED) (Riaki) (i)
A1 April 2014 RO14ELF1R 24619 1,060,328 198,350 48238 5921 92926 2062 20,800 (1,009,024) 821320 95,831 917,151
Loss for the year KEEFR = = = = = = = - (19152 (1571%) (88150 (&4530)
Other comprehensive income REFEM2ENS
for the year = o o = = o = 3626 = 3626 752 4318
Total comprehensive income/ KEERENE/
(expenses) forthe year (ait)g8 - - - - - - - 386 (1150 (15356 (@199 (2094
Conversion of convertible notes TERZEERARR
into shares 298744 125,833 - (59,120) - - - - - 365,457 - 365,457
Recognition of equity componentof ~ ERT#REEZ
convertible notes Eads - - - 18,091 B - - - - 18,091 o 18,091
Lapse of share options BREEH - - - - (116) - - - 16 - - -
Equity settled share-based transactions HEZEENRHEERIRS - - - - 21,59 - - - - 27,59 - 21,59
Issue of ordinary shares upon iERERET
exercise of share options 1Y 1425 2076 o = (1,495) o = = = 2,006 o 2,006
At 31 March 2015 and RAO15E3A3NBR
1 April 2015 R01554A1R 094848 1188237 198,350 7209 31900 92926 2,062 31466 (11660600 1,080,938 8433 1,0893M
Loss for the year KEREE 76,209) (76,209) (16,559) (92,764)
Other comprehensive expenses FERAMRERM
for the year - - - - - - - (97.467) - (97.467) 433) (97.900)
Total comprehensive expenses FEERER LR
for the year - - - - - - - (97,467) (76,209) (173672) (16992) (190,664)
Conversion of convertible notes/bonds  FTEREH /B8 H AR
into shares 215,000 200,200 - (54,311) - - - - - 360,889 - 360,889
Recognition of equity component of ~ BEATARER /B57
convertible notes/bonds Badn - - - 119,993 B - - - - 119.993 o 119.993
Lapse of share options BRELN - - - - (10,255) - - - 10,255 - - -
Equity settled share-based transactions MEREENRHEER %5 - - - - 3,564 - - - - 35,564 - 35,564
Share subscription ke 332,500 146,300 - - - - - - - 478,800 - 478,800
Placing of shares RERR 85,000 57,800 - - - - - - - 142,800 - 142,800
Disposal of subsidiaries HENELR - - - - - - 2,062) - 2062 = = =
Issue of ordinary shares upon fikEREEEA
exercise of share options SR 8,575 4642 o o (10,102 o = = = 3115 = 3115
Acquisition of additional WENBRAZBMER
interest in subsidiaries - - - - B - - 2174 (2.663) (489) 49 -
At 31 March 2016 R2016%3A31A 133,923 1,597,179 198,350 72891 47107 92,926 - (63821)  (1.232611) 2047938 (8070) 2,039,868

58 Asia Resources Holdings Limited RV
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

/\\/ \

dE N 7 4=y
T /\’%““‘@J%%

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z201643 31 H (- F &

Notes:

(ii)

(i)

The
cons

Pursuant to a special resolution passed at a special general meeting held
on 31 May 2013, the Company effected the capital reorganisation (“Capital
Reorganisation”) which became effective on 3 June 2013 and involved (i) the
consolidation of every twenty-five issued and unissued shares with a par value
of HK$0.05 each into one consolidated share; (ii) the reduction of issued share
capital whereby the par value of each issued consolidated shares will be reduced
from HK$1.25 to HK$0.25 by cancelling the paid-up capital to the extent of
HK$1.00 on each of the consolidated shares to a reduced share of HK$0.25 each;
(iii) transfer of the credit arising from the capital reduction to the capital reserve
account of the Company; (iv) the sub-division of each unissued consolidated
share into five reduced shares of HK$0.25 each.

The special reserve of the Group represents the excess of the nominal amount
of the shares of the subsidiaries at the date of the group reorganisation over the
nominal amount of the shares issued by the Company as consideration for the

acquisition of the subsidiaries.

As stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations for foreign investment in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"), the Company’s PRC subsidiaries are
required to maintain two statutory reserves, being a statutory surplus reserve
and an enterprise expansion fund (collectively referred to as the “PRC statutory
reserve funds”), which are non-distributable. The statutory surplus reserve fund
may be used to make up prior year losses incurred and, with approval from
relevant government authority, to increase capital. The enterprise expansion
fund, subject to approval by relevant government authority, may also be used to

increase capital.

accompanying notes form an integral part of these
olidated financial statements.

Bt

(i)

RIER2013F5 A3 HRITZRERERAS LAB
ZRRIRBER ARAREBIRASEHE(TRAZHE])
WR2013F6 A3HARKR S R(NB-THRERE
BAR00SETZEEITRABITRNEHA—KRE

BERR 5 (DEIBE BITIRA © Bt - BIREETE
HRHzEEBBRFHEEREHRDZEHBRAR
1.00%8 7T & 5 B {8 50.257 7T 2 £ B R A% 17 T B
1,258 TCHIR ZE0.258 7T (i)t ERAHIREE 2
EREREADNACERFEER  (WVERRETE
BHAR (D 7 40 5 AR B AR T 1B 820,257 7T 2 A48 IR AR

(/\ °

AEBZEHREENEEEAE AHE QR 2K
PEEBHARREAKBHBAR ZKEMET
ZBENEEZ S

P E ARKAMBE([HEDINERERBER A
BRZHBE  ARBZH lW%’Aﬂ‘EEﬁﬁﬁﬁlﬁii

- BITA DR ZEERBAEE REEHEE
& (5 [FRUAE AR )  AERBATEE B

fERR E—FREL ZER » WA ERRERTEM
HAEZBEATEREMERZRE - bEERESHE
FRRABRATRRFIL A 2 B T IR Al B A INE AR 2 A

BEM 2 ME R FRA M BRER 2 — 87 -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mAEBEERER

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z201643 31 H (- F &

2016 2015
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
k3 TERT FET
Cash flows from operating activities REEEXBZRERE
Profit/(loss) for the year AEERF/ (BE)
- Continuing operations —FEREER (141,211) (209,686)
- Discontinued operations —BRIEES 50,111 (35,248)
(91,100) (244,934)
Adjustments for: BNFIRIR A%
Interest income on bank deposits RITE I BHA 8 (1,112) (1,364)
Interest income on loan receivables FERE RS WA (1,147) =
Dividend income BREWA 8 (24) (410)
Finance cost RMEKA 10 30,774 40,801
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - BEMRETE 11,18 3,546 18,277
Written off of property, plant and equipment M - R KR 1,268 -
Amortisation of intangible assets B EESH 11,20 6,170 20,716
Equity settled share-base transaction NEREEARD &
HERzR5 35,564 27,590
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments BHENAERE 19 - 119
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HE M B A B (54,468) (2,186)
Gain arising from bargain purchase ESE¢-len - (93,087)
Fair value change on financial assets KEGEATEARZ
at fair value through profit or loss WBEELATEE 11 436 703
Share of results of an associate = YNG E S 732 -
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE  BERSEH
plant and equipment B8 - 4,101
Reversal of impairment loss recognised B 5 YRR IER Z
in respect of trade receivables BB EE R 25 - (3,756)
Written-off of inventories FEMH 23 3,493 -
Provision for impairment loss on EIRRERZ
trade receivables REEERE 25 - 2,199
Provision for impairment loss on B EEREBERE
intangible assets 20 26,557 168,342
Provision for impairment loss on property, mE - BB RRERERE
plant and equipment BiE 11,18 4,156 -
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets HELBRARZHBEE
through profit or loss FSEIE 24,375 9,804
Purchase of financial assets at fair value BECEREATEARY
through profit or loss TREE (29,623) -

Asia Resources Holdings Limited 351 & RIZHA R A A



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mAEBEERER

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z201643 31 H (- F &

2016 2015
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
BisE THET FAET
Operating cash flows before movements HEEREER L
in working capital HERENE (40,403) (53,085)
Decrease in inventories FERD - 13,878
Increase in property under development BRI (10,536) (143,733)
Decrease/(increase) in trade and bills receivables BHRWERREREZE
mD/(m) 55,329 (30,068)
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments, deposits BNRIE -« ZE KA KR
and other receivables SO /R (55,476) 41,877
Increase in loan receivables JE U R (40,638) =
Decrease in amount due from non-controlling JEUSE TR AR AR R AR IR A
shareholders - 596
Increase in amount due from an associate JFE LSz Bl 2 R IR IE N (4,082) =
(Decrease)/increase in trade and BHRNER N ENSZE
bills payables CR),/ 1 m (52,539) 50,381
(Decrease)/increase in other payables HinERR kT E A
and accruals ),/ #m (12,590) 158,633
Increase in receipts in advance U ER A 2R3 N 97,800 -
Decrease in amount due to FANERE G S
non-controlling shareholders B (389) -
Increase in tax payable FER BRI N - 368
Cash (used in)/generated from operations LEEK(TA)/EERE (63,524) 38,847
Income tax paid BIFTEE 541 -
Net cash (used in)/generated from IR (FTH) /S
operating activities e FE (62,983) 38,847
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mAEBEERER

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z201643 31 H (- F &

2016 2015
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Btk TER THET
Investing activities REEH
Deposit for acquisition of subsidiaries W E AR 2R - (10,089)
Deposit for acquisition of equity interest W E 2 e - (131,164)
Deposit for acquisition of investment properties WEREMEZ ZE (395,138) (191,592)
Deposit for acquisition of fixed assets WEETEEZZS 26,230 (24,762)
Net cash out flow from acquisition REWEHRBLRZ
of subsidiaries Rent#R (18,617) (312,574)
Interest received BRI S 2,259 1,364
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BENE  BEREHE (2,693) 4,957)
Dividend income REHA 24 410
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - WiFE REE
plant and equipment S E - 173
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries HEMB L RS HE 48,556 989
Net cash used in investing activities REBRBSAARFH (339,379) (672,202)
Financing activities A& EE
Interest paid BRHE (13,142) (30,118)
New bank borrowings raised FERITEE - 60,929
Repayment of bank borrowing BERTEE - (60,438)
Repayment of short-term interest EBEEHHEEE
bearing borrowings - (3,022)
Net proceeds from issue of convertible BITBRRER E5
notes/bonds PSS IEFR 426,234 599,748
Net proceeds from placing of new shares FREFTMR (0 P15 SRR F 58 137,170 =
Net proceeds from share subscription BROREBFEFIREE 476,650 -
Net cash outflow on acquisition of an associate s E ARRER L
R (371,476) -
Issue of ordinary shares upon ERETERETTRR
exercise of share options 3,115 2,006
Net cash generated from financing activities RERHELE RS TE 658,551 569,105

62 AsiaResources Holdings Limited S5/ &RIER AR AR



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
meEHERER

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z201643 31 H (- F &

2016 2015
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
My zE FET TAT
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and BeRBESEWEM/
cash equivalents () F58 256,189 (64,250)
Cash and cash equivalents at RENzB e LB EEY
beginning of the year 339,907 400,837
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes AN P 3 S B =7 28 (89,290) 3,320
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year RERZIRE MREEEY 506,806 339,907
Analysis of balances of cash and cash equivalents ~ R&RBGEEMZ EH DT
Bank balances and cash RITESHRES 505,485 337,495
Bank balances and cash included in assets STADBEABIELESE
classified as held for sales ZIRTERRE S 1,321 2,412
506,806 339,907

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these BEMT 2 isE B SR AW BmRER 2 —3 5
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
N R R EaY N EES

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #;Z=2016F3 831 H I &

Asia Resources Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company with
limited liability. Its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The addresses
of the registered office and principal place of business of the
Company are disclosed in the corporate information of its

annual report.

The Company acts as an investment holding company, while
its subsidiaries (hereinafter the Company and its subsidiaries
are collectively referred to as the “Group”) are principally
engaged in property sales operations in the People’s Republic
of China (the “"PRC"), engaged in iron ore exploration,
exploitation and trading operations in Indonesia, and
engaged in investing and financing operations in Hong Kong.

According to the register of substantial shareholder maintained
by the Company, at 31 March 2016, Xi’an Communication
Energy (Hongkong) Co., Limited is substantial shareholder of
the Company.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (HK$), which is the same as the functional
currency of the Company.

Asia Resources Holdings Limited 351 & RIZHA R A A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

are MR R MY AT

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z201653 A31H I F &

2. APPLICATION OF THE NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS AND NEW HONG KONG
COMPANIES ORDINANCE (CAP. 622)

(a) New and amended Hong Kong Financial
Report Standards ("HKFRSs"”) adopted by

the Group

The Group has applied the following amendments of
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS"”) and Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") for the first time in the current year:

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2010 - 2012 Cycle
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs

2011 - 2013 Cycle
Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans: Employee
Contributions

The application of these amendments in the current
year has had no material effect on the amounts reported
in these consolidated financial statements and/or
disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

#a] MANER] BB 75
YR 7 FE A LA R B
& (£ 6225 )

£+

A

R
/N

(a) AEERA =] KB

BRMBHREER (FEBY
BHREER 1)
AEBEERAFE B RERANUTH
BAEgHMAS([ERAEMA
g EMzEAEHER([EES
AR D RBFEEMHEHREEN(TE
AU BREER])

BENBREER 0105220125 BH BARY

(30 BREER 7 EE
EHEBREER  011ER0135 B B8
(3D BREEN FE N

BREIEN  EERME BRER
F195R(E7T)

RAEERRALSETHESRS
BHB/RAEHR 2 SER,/JSF
RERBRRARS 2 HEEML
BEAYE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

sre SRR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z201653 A31H I F &

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS AND NEW HONG KONG
COMPANIES ORDINANCE (CAP. 622)

(CONTINUED)

(b) Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised standards, amendments and interpretations that
have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKAS 1 (Amendments)
HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 (Amendments)

HKAS 16 and HKAS 41 (Amendments)

HKAS 27 (Amendments)
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28
(Amendments)

HKFRS 11 (Amendments)

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 14

HKFRS 15

HKFRS 16

HKFRSs (Amendments)

Disclosure Initiative'

Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation
and Amortisation’

Agriculture: Bearer Plants'

Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements'
Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor
and its Associate or Joint Venture®

Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidated
Exception'

Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint
Operations'

Financial Instruments®

Regulatory Deferral Accounts®

Revenue form Contracts with Customers®

Leases’

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle'

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016,

with earlier application permitted

Effective for first annual HKFRS financial statements beginning on or

after 1 January 2016, with earlier application permitted

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018,

with earlier application permitted

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019,

with earlier application permitted

The mandatory effective date will be determined

66 AsiaResources Holdings Limited  Z2iM & /RIZAR AR A ]
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(b) EEMEHKRERZEBY
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BREHERENR(BT) ZEF
BRSTEAR6%R BE: LELEY
BReHERBNR(ET)
BRGTEAENR(ET) ?%jﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁé;ﬁ‘
BEMBREENROER  RAZEABEALGRE
YRR P Zﬁ%ﬂjﬂ
h&s
BRMBREENE0E . REARR:ERGALAR
BRUBREENZGER  ZOHMER
BReHERIZNR(BT)

ERMBASENENE  WEAREEEEDE
(7) HRE

BAUBASRAZE  MRIR

ERNBREENEUSE  EEELER

BRMBREEARE  REEPANLME

BRMBREENS Y AR

BEAUBASRAET)  0125ENUEERE
ERBREENLER
!

g M20165F1 A1 B sk 2 & 58 2 FE 8
AR - AJRFER

2 R2016F1 A1 Bk 2 BB RIERS
MR E LR 2 B FEMBHRE

X AIREEA

E 201841 A1 8 sk 2 & FtA 2 FE 4
AR - AR EA

g 201941 A1 B sk 2 &R 2 FE 5
AR - AR ER

5 B EMAHMAGEE



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
N R R EaY N EES

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z201653 A31H I F &

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2. HE RS R B ERE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING R ERANIHFEANT
STANDARDS AND NEW HONG KONG &0 (F622F) (&)

COMPANIES ORDINANCE (CAP. 622)
(CONTINUED)

(b) Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs

(continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduced new requirements
for the classification and measurement of financial
assets. HKFRS 9 was subsequently amended in 2010
to include requirements for the classification and
measurement of financial liabilities and for derecognition,
and further amended in 2013 to include the new
requirements for general hedge accounting. Another
revised version of HKFRS 9 was issued in 2014 mainly
to include a) impairment requirements for financial
assets and b) limited amendments to the classification
and measurement requirements by introducing a
“fair value through other comprehensive income”
(FVTOCI) measurement category for certain simple debt
instruments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 & Z201653 A31H I F&E

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS AND NEW HONG KONG
COMPANIES ORDINANCE (CAP. 622)
(CONTINUED)

(b) Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs

(continued)
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described below:

e All recognised financial assets that are within the
scope of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement are subsequently measured
at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt
investments that are held within a business model
whose objective is to collect the contractual cash
flows, and that have contractual cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal outstanding are generally measured at
amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. Debt instruments that are held within a
business model whose objective is achieved both
by collecting contractual cash flows and selling
financial assets, and that have contractual terms of
the financial asset give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding, are
measured at FVTOCI. All other debt investments
and equity investments are measured at their fair
value at the end of subsequent accounting periods.
In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities may make an
irrevocable election to present subsequent changes
in the fair value of an equity investment (that is not
held for trading) in other comprehensive income,
with only dividend income generally recognised in
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z201653 A31H I F &

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS AND NEW HONG KONG
COMPANIES ORDINANCE (CAP. 622)
(CONTINUED)

(b) Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs

(continued)
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

e With regard to the measurement of financial
liabilities designated as at fair value through profit
or loss, HKFRS 9 requires that the amount of
change in the fair value of the financial liability that
is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that
liability is presented in other comprehensive income,
unless the recognition of the effects of changes
in the liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive
income would create or enlarge an accounting
mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair value of
financial liabilities attributable to changes in the
financial liabilities’ credit risk are not subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss. Under HKAS 39, the
entire amount of the change in the fair value of the
financial liability designated as fair value through
profit or loss was presented in profit or loss.

. In relation to the impairment of financial assets,
HKFRS 9 requires an expected credit loss model,
as opposed to an incurred credit loss model under
HKAS 39. The expected credit loss model requires
an entity to account for expected credit losses and
changes in those expected credit losses at each
reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition. In other words, it is no longer
necessary for a credit event to have occurred before
credit losses are recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 & Z201653 A31H I F&E

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2. FI R EEIERE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING YR FEFR R EE N T
STANDARDS AND NEW HONG KONG &0 (F622F) (&)

COMPANIES ORDINANCE (CAP. 622)
(CONTINUED)

(b) Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs (b) EEMEEMRERZE B

(continued)
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

e The new general hedge accounting requirements
retain the three types of hedge accounting.
However, greater flexibility has been introduced
to the types of transactions eligible for hedge
accounting, specifically broadening the types of
instruments that qualify for hedging instruments
and the types of risk components of non-financial
items that are eligible for hedge accounting. In
addition, the effectiveness test has been overhauled
and replaced with the principle of an ‘economic
relationship’. Retrospective assessment of hedge
effectiveness is also no longer required. Enhanced
disclosure requirements about an entity’s risk
management activities have also been introduced.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of HKFRS 9 in the future may have a material
impact on amounts reported in respect of the Group's
financial assets and financial liabilities. Regarding the
Group's financial assets and financial liabilities, it is not
practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of that effect
until a detailed review has been completed.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

In July 2014, HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes
a single comprehensive model for entities to use in
accounting for revenue arising from contracts with
customers. HKFRS 15 will supersede the current revenue
recognition guidance including HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS
11 Construction Contracts and the related Interpretations
when it becomes effective.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
N R R EaY N EES

For the year ended 31 March 2016 & Z201653 A31H I F&E

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2. FI R EEIERE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING YR FEFR R EE N T
STANDARDS AND NEW HONG KONG &0 (F622F) (&)

COMPANIES ORDINANCE (CAP. 622)
(CONTINUED)

(b) Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs (b) EEMEEMRERZE B

(continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(continued)

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised
goods or services to customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the entity expects
to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
Specifically, the Standard introduces a 5-step approach to
revenue recognition:

e Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

e Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

e Step 3: Determine the transaction price

e Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contract

e Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity
satisfies a performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when
(or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
‘control’ of the goods or services underlying the particular
performance obligation is transferred to the customer.
Far more prescriptive guidance has been added in HKFRS
15 to deal with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive
disclosures are required by HKFRS 15.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of HKFRS 15 in the future may have a material
impact on the amounts reported and disclosures made in
the Group's consolidated financial statements. However,
it is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate
of the effect of HKFRS 15 until the Group performs a
detailed review.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2. FI R EEIERE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING YR FEFR R EE N T
STANDARDS AND NEW HONG KONG &0 (F622F) (&)

COMPANIES ORDINANCE (CAP. 622)
(CONTINUED)

(b) Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs

(continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions
of Interests in Joint Operations

The amendments to HKFRS 11 provide guidance on how
to account for the acquisition of a joint operation that
constitutes a business as defined in HKFRS 3 Business
Combinations. Specifically, the amendments state
that the relevant principles on accounting for business
combinations in HKFRS 3 and other standards (e.g. HKAS
12 Income Taxes regarding the recognition of deferred
taxes at the time of acquisition and HKAS 36 Impairment
of Assets regarding impairment testing of a cash-
generating unit to which goodwill on acquisition of a joint
operation has been allocated) should be applied. The
same requirements should be applied to the formation
of a joint operation if and only if an existing business is
contributed to the joint operation by one of the parties
that participate in the joint operation.

A joint operator is also required to disclose the relevant
information required by HKFRS 3 and other standards for
business combinations.

The amendments should be applied prospectively to
acquisitions of interests in joint operations (in which the
activities of the joint operations constitute businesses
as defined in HKFRS 3) occurring from the beginning of
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016. The
directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of these amendments to HKFRS 11 may have an impact
on the Group's consolidated financial statements in future
periods should such transactions arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 & Z201653 A31H I F&E

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2 I RRIEEE A IEHRE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING B 7 FEF AR FE RN T
STANDARDS AND NEW HONG KONG &0 (F622F) (&)

COMPANIES ORDINANCE (CAP. 622)
(CONTINUED)

(b) Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs (b) EEMEEMRERZE B

(continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative

The amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements give some guidance on how to apply the
concept of materiality in practice.

The amendments to HKAS 1 are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016. The
directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of these amendments to HKAS 1 will have
a material impact on the amounts recognised in the
Group's consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 Clarification of
Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation

The amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit entities from
using a revenue-based depreciation method for items
of property, plant and equipment. The amendments
to HKAS 38 introduce a rebuttable presumption that
revenue is not an appropriate basis for amortisation of an
intangible asset. This presumption can only be rebutted
in the following two limited circumstances:

a) when the intangible asset is expressed as a measure
of revenue; or

b) when it can be demonstrated that revenue and
consumption of the economic benefits of the
intangible asset are highly correlated.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2. FI R EEIERE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING YR FEFR R EE N T
STANDARDS AND NEW HONG KONG &0 (F622F) (&)

COMPANIES ORDINANCE (CAP. 622)
(CONTINUED)

(b) Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs

(continued)

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 Clarification of
Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation
(continued)

The amendments apply prospectively for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2016. Currently, the
Group uses the straight-line method for depreciation
and amortisation for its property, plant and equipment,
and intangible assets respectively. The directors of the
Company believe that the straight-line method is the
most appropriate method to reflect the consumption
of economic benefits inherent in the respective assets
and accordingly, the directors of the Company do not
anticipate that the application of these amendments to
HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 will have a material impact on the
Group's consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 41 Agriculture:
Bearer Plants

The amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 41 define a
bearer plant and require biological assets that meet
the definition of a bearer plant to be accounted for as
property, plant and equipment in accordance with HKAS
16, instead of HKAS 41. The produce growing on bearer
plants continues to be accounted for in accordance with
HKAS 41.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that
the application of these amendments to HKAS 16 and
HKAS 41 will have a material impact on the Group's
consolidated financial statements as the Group is not
engaged in agricultural activities.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2. FI R EEIERE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING YR FEFR R EE N T
STANDARDS AND NEW HONG KONG &0 (F622F) (&)

COMPANIES ORDINANCE (CAP. 622)
(CONTINUED)

(b) Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs (b) EEMEEMRERZE B

(continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments to HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial
Statements and HKAS 28 Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures deal with situations where there is a sale
or contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture. Specifically, the amendments
state that gains or losses resulting from the loss of control
of a subsidiary that does not contain a business in a
transaction with an associate or a joint venture that is
accounted for using the equity method, are recognised
in the parent’s profit or loss only to the extent of the
unrelated investors’ interests in that associate or joint
venture. Similarly, gains and losses resulting from the
remeasurement of investments retained in any former
subsidiary (that has become an associate or a joint
venture that is accounted for using the equity method) to
fair value are recognised in the former parent’s profit or
loss only to the extent of the unrelated investors’ interests
in the new associate or joint venture.

The amendments should be applied prospectively to
transactions occurring in annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2016. The directors of the Company
anticipate that the application of these amendments
to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 may have an impact on the
Group's consolidated financial statements in future
periods should such transactions arise.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2. FI R EEIERE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING YR FEFR R EE N T
STANDARDS AND NEW HONG KONG &0 (F622F) (&)

COMPANIES ORDINANCE (CAP. 622)
(CONTINUED)

(b) Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs (b) EEMEERERZE B
(continued) R 2R ()
Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS BB EERE 105 - &EE
28 Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation BHREERE 128 R & BEFER

Exception B28% (165T) REBERE - BHFS
ABRZBISME R
The amendments to HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial ERMEREERFE105 [ 425 B

Statements, HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities and HKAS 28 Investments in Associates and

Bk BERMBRELENF2
HIREREMER S | BB

Joint Ventures clarify that the exemption from preparing
consolidated financial statements is available to a parent
entity that is a subsidiary of an investment entity, even if
the investment entity measures all its subsidiaries at fair
value in accordance with HKFRS 10. The amendments
also clarify that the requirement for an investment entity
to consolidate a subsidiary, whose main purpose is to
provide services and activities that are related to the
investment activities of the investment entity parent,
applies only to subsidiaries that are not investment
entities themselves.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of these amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12
and HKAS 28 will have a material impact on the Group's
consolidated financial statements as the Group is not
an investment entity and does not have any subsidiary,
associate or joint venture that qualifies as an investment
entity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2 I RRIEEE A IEHRE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING B2 FERARFE RN T
STANDARDS AND NEW HONG KONG &5 (6222 ) (48)

COMPANIES ORDINANCE (CAP. 622)
(CONTINUED)

(b) Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs

(continued)
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012 — 2014 Cycle

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle
include a number of amendments to various HKFRSs,
which are summarised below.

The amendments to HKFRS 5 introduce specific guidance
in HKFRS 5 for when an entity reclassifies an asset (or
disposal group) from held for sale to held for distribution
to owners (or vice versa), or when held-for-distribution
accounting is discontinued. The amendments apply
prospectively.

The amendments to HKFRS 7 provide additional guidance
to clarify whether a servicing contract is continuing
involvement in a transferred asset for the purpose of the
disclosures required in relation to transferred assets and
clarify that the offsetting disclosures (introduced in the
amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosure — Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities issued in December 2011
and effective for periods beginning on or after 1 January
2013) are not explicitly required for all interim periods.
However, the disclosures may need to be included in
condensed interim financial statements to comply with
HKAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

are MR R MY AT

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z201653 A31H I F &

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS AND NEW HONG KONG
COMPANIES ORDINANCE (CAP. 622)
(CONTINUED)

(b) Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs

(continued)

The amendments to HKAS 19 clarify that the high quality
corporate bonds used to estimate the discount rate for
post-employment benefits should be issued in the same
currency as the benefits to be paid. These amendments
would result in the depth of the market for high quality
corporate bonds being assessed at currency level. The
amendments apply from the beginning of the earliest
comparative period presented in the financial statements
in which the amendments are first applied. Any initial
adjustment arising should be recognised in retained
earnings at the beginning of that period.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of these will have a material effect on the
Group's consolidated financial statements.

(c) New Hong Kong Companies Ordinance

(Cap. 622)

The requirements of Part 9 “Accounts and Audit” of the
new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) came
into operation during the financial year, as a result, there
are change to presentation and disclosures of certain

information in the financial statements.

In addition, the Company has adopted the amendments
to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”) issued by the
Stock Exchange relating to the disclosure of financial
information with reference to the new Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622). The main impact relate
to the presentation and disclosure of certain information
in the financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
N R R EaY N EES

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #;Z=2016F3 831 H I &

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Listing Rules and by the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance (“CQO").

The provisions of the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622) regarding preparation of accounts and directors’
reports and audits became effective for the Company for
the financial year ended 31 December 2015. Further, the
disclosure requirements set out in the Listing Rules regarding
annual accounts have been amended with reference to
the new CO and to streamline with HKFRSs. Accordingly
the presentation and disclosure of information in the
consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended
31 December 2015 have been changed to comply with these
new requirements. Comparative information in respect of
the financial year ended 31 December 2014 are presented or
disclosed in the consolidated financial statements based on
the new requirements. Information previously required to be
disclosed under the predecessor CO or Listing Rules but not
under the new CO or amended Listing Rules are not disclosed
in these consolidated financial statements.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments, which are measured at fair values, as explained in
the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consolidation given exchange for assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
N R R EaY N EES

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #;Z=2016F3 831 H I &

Basis of preparation (continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a
basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are
within the scope of HKFRS 2, leasing transactions that are
within the scope of HKAS 17, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value in HKAS 2 or value in use in HKAS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

e level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

e Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

e level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
N R R EaY N EES

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #;Z=2016F3 831 H I &

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities (including
structured entities) controlled by the Group. Control is
achieved when the Company:

© has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

e has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with the Group's accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
N R R EaY N EES

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #;Z=2016F3 831 H I &

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in
profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value,
except that:

e deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or assets
related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised
and measured in accordance with HKAS 12 and HKAS 19
respectively;

e liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangement of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquire are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2 at the
acquisition date; and

e assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 are measured in
accordance with that Standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the
net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after reassessment,
the net of the acquisition date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase
gain.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
sre SRR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #;Z=2016F3 831 H I &

Business combinations (continued)
Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation may be initially
measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of
measurement basis is made on a transaction by-transaction
basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are measured
at their fair value or, when applicable, on the basis specified in
another HKFRS.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a
business combination includes assets or liabilities resulting
from a contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent
consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair value and
included as part of the consideration transferred in a business
combination. Changes in the fair value of the contingent
consideration that qualify as measurement period adjustments
are adjusted retrospectively, with the corresponding
adjustments made against goodwill. Measurement period
adjustments are adjustments that arise from additional
information obtained during the “measurement period”
(which cannot exceed one year from the acquisition date)
about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition
date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that do not qualify as measurement
period adjustments depends on how the contingent
consideration is classified. Contingent consideration that is
classified as equity is not remeasured at subsequent reporting
dates and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity. Contingent consideration that is classified as an asset
or a liability is remeasured at subsequent reporting dates
in accordance with the corresponding gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #;Z=2016F3 831 H I &

Business combinations (continued)

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group's previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date
when the Group obtains control) and the resulting gain or loss,
if any, is recognised in profit or loss. Amounts arising from
interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date that have
previously been recognised in other comprehensive income
are reclassified to profit or loss where such treatment would be
appropriate if that interest were disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts
for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those
provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement
period, and additional assets or liabilities are recognised,
to reflect new information obtained about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition date that, if
known, would have affected the amounts recognised at that
date.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for
goods sold in the normal course of business, net of discounts
and sales related taxes.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when goods are
delivered and title has passed.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying
amount.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholder’s right to receive payment has been established
(provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the amount of income can be measure
reliably).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
N R R EaY N EES

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #;Z=2016F3 831 H I &

Revenue recognition (continued)

Net gain/loss on financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss is recognised on the transaction date when the relevant
contracts are executed.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less subsequent depreciation and
any identified impairment loss at the end of the reporting
period.

Construction in progress represents property, plant and
equipment in the course of construction for production or
for its own use purposes. Construction in progress is carried
at cost less any recognised impairment loss. Construction in
progress is classified to the appropriate category of property,
plant and equipment when completed and ready for intended
use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other
property assets, commences when the assets are ready for
their intended use.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of other
property, plant and equipment over their estimated useful
lives after considering their estimated residual values, using
the straight-line method, at the following rates per annum:

Buildings 4%
Furniture, fixtures and office
20% — 25%
20% — 50%
12 /2% — 30%
62/3% — 30%

equipment
Leasehold improvements
Motor vehicles
Plant and machinery

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item) is included in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income in the year in which the
item is derecognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
N R R EaY N EES

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #;Z=2016F3 831 H I &

Mining right

Mining right is stated at cost less accumulated amortisation
and impairment losses. The mining right is amortised using
the unit-of-production method based on the total proven and
probable mineral reserves, which is reviewed at least at each
end of the reporting period.

Interests in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but
is not control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in the consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting, except when the investment,
or a portion thereof, is classified as held for sale, in which case
it is accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5. Under the
equity method, interests in associates is initially recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise Group's share of the profit or
loss and other comprehensive income of the associate. When
the Group's share of losses of an associate exceeds its interest
in that associate (which includes any long-term interests that,
in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in
the associate), the Group discontinues recognising its share
of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to
the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
N R R EaY N EES

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #;Z=2016F3 831 H I &

Interests in associates (continued)

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the equity
method from the date on which the investee becomes an
associate. On acquisition of the investment in an associate, any
excess of the cost of the investment over the Group's share of
the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the
investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included within the
carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the Group'’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities over the cost of the investment, after reassessment,
is recognised immediately in profit or loss in the period in
which the investment is acquired.

The requirements of HKAS are applied to determine whether
it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect
to the Group's interest in associate. When necessary, the
entire carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill)
is tested for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 as a
single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher
of value in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its
carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms part
of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that
impairment loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36
to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the
Group, profits and losses resulting from the transactions with
associate are recognised in the Group's consolidated financial
statements only to the extent of interests in associate that are
not related to the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
N R R EaY N EES

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #;Z=2016F3 831 H I &

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Impairment of mining right

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for mining right at each reporting date. Mining
right is tested for impairment when there are indicators that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable. When value in
use calculations are undertaken, management must estimate
the expected future cash flows from the asset or cash-
generating unit and choose a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present values of those cash flows.

Expected useful lives of Mining Right and

Mineral Reserves

The Group’s management has determined the estimated
useful lives of its mining right based on the proven and
probable mineral reserves.

Amortisation rate is determined based on estimated proven
and probable mineral reserve quantities with reference to the
independent technical assessment report. The capitalised
costs of the mining right are amortised using the unit-of
production method. Any change to the estimated proven and
probable mineral reserves will affect the amortisation charge
of the mining right.

Proven and probable mineral reserve estimates are updated
at regular basis taking into account production and technical
information about the mines. In addition, as prices and cost
levels change from year to year, the estimate of proven
and probable mineral reserves also changes. This change is
considered a change in estimate for accounting purposes and
is reflected on a prospective basis in relation to amortisation
rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
N R R EaY N EES

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #;Z=2016F3 831 H I &

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except while
another systematic basis is more representative of the time
pattern in which economic benefit from the leased asset are
consumed. Contingent rentals a rising under operating lease
are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are

incurred.

Leasehold land use rights

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for
as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease payment”
in the consolidated statement of financial position and is
amortised over the lease term on straight-line basis.

Foreign currencies

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars, which is the Company’s functional and
presentation currency. Each entity in the Group determines
its own functional currency and items included in the
financial statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded
by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency
rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in the income statement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
N R R EaY N EES

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #;Z=2016F3 831 H I &

Foreign currencies (continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair
value was determined. The gain or loss arising on translation
of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated
in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change
in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference on the
item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income or profit or loss is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries,
jointly-controlled entities and associates are currencies other
than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of the reporting
period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated
into the presentation currency of the Company at the
exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period
and their income statements are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates
of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas
subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for
the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
N R R EaY N EES

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #;Z=2016F3 831 H I &

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part
of the cost of those assets. Capitalisation of such borrowing
costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on
the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Retirement benefits costs

Retirement benefits scheme

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans
(state-managed retirement benefits schemes/the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme) are charged as an expense when
employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
"MPF Scheme"”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for those employees employed
under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance. The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution
scheme, the assets of which are held in separate trustee
administered funds.

Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees
are each required to make contributions to the scheme at
5% of the employees’ relevant income, with the employers’
contributions subject to a cap monthly relevant income of
HK$30,000. The Group's contributions to the scheme are
expensed as incurred are vested in accordance with the
scheme's vesting scales. Where employees leave the scheme
prior to the full vesting of the employer’s contributions,
the amount of forfeited contributions is used to reduce the
contributions payable by the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
N R R EaY N EES

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #;Z=2016F3 831 H I &

Retirement benefits costs (continued)

Retirement benefits scheme (continued)

Pursuant to the regulations of the relevant authorities in the
PRC, the Group participates in the relevant social retirement
benefit schemes (the “PRC Schemes”) whereby the Group
is required to contribute to the PRC Schemes to fund the
retirement benefits of the eligible employees. Contributions
made to the PRC Schemes are calculated based on certain
percentages of the applicable payroll costs as stipulated
under the requirements in the PRC. The relevant authorities
of the PRC are responsible for the entire pension obligations
payable to the retired employees. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the PRC Schemes is to pay the ongoing
required contributions under the PRC Schemes.

The retirement benefit schemes contribution represents gross
contributions by the Group to the PRC Schemes operated by
the relevant authorities of the PRC.

Share options scheme

The Company operates a share options scheme for the
purpose of recognition of significant contribution of and
for the provision of incentives to any directors, employees
(whether full-time or part-time), consultants, customers,
suppliers, agents, partners or advisors of or contractors
to the Group or affiliates. The fair value of share options
granted to employee is recognised as an employee cost with
a corresponding increase in a capital reserve within equity.
Where the employees have to meet vesting conditions before
becoming unconditionally entitled to the share options, the
total estimated fair value of share options is spread over the
vesting period, taking into account the probability that the
options will vest.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
N R R EaY N EES

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #;Z=2016F3 831 H I &

Retirement benefits costs (continued)

Share options scheme (continued)

During the vesting period, the number of share options
that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any adjustment to the
cumulative fair value recognised in prior years is charged/
credited to the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income for the year of the review, unless the original
employee expenses qualify for recognition as an asset, with a
corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve. On vesting
date, the amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to
reflect the actual number of share options that vest (with a
corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve) except where
forfeiture is only due to not achieving vesting conditions
that relate to the market price of the Company’s shares. The
equity amount is recognised in the capital reserve until either
the option is exercised (when it is transferred to the share
premium account) or the option expires (when it is released
directly to retained profits).

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income because
it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
N R R EaY N EES

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #;Z=2016F3 831 H I &

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in
the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences
and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than
in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset realized, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
N R R EaY N EES

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #;Z=2016F3 831 H I &

Taxation (continued)

Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is
included in the accounting for the business combination.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired
in a business combination is the fair value at the date of
acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed
to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite
lives are subsequently amortised over the useful economic life
and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication
that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset
with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial
year end.

Research and development expenditure
All research costs are charged to the income statement as
incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products
is capitalised and deferred only when the Group can
demonstrate the technical feasibility of completing the
intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale, its
intention to complete and its ability to use or sell the asset,
how the asset will generate future economic benefits, the
availability of resources to complete the project and the ability
to measure reliably the expenditure during the development.
Product development expenditure which does not meet these
criteria is expensed when incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
N R R EaY N EES

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #;Z=2016F3 831 H I &

Intangible assets (continued)

Research and development expenditure (continued)
Deferred development costs are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised using the straight line
basis over the commercial lives of the underlying products
not exceeding five to seven years, commencing from the date
when the products are put into commercial production.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with
finite useful lives to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis
of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating
units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis
can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible
assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment at
least annually, and whenever there is an indication that the
asset may be impaired.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the weighted average method.
Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
N R R EaY N EES

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #;Z=2016F3 831 H I &

Provision

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal
or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of
the reporting period of the future expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage of
time is included in finance costs in the income statement.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified into financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL") and loans and
receivables. The classification depends on the nature and
purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time
of initial recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
N R R EaY N EES

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #;Z=2016F3 831 H I &

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of
the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to
the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments other than those financial assets classified as at
FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL
Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the financial
asset is either held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL.

A financial asset is classified as held-for-trading if:

® it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling
in the near future; or

e itis a part of an identified portfolio of financial
instruments that the Group manages together and has a
recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

e itis a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any
gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in
profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
incorporates any dividend or interest earned on the financial
asset and is included in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
N R R EaY N EES

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #;Z=2016F3 831 H I &

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. At each end of the reporting period subsequent
to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including trade
and bills receivables, deposits and other receivables, loan
receivables, amount due from an associate and bank balances
and cash) are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any impairment.

Impairment of loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are assessed for indicators of
impairment at each end of the reporting period. Loans and
receivables are impaired where there is objective evidence
that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition, the estimated future cash flows have been
affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

e  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or

e default or delinquency in interest or principal payments;
or

® it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

e the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when there is
objective evidence that the asset is impaired, and is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at
the original effective interest rate.

B T A (&)

MBEE (&)

B R EWSR

B YR IR T A Bl TE ok AT EEE 5K
miE SR REIFNTERBKE
E - RUTHRRZERERK - BN
NEMFR(BRERYEE SRR EE
BEeREMRBKERNR - BRER - B
—REVERRIFR - A RIRTTAESRIIER
) AT BRI 2R 12 58 5 X AN Rl 2= AT
BARK -

B R WA B E
EXRREFERERERRIEES
MEDR - AP HERELE-BAXZ
HEHMATBEBRBE R EFARRE
REEXBTE  MERREYRFIEAD
AE o

BEZEBERERE

o ETAIRZEFHEERWERE
B3

K>

o REEBNKEEEEMNSHA
"

e [ERABAREBREENMEE
A1

. BEEEERYTSREYREED
TEHE -

HEXBRBEEREELTRBE IR
BaERRERE  YREEZREE
RERERMEBRZEFEREADR
BZREZERFNE -

Annual Report 2016 Fii



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #;Z=2016F3 831 H I &

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of loans and receivables (continued)

The carrying amount of the loans and receivables is reduced
by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade and other receivables, where the carrying
amount is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are
recognised in profit or loss. When a receivable is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited to profit or loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment losses was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment
not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the group entity after deducting all
of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
N R R EaY N EES

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #;Z=2016F3 831 H I &

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)
Convertible notes

Convertible notes issued by the Company that contain both
the conversion option components are classified separately
into respective items on initial recognition. A conversion
option that will be settled by the exchange of a fixed amount
of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of the
Company’s own equity instruments is classified as an equity
instrument.

On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability component
is determined using the prevailing market interest of similar
non-convertible debts. In subsequent periods, the liability
component of the convertible notes is carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method. The equity
component, representing the option to convert the liability
component into ordinary shares of the Company, will remain
in equity until the embedded option is exercised (in which
case the balance stated in capital reserve will be transferred
to share premium). Where the option remains unexercised at
the expiry date, the balance stated in capital reserve will be
released to the retained profits. No gain or loss is recognised
in profit or loss upon conversion or expiration of the option.

For the convertible notes issued in connection to the
acquisition of assets and liabilities through acquisition of
subsidiary, the conversion option component is recognised at
fair value and included in equity, taking into account that the
counterparty must forfeit the right to received cash in order
to receive equity instrument. For other convertible notes, the
difference between the gross proceeds of the issue of the
convertible notes and the fair value assigned to the liability
component, representing the conversion option for the holder
to covert the notes into equity, is included in equity (capital
reserve).

M T A (%)
BIBEERRETAE)

GEJES
ARRMETRELREEBD 2 A
BREHRNSERBEEEIBESH
HE - BUBETEREERS —BHBKE
ERRARABETHE 2 AGBATA
FREHZ SRR DERBATE -

RYIFZHERE - AEHY 22 FETIR

BUGERBBRER < RITHISHNXE
E o RERHE  TRRERZBES
D ERAERNERIZEHEN AT AR - #
mat D (B A ERSD LR RA QR ER
B S BTN EDEA  EEHRAR
HIREITE (PRI BER N EANREERET
ZREBBBBRERMEE) L - Wi
REmBEDARITE - AIEARHEERER
Pz SRR E R A o R HREE
Sk JE i B I eSSBS B E s N AR

7
e

RERBKRBHBARMKBEEERAR
PRI 2 AR BT - LM
IR R FERER M AREA - Aa
KX 5875 A RKRIER & 2 7 F AU
BRATA - iEMAIRREEMS
BT MBRRIREZ IS RIRA R T
BEAD (AFAEABERLBRBEAZ
SRR 2 A ER 2 ZR IR A s
(BEAREEIA -

Annual Report 2016 Fii



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
N R R EaY N EES

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #;Z=2016F3 831 H I &

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities (including trade payables, other
payables and accruals and amount due to a non-controlling
shareholder) are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
through the expected life of the financial liability or where
appropriate, a short period to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group continues to recognise the asset
to the extent of its continuing involvement and recognises an
associated liability.

If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises
a collateralized borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset's carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative
gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
N R R EaY N EES

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #;Z=2016F3 831 H I &

Financial instruments (continued)

Derecognition (continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety,
the Group allocates the previous carrying amount of the
financial asset between the part it continues to recognise, and
the part it no longer recognises on the basis of the relative
fair values of those parts on the date of the transfer. The
difference between the carrying amount allocated to the part
that is no longer recognised and the sum of the consideration
received for the part no longer recognised and any cumulative
gain or loss allocated to it that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss. A
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is allocated between the part that
continues to be recognised and the part that is no longer
recognised on the basis of the relative fair values of those
parts.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
they expire. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held
at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments
with original maturities of three months or less, and bank
overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in
current liabilities on the consolidated statement of financial
positions.

MBETAGE)

BUE R (&)

BREmBUBRERIN R LRI HE
ER - ARESMEEECBEREE
RENERREB2E 2 D KT HHE
RZBozH  BEBZMENEZAH
ZHEERFEELDE - THERIS
BofkzREERZBICHRERE
B E 2 W et SR I 5 Ao < (BT R
ARSI E R AMENZERE - TINE
sAER - CREMEEKREER R
At RSB R IREEER S D LT H
ERBD 2 HARAFEEZMERED
DB °

EREEANKE B EERER - BUEX
M AEETERUEHRAMK A
B BURR M BABEZREERD
MRENREZFENZESGRIEETHE

N
5
e

RERAESESEY
ReRRLESENBETFERS B
ARR 2 RITFER - RARTEB=(E
AzEfERBIEESERE RIRITE
¥ o RITEXRGEMBRARARE
BEZERH2 -

Annual Report 2016 Fii



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
N R R EaY N EES

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #;Z=2016F3 831 H I &

Contingent liabilities and assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group. It
can also be a present obligation arising from past events
that is not recognised because it is not probable that outflow
of economic resources will be required or the amount
of obligation cannot be measured reliably. A contingent
liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements. When a change in the
probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow is probable,
they will then be recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past
events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group. A
contingent asset is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes
to the consolidated financial statements when an inflow of
economic benefits is probable. When inflow is virtually certain,
an asset is recognised.

Related parties transactions
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #;Z=2016F3 831 H I &

Related parties transactions (continued)

(b)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions applies:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and
fellow subsidiaries is related to the others);

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of
a group which the other entity is a member);

both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group. If the Group is itself such a
plan, the sponsoring employees are also related to
the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); or

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a

part, provides key management personnel services
to the Group or to the parent of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #;Z=2016F3 831 H I &

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Related parties transactions (continued)
Close family members of an individual are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influence

by, that person in their dealing with the entity.

A transaction is considered to be a related party transaction
when there is a transfer of resources, or obligations between
the Group and a related party, regardless of whether a price is

charged.

Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group's
business, the operations and cash flows of which can be clearly
distinguished from the rest of the Group and which represents
a separate major line of business or geographical area of
operations, or is part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose
of a separate major line of business or geographical area of
operations, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view

to resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon
disposal or when the operation meets the criteria to be
classified as held for sale, if earlier. It also occurs when the

operation is abandoned.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #;Z=2016F3 831 H I &

Discontinued operations (continued)
When operation is classified as discontinued, a single amount
is presented on the face of the profit or loss, which comprises:

—  the post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued operation;
and

—  the post-tax gain or loss recognised on the measurement
to fair value less costs to sell, or on the disposal, of the
assets or disposal group(s) constituting the discontinued
operation.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the consolidated financial statements, are
identified from the financial information provided regularly
to the Group's most senior executive management for
the purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group's various lines of business and
geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar economic
characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature of
products and services, the nature of production processes,
the type of class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are
not individually material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #;Z=2016F3 831 H I &

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held
for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than through continuing
use. This condition is regarded as met only when the sale
is highly probable and the non-current asset (or disposal
group) is available for immediate sale in its present condition.
Management must be committed to the sale, which should be
expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within
one year from the date of classification.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving loss
of control of a subsidiary, all of the assets and liabilities of
that subsidiary are classified as held for sale when the criteria
described above are met, regardless of whether the Group will
retain a non-controlling interest in its former subsidiary after
the sale.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as held
for sale are measured at the lower of their previous carrying
amount and fair value less costs to sell.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #;Z=2016F3 831 H I &

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, management is required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and underlying assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

Note 3 describes that depreciation is provided to write
off the cost of property, plant and equipment over their
estimated useful lives, using straight-line method. The
estimation of useful lives of the depreciable assets is based
on the experience of the Group, and useful lives are reviewed
at each end of the reporting period based on changes in
circumstances.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #;Z=2016F3 831 H I &

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

(continued)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

In accordance with HKAS 16, the Group estimates the useful
lives of property, plant and equipment in order to determine
the amount of depreciation expenses to be recorded. The
useful lives are estimated at the time the asset is acquired
based on historical experience, the expected usage, wear
and tear of the assets, as well as technical obsolescence
arising from changes in the market demands or service output
of the assets. The Group also performs annual reviews on
whether the assumptions made on useful lives continued to
be valid. The Group tests annually whether the assets have
suffered any impairment. The recoverable amount of an asset
or a cash generating unit is determined based on value-in-
use calculations which require the use of assumptions and
estimates.

Income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong and
the PRC. Significant judgment is required in determining
the provision for income taxes. There are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The Group
recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based
on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the
period in which such determination is made.

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of
completion and selling expenses. These estimates are based
on the current market condition and the historical experience
and selling goods of similar nature. It could change significant
as a result of change in market condition. Management will
reassess the estimations at the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #;Z=2016F3 831 H I &

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

(continued)

Estimate of recoverable amounts of assets

The Group tests annually whether the assets have suffered
any impairment. The recoverable amount of an asset or
a cash generating unit is determined based on value-in-
use calculations which require the use of assumptions and
estimates.

Impairment of trade and other receivables

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss, the
Group takes into consideration the estimation of future cash
flows. The amount of the impairment loss is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future
credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition). Where the actual
future cash flows are less than expected, a material impairment
loss may arise. The Group’s maximum exposure to financial
loss due to failure to discharge an obligation by the debtors is
the carrying amount of trade and other receivables as stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position.

Impairment of loan receivables

The policy for impairment loss in respect of loan receivables
of the Group is based on the evaluation of collectability and
ageing analysis of the receivables of loan receivables and
on the management’s judgement. A considerable amount of
judgement is required in assessing the ultimate realisation of
these receivables, including the current creditworthiness and
the past collection history of each customer. If the financial
conditions of the customers of the Group were to deteriorate,
resulting in an impairment of their ability to make payments,
additional allowance maybe required.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
N R R EaY N EES

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #;Z=2016F3 831 H I &

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

(continued)

Impairment of intangible assets

Determine whether intangible assets are impaired requires
estimation of the value in use, The value-in-use calculation
requires the entity to estimate the future cash flows expected
to arise from the cash-generating unit and a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value.

The carrying amount of intangible asset at the end of
the reporting period was approximately HK$Nil (2015:
HK$32,727,000) and impairment loss approximately
HK$26,557,000 (2015: HK$168,342,000) was recognised during
the year.

Measurement of convertible notes/bonds

On the date of issue of convertible notes/bonds, the fair
value is determined using a discount rate determined by an
independent professional valuer to the Group with reference
to market information; and this amount is carried as a long
term liability at fair value at the end of the reporting period in
accordance with the accounting policy stated above.

Valuation of share options

The Binominal Option Pricing Model and Black-Scholes
Option Pricing Model were applied to estimate the fair value
of share options granted by the Company and certain of its
subsidiaries. These pricing models require the input of highly
subjective assumptions, including the volatility of share price.
The changes in input assumptions can materially affect the fair
value estimate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
N R R EaY N EES

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #;Z=2016F3 831 H I &

SA.EXE e EE

5A. Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to stakeholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group's
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which
does not include bank borrowings for the year ended 31
March 2016 (2015: included bank borrowings disclosed
in note 16) and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising issued share capital and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
regularly. As part of this review, the directors consider the
cost of capital and the risks associates with each class of
capital. Based on recommendations of the directors, the
Group will balance its overall capital structure through
new shares issues, as well as the issue of new debt or the
redemption of existing debt.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

are MR R MY AT

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z201653 A31H I F &

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

5A.Capital risk management (continued)
The gearing ratio at the end of the reporting period was

=)

NE=<

A% A

SA.EXEMERE(E)

RFEHRBBELRDT -

as follows:
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THT
Total debts* BE 198,094 290,218
Shareholders’ equity AR M 2 2,047,938 1,080,938
Gearing ratio B &L= 9.67% 26.8%
8 Total debts comprises bank borrowings as detailed in note 16 to the 5 BEBREBERTEE  FERGEUH
consolidated financial statements. RRMITE6
5B. Categories of financial instruments 5B. (1% T B 5|
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THT
Financial assets HBEE
Financial assets at fair value CEBREATFEARZ
through profit or loss B EE 10,632 5,820
Loans and receivables B EWGRIE
(including cash and (BIERE R
cash equivalents) ReEEY) 598,678 390,059
Financial liabilities H%EE
Amortised cost 3 IR 376,742 460,961
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

= PZAN
N

A 75 R R B

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #;Z=2016F3 831 H I &

5C.Financial risk management objectives and

policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade
and bill receivables, loan receivables, prepayments,
deposits and other receivables, financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss, amount due from an
associate, bank balances and cash, trade and other
payables, amount due to non-controlling shareholder
and convertible notes/bonds. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments and the
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner.

Market risk

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that movement
in foreign currency exchange rate which will affect the
Group's financial results and its cash flows. The Group's
operations are mainly in the PRC other than Hong
Kong, and the sales and purchases transactions are
conducted using RMB, as such the foreign currency risk
is minimal. The Group currently has not entered into any
contracts to hedge its foreign currency risk. However, the
management monitors foreign currency exposure and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arise.

Interest rate risk

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk
in relation to variable-rate bank borrowings (note 16) and
bank deposits (see note 28 for details). It is the Group’s
policy to keep its borrowings at floating rate of interests
so as to minimise the fair value interest rate risk. The
Group currently does not have an interest rate hedging
policy. However, the management monitors interest rate
exposure and will consider restructure the Group's credit
facilities should the need arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
N R R EaY N EES

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #;Z=2016F3 831 H I &

5C. Financial risk management objectives and 5C.MERAREREBBERBK

policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

The Group's cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of RMB Benchmark
Lending Rates (“RBLR") arising from the Group’s RMB
denominated borrowings.

Interest rate risk — Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for variable-rate
bank borrowings and bank deposits at the end of the
reporting period. The analysis is prepared assuming bank
balances and the amount of liability outstanding at the
end of the reporting period were held/outstanding for
the whole year. A 50 basis point increase or decrease is
used when reporting interest rate risk internally to key
management personnel and represents management'’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest
rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/lower
and all other variables were held constant, the Group's
profit for the year ended 31 March 2016 would increase/
decrease by HK$Nil (2015: increase/decrease by
HK$305,000). This is mainly attributable to the Group's
exposure to interest rates on its bank borrowings, short-
term interest bearing loan and bank deposits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
N R R EaY N EES

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #;Z=2016F3 831 H I &

5C. Financial risk management objectives and 5C.MERAREREBBERBK

policies (continued)

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from the possibility that the counterparty
to a transaction is unwilling or unable to fulfil its
obligation which results in financial loss. The carrying
amounts of bank balances and cash, trade and other
receivables and loan receivables included in the
consolidated statement of financial position represent the
Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to its
financial assets.

In respect of loan receivables, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination
of credit limits, credit approval and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken for the
recoverable amount. In addition, the Group reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual’s loan receivables
at the end of each reporting period to ensure that
adequate impairment loss are made for irrecoverable
amounts. As at 31 March 2016, based on past experience,
the directors of the Company are of the opinion that no
provision for impairment on individual loans is necessary
in respect of these balances as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and the balances are
still considered fully recoverable.

The Group manages and analyses the credit risk for
each of their new and existing clients before standard
payment terms and conditions are offered. If there is
no independent rating, the Group assesses the credit
quality of the customer based on the customer’s financial
position, past experience and other factors. Individual
risk limits are set based on internal or external ratings in
accordance with limits set by the directors. The utilisation
of credit limits is regularly monitored.

In respect of trade and other receivables, credit
evaluations are performed on all customers requiring
credit over a certain amount. These evaluations focus on
the customer’s past history of making payments when
due and current ability to pay, and take into account
information specific to the customer.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
N R R EaY N EES

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #;Z=2016F3 831 H I &

5C. Financial risk management objectives and 5C.MERAREREBBERBK

policies (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly
by the individual characteristics of each customer and
therefore significant concentrations of credit risk primarily
arises when the Group has significant exposure to
individual customers. At the end of the reporting period,
there was no trade receivables was due from the Group's
largest customer (2015: Nil).

In relation to the Group's deposit with bank, the Group
limits its exposure to credit risk by placing deposits
with financial institution with high credit rating and no
recent history of default. The directors consider that
the Group's credit risk on the bank deposits is low.
Management continues to monitor the position and will
take appropriate action if their ratings are changed. As
at 31 March 2016 and 2015, the Group has no significant
concentration of credit risk in relation to deposit with

bank.

Liquidity risk

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management
rests with the Board of Directors, which has built an
appropriate liquidity risk management framework to meet
the Group's short, medium and long-term funding and
liquidity management requirements. The Group manages
liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking
facilities and reserve borrowing facilities, by continuously
monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and matching
the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

As at 31 March 2016, the Group has short and medium
term bank loan facilities of approximately HK$Nil (31
March 2015: HK$60,929,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
N R R EaY N EES

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #;Z=2016F3 831 H I &

5C. % E e ERE B FERBUER

5C.Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

Liquidity table

The following tables detail the Group's remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The tables have been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on
the earliest date on which the Group can be required to

pay.

Specifically, bank loans with a repayment on demand
clause are included in the earliest time band regardless
of the probability of the banks choosing to exercise
their rights within one year after the reporting date.
The maturity analysis for other non-derivative financial
liabilities is prepared based on the scheduled repayment
dates.

The tables include both interest and principal cash flows.
To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate curves
at the end of the reporting period.

In addition, the following tables detail the Group's
expected maturity for its non-derivative financial
assets. The tables have been drawn up based on the
undiscounted contractual cash flows of the financial
assets including interest that will be earned on those
assets. The inclusion of information on these non-
derivative financial assets is necessary in order to
understand the Group's liquidity risk management as the
liquidity is managed on a net asset and liability basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #;Z=2016F3 831 H I &

5C. % E e ERE B FERBUER

5C.Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

Liquidity table (continued)

The amounts included below for variable interest rate
instruments for both non-derivative financial assets and
liabilities are subject to change if changes in variable
interest rates different to those estimates of interest rates
determined at the end of the reporting period.

Moreover, the following tables detail the Group's
liquidity analysis for its derivative financial instruments.
The tables have been drawn up based on the
undiscounted contractual net cash inflows and outflows
on derivative instruments that settle on a net basis, and
the undiscounted gross inflows and outflows on those
derivatives that require gross settlement. When amount
payable or receivable is not fixed, the amount disclosed
has been determined by reference to the projected
interest rates as illustrated by the yield curves at the end
of the reporting period. The liquidity analyses for the
Group's derivative financial instruments are prepared
based on the contractual maturities as the management
considers that the contractual maturities are essential for
an understanding of the timing of the cash flows of these
derivatives, which have been entered into for hedging
purposes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
N R R EaY N EES

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z201653 A31H I F &

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 5. /LT E (%)

NE=<

5C. Financial risk management objectives and 5C.MERAREREBBERBK
policies (continued) (48)

Liquidity risk (continued) TETER i (48 )
Liquidity table (continued) RENLSZ (E)

Weighted Total

average carrying

effective Total  amount

interest Within Over undiscounted ~at year

rate Tyear 1-2years 2-5years  S5years cash flows ended

&Y AEHA £X

L3k 15/ 122% 225§ SENE RHERE  AKEE
%  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
TEn TiEn TEn TEn TiEn TiEn

As at 31 March 2016 R2016%3A318

Non-derivative financial assets FITERBEE

Loan receivables I - 40,638 - - - 40,638 40,638

Amount due from an associate E—FBE N 78 - 4,167 - - - 4,167 4,167

Deposits and other receivables k% REMERE - 48,388 - - - 48,388 48,388

Financial assets at fair value BERHRRATEARL

through profit o loss MBEE - 10,632 - - - 10,632 10,632

Bank balances and cash ROEBEES 022 506,597 - - - 506,597 505,485
610422 - - -0 609,310

Non-derivative financial liabilities ~ #{TAHBAE

Trade payables EAEANEH - 8,676 - - - 8,676 8,676

Other payables and accruals NG RETER - 169,972 - - - 169972 169,972

Convertible notes/bonds AREE/B5 15.54 11,145 217,733 - - 228878 198,094
189,793 217,733 - - 407526 376,742
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
N R R EaY N EES

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z201653 A31H I F &

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 5. BT A(E)
5C. Financial risk management objectives and 5C.MERAREREBBERBK
policies (continued) (48)
Liquidity risk (continued) TETER i (48 )
Liquidity table (continued) MBS Z (&)

Weighted Total
average carrying
effective Total amount
interest Within Over  undiscounted at year

rate Tyear  1-2years  2-5years Syears  cash flows ended
T AERE £X

i 157 1526 B5E SFNE ReRE BREE
% HKBOO0  HK$'000  HKS000  HK$'000  HK§'000  HK$000
TEx TR TEx TAL TERL TAL

As at 31 March 2015 R201553A318

Non-derivative financial assets FTAHKEE

Trade and bill receivables EARNESREYZE - B3 - - - B3 45,347

Deposits and other receivables e REBENE = 1211 = = = 1217 1207

Financial assets at fair value through ~ BEHFRATEAEZ

profit or loss HREE - 5,820 - - - 5820 5,820

Bank balances and cash ROEBREES 167 337,495 = = = 337,495 337,495
395,879 - - SN 39581

Non-derivative financial liabilities ~ #{TAHBARE

Trade payables BAENEH - 59,946 - - - 59,946 59,946

Other payables and accruals AR RETER - N3y - - - M N3

Amount due to non-controlling interest S SFRIER TR - 389 - - - 389 389

Convertible notes naRER 12 = 264,699 = = 264,699 229,289
231,672 264,699 - - 496,371 460,961
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #;Z=2016F3 831 H I &

5C. Financial risk management objectives and 5C.MERAREREBBERBK

policies (continued)

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its
investment in listed equity securities. The management
manages this exposure by maintaining a portfolio of
investments with different risk and return profiles. The
Group's equity price risk is mainly concentrated on equity
securities quoted on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. In addition, the management monitors the price
risk and will consider hedging the risk exposure should
the need arise.

Other price risk — Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to equity price risk at the
reporting date.

If equity prices had been 10% higher/lower, the Group's
loss for the year ended 31 March 2016 would increase/
decrease by approximately HK$1,063,000 (2015: increase/
decrease by approximately HK$582,000). This is mainly
due to the changes in fair value of held-for-trading
investments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #;Z=2016F3 831 H I &

5D.Fair value
The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined as follows:

e the fair value of financial assets with standard terms
and conditions and traded on active liquid markets
are determined with reference to quoted market bid
prices; and

e the fair value of other financial assets and financial
liabilities are determined in accordance with
generally accepted pricing models based on
discounted cash flow analysis using prices or rates
from observable current market transactions as
input.

Fair value measurements recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position

The following table provides an analysis of financial
instruments that are measured subsequent to initial
recognition at fair value, grouped into Level 1 to
Level 3 based on the degree to which the fair value is
observable:

Level 1: quoted prices in active markets for the same
instrument (i.e. without modification or
repackaging);

Level 2: quoted prices in active markets for similar
assets or liabilities or other valuation techniques
for which all significant inputs are based on
observable market data; and

Level 3: valuation techniques for which any significant
input are not based on observable market data.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

are MR R MY AT

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z201653 A31H I F &

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 5. BT E(E)
5D.Fair value (continued) 5D. A ¥{E (#&)
Fair value measurements recognised in the consolidated REE BB EEAER 2 A FE
statement of financial position (continued) = (&)
The following table show an analysis of financial TRETEQXFEDREIFTEIDE
instruments recorded at fair value hierarchy: NEEDS B TAES
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—® B B=& Ast
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FHET THET THExT
As at 31 March 2016 "R20165F3H31H
Financial asset at fair G b /N T[]
through profit or loss ABRZ IR EE 10,632 - - 10,632
As at 31 March 2015 20153 A31H
Financial asset at fair G Ent 2N T =]
through profit or loss ARz IS EE 5,820 - = 5,820
For reconciliation of fair value of convertible notes/bonds, HAMRER EH A TFELEE
please refer to note 34. mE  B2HEME34L -
There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 in RWEFERNE —REE —F 2/’
the both years. I SRR -
There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 in the both PR B £F 5 A I AR g 4 A 38 = Aksk
years. EE=E =i
Fair value as at Fair value  Valuation techniques  Significant unobservable
Financial assets RT5IBH2AFE hierarchy  and key inputs inputs
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
BBEE 20165 20155 ATEER MHERGRIERAEE EXTAEEBARE
TET TET
Listed equity securities In Hong Kong In Hong Kong Level 1 Quoted bid pricesinan  N/A
classified as financial assets HK$10,632 HK$5,820 active market
at FVTPL (note 27)
PEREEBREATEARY REE RER £k WEEM S RE A
AR EHRAES 10,6327 5,8207%70
(Hat27)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

sre SRR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z201653 A31H I F &

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

5D.Fair value (continued)
Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities that
are not measured at fair value.

B TE(E)

5D /_\SFE(nE)
W RN FEFE MG EE R
BABEZATFE-

2016 2016 2015 2015
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FERT FAT FAT
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
amount value amount value
AREE A¥E REE NE
Financial liabilities BBaR
Convertible notes/bonds AR EE
&% 198,094 218,642 229,289 43,945
6. SEGMENT INFORMATION DIREF

The Group's operating segments are identification the basis of
internal reports which provides information about components
of the Group. These information are reported to and received
by the chief operating decision maker (“CODM") for the
purpose of resource allocation and performance assessment.

The Group has the following continuing operating segments
during the year. These segments are managed separately.
No operating segments have been aggregated to for the
following reportable segments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

are MR R MY AT

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #;Z=2016F3 831 H I &

(1) For iron ore exploration, exploitation and trading
operations, the CODM regularly reviews the performance
of the iron ore operation in Indonesia. These operations
have been aggregated into a single operating segment
and named “lron ore exploration, exploitation and
trading operations”.

(2) For investing and financing operations, the CODM
regularly reviews the performance of the investing
and financing operations. These operations have been
aggregated into a single operating segment and named
“Investing and financing”.

(3) For property sales operations, the CODM regularly
reviews the performance of the property sales operations.
This operation has been classified into a single operating
segment and name: “Property sales”.

The Group was involved in following segment which was
discontinued during the year ended 31 March 2015.

For manufacturing and sale of pharmaceutical products
operations, the CODM regularly reviews the performance
of the sales revenue from pharmaceutical products.
These operations have been aggregated into a single
operating segment and named “Manufacturing and sales of
pharmaceutical products”.

() HEEHR RRIEZEEM
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HEE2E RS - WELEC AR
RE-—ZENRYGER [EHEHY
K FARMkEZEE]-

2) RERERBEXBNE  TEZLE
REEER R RELREEBH
KB - REXBEAMRER I
BRRE | o B KEDE -

3) HMFHEEXBME » TBEER
REETHERMEHELZENRK
B WBAXBEIBAE—KED
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KEBTIH R TINEREE2015F3 A
BTHIEFEHERIEEEZ HE o

RRETHEE S,
HELBCARRE—ZED
SIEEMHEEER] -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

are MR R MY AT

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z201653 A31H I F &

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
Segment revenues and result
The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and results
by reportable segments:

For the year ended 31 March

Continuing Operations

6. DEBER(E)
TRBRARES
ST AREERTHEDEZRARE
E 2D -

BZE3A3MBLEE

5 BEY
Iron ore exploration,
exploitation and Investing
trading operations and financing Property sales Unallocated Consolidation
EROR  RRR
BAEE REREE ES AR Fa

2016 015 2016 2015
HKS'000  HKS000 HK$'000  HKS$'000
tRn TR TRER  TEn

2016 015 2016 015 2016 W05
HK$'000  HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HKS'000
tRr TEr TREx TEr TEx  TiEn

Sales to external customers ANSREHE - - 4248 (3840 - = 206 20 4454 (3560
Totalrevenue 10N - S48 (B - S8 B0 445t (350
Segment results PEEE (2,810) (6409  (3,242) (10,965  (5,572)  (8,503) - - (11,624)  (25877)
Other revenue HitlA - - 24 410 12 - 10,765 3876 10,801 4,286
Other gains At 53 - - - - - 79 - 132 -
Gain on bargain purchase EaElies - - - - - 9308 - = - 93,087
Provision for impairment losson & AER{EFE

intangible assets B (26,557)  (168,342) - - - - - - (26,557) (168,342)

Write down of obsolete inventories % 877 S (i (3,493) - - =
Fair value changes on financial ~ BEREATFEA

assets at fair value through ReuhaE

profit or loss LDTHEED - - (436) (703
Central administration costs RRATENA - = - -
(Loss)/gain on disposal of HENBLE

subsidiaries (&5t /s - - - -
Finance costs BEMA - - - =
Loss before taxation BHAEE
Taxation il - = (102) =
Loss for the year AEEER
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(3,493) -
- - (436) (703)
- - (79,235 (77544) (79,235) (77,544

- - (25) 218 (25) 218
- - (30,774 (36779) (30,774) (36,779

(141,211) ~ (209,686)
- - (1,562) (368)  (1,664) (368)

(142,875)  (210,054)



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

are MR R MY AT

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z201653 A31H I F &

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Segment revenues and result (continued)
Revenue reported above represents revenue generated from
external customers. There were no inter-segment sales during
the year.

Segment results represent the loss suffered by each segment
without allocation of other revenue, other gains, other
expense, fair value change on financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, central administration costs, gain on
bargain purchase, finance costs and taxation. This is the
measure reported to the CODM for the purpose of resource
allocation and assessment of segment performance.

The following is an analysis of the Group's assets by reportable

6. DRRER(HE)
TRBAREE(E)
B 2 A SRR E SN E S 2 I
A ERLESEHLHE -

SEEBEEEHRTRE B B
RABEMUA « H izt  H b5
¥ ERRBATEARZMBAES
ATEBD - PRTRAA - HEKE

Yak BMEMARTIE - th iR EEE
BERREER IR EEETERD

FE Ry BRRIR A

AT RAEEEERAIRSIEE D Z

segments: AR/l
Continuing operations
4eEEED
Iron ore exploration,
exploitation and Investing and
trading operations financing Property sales Consolidation
ARYR - BRR
748 RERmE NE#E &a
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TiEn TAL TiEn THL TiEn THL TiEn THL
ASSETS L(:
Segment assets PEEE 5,401 46,858 54,383 34,288 1,398,968 1,196,686 1,458,752 1,277,832
Assets relating to HERLEBARL
discontinued operations BE - 82,569
Unallocated corporate assets ~ AARGEEE 1,101,969 302,880
2,560,721 1,663,281
LIABILITIES &
Segment liabilities PRER (11) (129)  (3,091) (23) (292,000) (240490) (295102)  (240,642)
Liabilities relating to HERILEBERL
discontinued operations B - (66,143)
Unallocated corporate liabilities AAE £ (225,751)  (267,125)
(520,853)  (573910)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
N R R EaY N EES

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #;Z=2016F3 831 H I &

Segment revenues and result (continued)

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the directors of the
company monitor the results, assets and liabilities attributable
to each reportable segment on the following basis:

All assets are allocated to reportable segments other than
interest in an associate, financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss and unallocated corporate assets (mainly include
property, plant and equipment, bank balances and cash
that are used by the investment holding company and other
receivables that are receivable by the investment holding
companies).

All liabilities are allocated to reportable segments other
than convertible notes/bonds, deferred tax liabilities and
unallocated corporate liabilities (mainly include other payables
and accruals borne by the investment holding companies).

Asia Resources Holdings Limited 351 & RIZHA R A A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

are MR R MY AT

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z201653 A31H I F &

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 6. DEER(E)
Segment revenues and result (continued) DHEWMAREE(E)
Other segment information At g HEH
Discontinued
Continuing operations operations
b5 KEE] BALER
Iron ore exploration, Manufacturing and
exploitation and Investing and sales of pharmaceutical
trading operations financing Property sales products Unallocation Consolidation
HRER BRR
g58E RERME S EEREEER AR &
2016 015 2016 015 2016 015 2016 015 2016 2015 2016 015
HKS'000  HKSO00 HKS'000  HKS000 HKS'000  HKSOO0 HK$'000  HKS000 HKS'000  HKS000  HK$'000  HKS000
TAn  TAT  fEn  TEr TRn  TEr TR TEr  fEm  Thr  TEm  TEn
Addiions to property, plant and SNz BERRRE
equipment 4 1,967 382 197 - 1078 - 1626 2301 49 2,693 4957
Depreciation of property, plantand % * BERAGEHE
equipment (1,463)  (1512) (44) (56 (348) (348 (ne (1334 671 (0% (3,546)  (18277)
Provision for impairment loss on % BERAEHEEELE
property, plant and equipment - - - - - - - - (4150 - (4150) -
Amortisation ofintangible assets BYAERE 61700 (20719) - = - = - = - - 81700 (719)
Amortisation of prepaid lease payment B AEEEH - = - - - - (25) 19 - - (25) (119
Reversal of impairment oss recognised & ZEMER R LRBSERE
in respect of trade receivable - - - - - - - 3756 - B - 3756
Provision for impairment loss on ERRNET Z HARERR
trade receivables - - - - - - - 199 - - VAL
Provision for impairment oss on BRAE HERRRER
intangible assets (26,557)  (168,342) - - - - - - - - (26,557) (16834
Write down of obsolete inventories RS (3.493) = - = - = - = - - (349) =
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

are MR R MY AT

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z201653 A31H I F &

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 6.

Geographical information
The Group operates in three principal geographical areas —
the PRC, Hong Kong and Indonesia.

The Group's revenue from external customers and information
about its non-current assets by geographical location are
detailed below:

DEER(E)

i & &
AEEE-FAIEHERL —FtE &
EREE o

AEEEBINBEP ZWARBREEI
MEBEE(RMIBME S D) 2 EHF
L

Revenue from external

customers Non-current assets

RENBEF K= kRBEE
2016 2015 2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FAET FET FET
The PRC 5 206 280 1,088,439 401,128
Hong Kong BB 4,248 (3,840) 123 =
Indonesia EIfE - = 5,000 39,380
4,454 (3,560) 1,093,562 440,508

Information about major customers FEEFESR

No information about major customers is presented as no
single customer contributed over 10% of the total revenue of
the Group during the years ended 31 March 2016 and 2015.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
N R R EaY N EES

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z201653 A31H I F &

7. REVENUE 7. WA
Revenue, which is stated net of value added tax and other WA TR EE20164F 20153 A31H
sales taxes and returns, represents amounts invoiced to IFFEREEFHEE S MR IEER &
customers for sales of iron ore sand, and securities investment HMEHEFRNERER 2 BRESENES
during the years ended 31 March 2016 and 2015. WEEEE
An analysis of the Group's revenue for the year is as follows: AEBRAREEZ 2 Wm DT -
2016 2015
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHExT THT
Continuing operations BEKEXER
Securities investment, net BHIEE - F8
Proceeds on sales SHE TS RUIA 24,682 50,115
Less: Cost of sales A SHE AR (24,376) (53,955)
306 (3,840)
Loan interest income B EWA 3,942 =
Other Hih 206 280
4,454 (3,560)
8. OTHER REVENUE 8. EfUg A
2016 2015
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHExT THT
Continuing operations RFEREXER
Interest income on bank deposits |ITERFEHA 1,112 1,364
Dividend income from financial assets at 1B FIRAFEARZ B
fair value through profit or loss BEZRBWA 24 410
Other precious metal trading, net HEEBE 5 FH 9,440 2,409
Sundry IE 225 103
10,801 4,286
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
N R R EaY N EES

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z201653 A31H I F &

9. OTHER GAINS 9. Hftilam
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FHETT
Continuing operations BEKSEXER
Exchange gain, net PE X Wt - F58 132 =
10. FINANCE COSTS 10. BB AN
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET T
Continuing operations RFEREEY
Imputed interest on TRRER EHHER R
convertible notes/bonds 30,774 36,779
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
N R R EaY N EES

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z201653 A31H I F &

11.LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX 1. BRATE TR B 1B
Continuing operations FEKEEK
2016 2015
HK$’'000 HK$'000
F&ET TFET
The Group’s loss from continuing AEBNWFELEER
operations is carried at after BETIRMER (5T A)
charging/(crediting): THRBHEERNR:
Directors’ remuneration EE=W4 33,237 25,150
Other staff costs E 8 TR 3,732 3,747
Share-based payment expenses AR 2 AR 4,924 6,448
Other staff's retirement benefits Hih 8 T 7 RIKEF
scheme contributions sTEIH K 221 186
Total salaries FrifsasE 42,114 35,581

Depreciation of property, plantand  ¥% - BE LR ETE

equipment 3,546 4,953
Provision for impairment loss on M - BERERERE
property, plant and equipment E5 1R 4,156 -
Amortisation of intangible assets 8 i 6,170 20,716
Total depreciation and amortisation E LA 13,872 25,669
Auditors’ remuneration % B5 AT B <&
— audit services — ZEURTS 960 980
— non-audit services — IER BT 309 560
1,269 1,540
Minimum lease payments under LERN T 2 xEHe
operating leases (NE:N 4,856 2,628
Cost of inventory recognised as ERARI 2 FENKA
an expense - 61
Fair value change on financial assets  &ERFRIZAFEARZ
at fair value through profit or loss M EEZ A EE 436 703
Exchange (gain)/loss, net bE X (W), 18 - 38 (132) 72
Reversal at impairment loss on trade B 5 fEUBR FURE B8
receivables #m - (3,756)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
N R R EaY N EES

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z201653 A31H I F &

12. DIRECTORS" EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the directors were

12. 5%
BN SUEEZMemT :

as follows:
Retirement
Salaries benefits scheme
Directors' fees and other benefits Share options contributions Total
Lk ESREMET EhE RINER AR ot
2016 2015 2016 215 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
HK$'000  HKS'000 HKS$'000  HKS'000 HK$'000  HK$000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HKS'000  HK$'000
Tén Tér Téx TEr TEx TExr TEx  TEr  TEn  TEn
Executive directors: HrEs.
Mr. Huang Yilin, (*Mr. Huang") (note |} Ei&M% 4
([BEE ) (W) 384 = 3 7387 = - - 8904 73
Mr. Chim Kim Lun, Ricky, Ealatt
("Mr. Chim") (note i ([ERE ) Wti) - - - 930 - 58 - 13 A 1
Mr. Wang Shi, ("Mr. Wang") (note i)~ Thi4
(255 ) (ki) - - - 5 - - - - - 5
Mr. Sun Sizhi, ("Mr. Sun”) (note iv) FEEkk
([ERED i) - 54 - - - = - = - 5
Mr. Cheung Kai Kwong, REEE
(*Mr. Cheung’) (note v (&%) Hiitv) - 309 - 34 - 3 - 15 T
Mr. Yeung Yiu Bong, Anthony, SEATE
"Mr. Yeung") (note v ([BRE]Witv) - 309 - 37 - 3846 - 15 - 4537
Mr. Lin Chengdong, WilREE
("Mr. Lin') (note vil ([ 1) (Witvi) 241 30 - 5515 34 - - 595 345
Mr. Lu Jianling, ("Mr. Lu") (note vii) ~ ERERAE
([ BEE ) (Wehvii) - 0 - % - - 2 - 35
Mr. Chan Shi Yin, Keith, Rk
("Mr. Chan") note ix) (R ) (Witi) 384 I£! - - 827 - 18 3 8,609 76
Mr. Mo Tsz Yuk, (“Mr. Mo") (notex)  BFE%E
([REE]) (Hetr) 24 8 - -8 = 1 3 8459 8
Mr. Wu Hongquan, ("Mr. Wu') REERE(R%R])
(Chairman) (note xi) (ZF) i) 252 = - = - = - = 252 =
Ms. Li Yali, ("Ms. Li") (note i ESvas
(15t ) (Wiatni) 144 = - = - = - = 144 =
Mr. Zhang Zhensheng, RRErE
("Mr. Zhang") (note xii) (TSR ) (W ati) 141 - - - - - - = 14 =
1,787 1515 33 1848 30,33 19338 29 9 32465 22750
Non-executive director: FUNEE.
Mr. Tong Leung Sang, L
("Mr. Tong") (note xiv) (TB% ) Histniv) - 13 - - - 451 - - - 583
Independent non-executive directors: BUFHTES
Mr. Lum Pak Sum, WAL
("Mr. Lum") (note xv) ([ ) (Witw) - 130 - - - 451 - = - 581
Mr. Zhang Xianlin % Ly 156 15 - - 152 451 - - 308 407
Mr. Kiwok Hong Yee, Jesse IESRE 156 156 - = 152 451 - - 308 607
Mr. Ho Chun Kit, Gregory, st
"Mr. Ho") (note xvi (R Frini) 156 2 - = - = - = 156 2
468 464 - - 304 1353 - - 172 1817
2,255 2111 313 1848 30,640 21142 29 49 33237 H1%0
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #;Z=2016F3 831 H I &

Notes:

(i) Mr. Huang was appointed on 23 January 2015, was appointed as the
Chairman of the Company on 30 January 2015 and was resigned as the
Chairman of the Company on 19 November 2015.

(ii) Mr. Chim was resigned on 11 December 2014.

(i) Mr. Wang was appointed on 11 December 2014 and was resigned on 23
January 2015.

(iv)  Mr. Sun was appointed on 11 December 2014 and was resigned on 23
January 2015.

(v} Mr. Cheung was resigned on 20 January 2015.

(vi)  Mr. Yeung was resigned on 20 January 2015.

(vii)  Mr. Lin was resigned on 16 November 2015.

(viii) Mr. Lu was resigned on 23 January 2015.

(ix)  Mr. Chan was appointed on 23 January 2015.

(x)  Mr. Mo was appointed on 30 January 2015 and was resigned on 16
November 2015.

(xi)  Mr. Wu was appointed on 5 August 2015 and was appointed as the
Chairman of the Company on 19 November 2015.

xii)  Ms. Li was appointed on 16 November 2015.

xiii) Mr. Zhang was appointed on 19 November 2015.

(
(
(xiv) Mr. Tong was resigned on 4 February 2015.
(xv)  Mr. Lum was resigned on 1 February 2015.
(

xvi) Mr. Ho was appointed on 9 February 2015.

During the years ended 31 March 2016 and 2015, no
remunerations were paid by the Group to the directors as
an inducement to join, or upon joining the Group, or as
compensation for loss of office. None of the directors has

waived or agreed to waive any emoluments during the years
ended 31 March 2016 and 2015.

Kt -

(i)  FEEER2015F 1 A23HEZRE - 1K2015%F1
R30REZFEAARRER * WEK20155F
1MAI9BEBREARRERE °

(i) EERATR2014F12811 AEHE »

(i) EHESR2014F12A11 BER T KK2015
F1H23BFHE °

(iv) FRAELEER20145F12 811 BERET RHN2015
1 H23EBHE -

(v) SREABHK201541H20HBHE °

(vi) BERAEDH201551 8200 BHE -

(vii) #READH2015511 816 H BHE ©

(viiiy ERAENRBR2015%1H23H BHT °

(ix)  PBREACH2015F1 23R EERT -

x) BAEER2015F1A30BEZT  XER
201511 A 16 A B HE ©

(xi) RIEER2015F8A5BERE - WH20155F
1MA1VBEZEAARRRER °

(xii) ZFZTM2015F11 B16BERT -

(xiii) FRAEMR20155F11 B19BESRT -

(xiv) FRAERBR201552 B 4HBHE -

(xv) MEARENR2015528 18 BHT -

(xvi) {AIEEBR2015F2A9BEEET -

REE20164F K% 201543 A318 Ik F
B AEEBMEINTESTHEIERR
A0 A SR A AN £ B B 2 48 ok B B
F1E - REZE 20164 K 201543 H31H
WEFE - BEEENEXRERETM
= o

Annual Report 2016 Fii



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

are MR R MY AT

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z201653 A31H I F &

13. EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

Continuing operations

(a) Five highest paid individuals
The aggregate emoluments of the five highest paid
individuals for the year included 4 (2015: 5) executive
directors of the Company, whose emoluments are
included in note 12 above.

13. EE M€
FEKEER
(a) BERBHAL
AEERAEERH AT ZHERE
BIEARRDNT4E (2015 : 58)#
TEE  HBe BN EXXHE
12

2016 2015

HK$'000 HK$'000

FExT FET

Salaries and other benefits e M EMET 9217 -
Retirement benefits scheme contributions R {RK1& Fll 5+ &) 3 18 -
935 -

Their emoluments were all within HK$1,000,000.

During both years ended 31 March 2016 and 2015, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the five highest
paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

(b) Senior management of the Group
The emoluments of the non-Directors senior management
included in abovementioned five highest paid individuals
of the Group are within the following bands:

1% & 2 Bl & ¥3 #£ 1,000,000 7T A
W o

RELE 20165 K 20153831 H 1k
MEFE  AEERESFTFARS
SEeHFALMESIEAFESMATIR
TAZRE B 2 825 sk Bk B E -

(b) AEEZZREZE
AEBEGEENEREEE (HR
EXFEEESHFAL) ZHEEIA
AR

Number of individuals

AH
2016 2015
HK$Nil-1,000,000 Z%1,000,000/8 7T 1 2

During both years ended 31 March 2016 and 2015,
no emoluments were paid by the Group to the senior
management as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
N R R EaY N EES

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #;Z=2016F3 831 H I &

Continuing operations

Current tax: BNHABLIE -

- Hong Kong Profits Tax —BBNEH

- PRC Enterprise Income Tax — B3PS
— Indonesia Corporate Income Tax —ENe e FiEH
Charge for the year REFZ M

Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
(2015: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit arising in
Hong Kong during the year.

Subsidiaries in Indonesia are subjected to Corporate Income
Tax at 25% for the years ended 31 March 2016 and 2015.

Subsidiaries in the PRC are subjected to the PRC Enterprise
Income Tax at 25% for the years ended 31 March 2016 and
2015.

No provision for Indonesia Corporate Income Tax and the PRC
Enterprise Income Tax has been made in the consolidated
financial statements respectively as the Group incurred
taxation losses in Indonesia and the PRC for the years ended
31 March 2015.

In accordance to the tax assessment issued by tax authorities.
The tax losses of approximately HK$64,187,000 (2015:
HK$64,187,000) can be carried forward to offset the future
taxable profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised
due to the unpredictability of the future profit stream.

SEEERYR
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THET
1,658 368
6 —
1,664 368

ERNEHEERAFEEEBELEZ
(AT ER TG F 2 B E 16.5% (20154
16.5% ) BEfE ©

B E2016F R 2015F3A31 B IEFE -
ENfE 2 M /B A Al BIR25% Bt 2 Fr 15
o

HE2016F K2015F3A31 B IEEE -
R [ B A R ZEIR25 % BN R B
FTiS %L °

HE2015F3A3MBILEE » ARAE
EREE P BEEEFHBEEIE - iR
RERE R ERPHINEDEAMEH &
A B (b SEFTIS TR AT TR 4 -

RENRBEHBAELZHRMGLE O
64,187,000 7T (20154F : 64,187,000/
TT) BB IR B 1R AT AR A BH B R RO AR
T N o B B & Yas RO B A AT FROR
1 WEERRERREE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
N R R EaY N EES

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #;Z=2016F3 831 H I &

REF 2 RIAFR A RS 18 LM
EEBER ZRHRATERERLT

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the loss
before taxation per consolidated statement of profit or loss

and other comprehensive income as follows:

2016 2015
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
=g THExT FHTT
Loss before taxation (from continuing  BRFLRIE1E (3R B 5 4E
operations) BT 1 141,211 209,686
Tax at the Hong Kong Profits Tax rate  1&& & HMS 5 £ 16.5%
of 16.5% (2015: 16.5%) (2015%F : 16.5%)
HE A 23,330 34,598
Tax effect of share of result of an SME—HBE R RIER L
associate T e (183) =
Tax effect of expenses not deductible FF{IEM 5 NENF S <
for tax purposes HIERE (29,003) (25,922)
Tax effect of income not taxable for TR & BRI AZ
tax purposes MIARE 3,402 23,271
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised REHRZ FHIBEIEZ
I8 s 2 (9,101) (24,296)
Utilisation of tax losses previous not B 55 A R IERER
recognised TiIAEE (814) -
Tax effect of different tax rates of EE M A AEE [ AR
subsidiaries operating in other B AR TR ER
jurisdictions Dikys-2 14,033 (7,283)
Tax charge for the year REEHIAR X 1,664 368

On 9 April 2015, the Company entered into the Sales and
Purchase Agreement (the “Sales and Purchase Agreement”) that
manufacturing and sales of pharmaceutical products operations
were discontinued following the disposal of Billion Source
Investments Limited (“Billion Source”), an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, and its subsidiaries (collectively known
as the “Billion Source Group”), which carried out all of the Group's
manufacturing and sale of pharmaceutical product operations.

The major classes of assets and liabilities of Billion Source
Group classified as assets held for sale and liabilities directly
associated with assets classified as held for sale as at 31 March
2015 was detailed in note 16.

For the year ended 31 March 2015, the results and cash flows
of the Billion Source Group are treated as discontinued
operations.

Asia Resources Holdings Limited 351 & RIZHA R A A

MR2015F4 898 + AR FEFILEE W
Z([EEH= ARHERRARIEES
& 1B~ 7lBillion Source Investments
Limited ([ Billion Sourcel) X EHE A
7l (#2784 [Billion Source®s & |) & 4% 1k
EENMHEEMER B A EE
AEBRELEEREEERFER °

M2015%F3A31H - Billion Sourcef: &
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

are MR R MY AT

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z201653 A31H I F &

15.DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
(CONTINUED)

Analysis of loss for the year from discontinued

15. B R IEFETF(48)

HRECRUEEB2FEBRZ

operations pakil
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FHT
Revenue WA 635 54,744
Cost of sales HEKA (628) (52,535)
Gross profit EH 7 2,209
Other revenue EHABA - 10
Other gains H Uy 2% - 3,765
Distribution and selling expenses DIHRHEER (387) (7,460)
Administrative expenses THHAX (3,225) (29,750)
Finance costs B BN (777) (4,022)
Loss before taxation & F5 Al e 18 (4,382) (35,248)
Taxation 1 - -
(4,382) (35,248)
Gain on disposal of operation (note 38(i))  HERKLES 7 W
(HtaE38(i) 54,493 -
Profit/(loss) for the year from discontinued ARG E R B & IEETE
operations 2w R,/ (E8) 50,111 (35,248)
Profit/(loss) for the year from EERAFEERHELRLE
discontinued operations attributable to: #i§2%F (FE) :
Owners of the Company ViN/NETE TN 50,111 (35,248)
Loss before taxation: MRBLATEE ¢
The Group's loss from discontinued AEBWERIEFEBER
operations are carried at after TRtk (Gt A) T3
charging/(crediting): BIRRIER
Staff costs 8 TN 627 8,184
Staff's retirement benefits scheme B T ZRIREFIET 2 H K
contributions - 3,799
Total salaries Ea ik 627 11,983
Depreciation of property, plant and VI - BB REETE
equipment 1,114 13,324
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments BT & FRIAEE S 25 119
Total depreciation and amortization e e 1,139 13,443
Cost of inventory recognised as an expense MR AR 2FEMA - 50,910
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

are MR R MY AT

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z201653 A31H I F &

15. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS 15. B IEETE ()

(CONTINUED)

Analysis of loss for the year from discontinued
operations (continued)

HRECRUEEB2FEBRZ

2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FHBT

Cash flows from discontinued operations: REBKRIEEBCRERE :
Net cash generated from operating activities #%%& &8z IR 5 558 7,908 8,268
Net cash used in investing activities KERDAAR 258 - (1,792)
Net cash used in financing activities RMEEEPTAR & 758 (5,914) (7,049)

Net cash increase/(decrease) in cash and R&RFESZE YRS

cash equivalents SFEEIE IO ) 1,994 (573)
Effect of foreign exchange rate exchanges JSMNEEREEH L (2,829) 355
Net cash outflow WML FEE (835) (218)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
N R R EaY N EES

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z201653 A31H I F &

16. ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE/
LIABILITIES DIRECTLY ASSOCIATED WITH
ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE

*

16. DBARELEAE /B
B R E AR B
Z Bk

2016 2015
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt aE FTET FET
Property, plant and equipment e I N 18 - 52,237
Prepaid lease payments BN EFRIE 19 - 3,91
Inventories T 22 - 2,355
Trade and bills receivables B S REBER R R
RRZEE 24 - 17,476
Deposit for acquisition of equity interest W ESH#E 2 &% 26 48,109 -
Prepayments, deposits and other BRNFE - Be Kk
receivables H fth fE UL AR 5K 26 16,237 3,592
Tax recoverable IR dEE I - 586
Bank balances and cash IRITHESR LIRS 28 1,321 2,412
Assets classified as held for sale DEAFIEREZEE 65,667 82,569
Trade payables B D EIRK 29 - 3,094
Other payables and accruals E S AR R R BT
ZH 30 - 2,120
Bank borrowings RITIEE 32 - 60,929
Liabilities directly associated HBAOBARKENEEER
with assets classified as held for sale  #& Bz 8E - 66,143
Notes: Htat -
Disposal Group Held for Sale HEHENHEAR

(i)

(i)

On 31 March 2016, the Group entered into a disposal agreement with
a purchaser to dispose of the entire registered capital of Shenzhen Shi
Longxinchang Industrial Company Limited* (FIITEMREEXEESR
R A7) (“Longxinchang”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
investment consultancy services at a consideration of approximately
HK$16,358,000. The disposal has not been completed as at the date of
the annual report. The carrying amount of related assets and liabilities are
carried at the lower of carrying amount and their fair value less costs to sell
and, accordingly, no impairment loss was recognised. The disposal was
subsequently completed on 25 April 2016.

In April 2016, the Group entered into a disposal agreement with a
purchaser to dispose of the entire registered capital of FIIZ & JRE %
BB 27, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, at a consideration
of approximately HK$49,313,000. The disposal has not been completed
as at the date of the annual report. The carrying amount of related assets
and liabilities are carried at lower of carrying amount and their fair value
less costs to sell and, accordingly, no impairment loss was recognised. The
disposal was subsequently completed on 25 April 2016.

For identification purpose only

(i)  R2016F3A31H  AEBEHE—FEHFIL
HEWE - WHEERARANEZEHE A RDR
NiEMEBEXEZRERAR([ERE] - #
EREFARBE) O HEMER - RELE
16,358,000/ 7T ° & BIHA F 3| A I K
= - HEEERABNERELREEER
HAFEREERANERETR - Bt
BERERRERE - HESEBEERN201654
A258 5/ °

(i) MR2016F48 AEBEBE-—FEHFILHE
Wik UEERARNZENE R RIFRIE
ERBEXZERERAAMNEHEMER - K
B4 449,313,000 7 - HESEBERFRE
W ARTK - HAEERBBNEEEBERE
EEEREATERLEKRANREETR -
Hit - BEERRERSE - HESHEEER
201654 A25H 5T/ °

* (EHBS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

are MR R MY AT

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z201653 A31H I F &

17.LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY FOR THE

YEAR

From continuing and discontinued operations
The calculation of the basic loss per share attributable to the
owners of the Company is based on the following data:

17. REERRNRIEE ANERE
i& &5 1E

REFECEXRBRCRERER
AR R AT IR AR R TR
AR BRS¢

2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FABT
Loss B8
Loss for the year from continuing RACHEE NEMLARFEE
operations for the year attributable RERFEKEEBER
to the owners of the Company (126,316) (121,204)
Profit/(loss) for the year from discontinued ZNA RI#EA A E(EAFE
operations attributable to the REBRIEEBER,
owners of the Company (E518) 50,111 (35,248)
(76,205) (157,152)
2016 2015
‘000 Shares ‘000 Shares
T’ TH&
Number of shares RHEE
Weighted average number of shares REET B SRELRR N Z 7
for the purpose of basic earnings InsEFEHE (AT AE)
per share (note) 4,187,939 1,862,618

Notes:

The basic and diluted loss per share from continuing and discontinued

operations are the same for the years ended 31 March 2015, as the effect of the

share options and convertible notes/bonds would be anti-dilutive and were not

included in the calculation of diluted loss per share.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
N R R EaY N EES

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z201653 A31H I F &

17.LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 17. REERQG|HEA ANELET

OWNERS OF THE COMPANY FOR THE
YEAR (CONTINUED)

From continuing operations

The calculation of the basic loss per share from continuing
operations attributable to the owners of the Company is based
on the following data:

ArEia (&)

REFECERER
ARARBEEANBIEREFELEEB 2
BRERNEBERIDENA TBURETE

2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FAT
Loss for the year from continuing KRAREB ANEEREE
operations attributable to the REFELEETEBE
owners of the Company (126,316) (121,204)

The basic and diluted loss per share from continuing
operations are the same for the years ended 31 March 2016
and 2015, as the effect of the share options and convertible
notes/bonds would be anti-dilutive and were not included in
the calculation of diluted loss per share.

From discontinued operation

Basic earnings per share from discontinued operations
is HK$0.012 per share (Loss in 2015 HK$0.018 per share),
based on the earnings for the year from discontinued
operations attributable to the owners of the Company of
approximately HK$50,111,000 (Loss in 2015 HK$35,248,000).
The denominators used are the same as those detailed above
for both basic and diluted earnings/loss per share.

The weighted average number of ordinary shares of
4,205,402,000 for the purpose of diluted earnings per share
for the year ended 31 March 2016 was derived from the
adjustment in relation to potential dilutive share options and
convertible notes/bonds issued by the Company of 12,956,000
shares and 4,507,000 shares respectively.

The basic and diluted loss per share from discontinued
operations are the same for the year ended 31 March 2015, as
the effect of the share options and convertible notes/bonds
would be anti-dilutive and were not included in the calculation
of diluted loss per share.

HRERER T BREER E5HAR
BEERAETEEESREEESE Y
SHEd - WL E E201645F K 201553 A
BMNBILFEZRAFELEEL 2 BR
ARG EEEI8MER -

RKEOKRIEEK
REEREEB 2 ERERATEETR
0.012/8 7L (2015F E548 : B %0.01875
J0) ¢ ERARNRIHEE AEEBE R IEER
Z FEEEFA50,111,0007 7T (201 5F 5
18 1 35,248,000/ 7T) ° TS & E XX
AT EEREARAREEAT 5
BEMRR o

AUt EEE2016FE3831MBIEEE
FRESAEMN 2 EBIRMNEFEHH
4,205,402,0000% 55 Bl 2k B 7t & 72 4 &
BAE R A AR BT A RRERE E
% 2 5 12,956,0000% K 4,507,000 A% i

{/\ ®

ARBRER AT RRZE EFEAER
BEEREETREEEREEEEY
STER A E20153A31H IE4F
EZRABRIEEBZSRERARES
18R o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
N R R EaY N EES

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z201653 A31H I F &

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. 9% ~ /E K&t

Furniture,
fixtures
and office Leasehold Motor Plant and
Buildings ~ equipment  improvements vehicles ~ machinery Total
R L BER
BF  BOERA 28 bt} B2 45
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thn Thn Thn Thn Thn Thn
Cost; A
At 1 April 2014 N4ELR1A 131,964 11,29 4,001 5,162 83,002 236,025
Acquisiion of subsidiary note 37) WEHERA W) - 5 - 1,063 = 1118
Additions ) 72 1332 199 653 2,01 4,957
Disposals & (229) (2,222) (156) 953) (1741 (20970
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHBAR - @n) - - - (27)
Reclassified to assets classified as ENNRRRENERE
held to sale (note) I3 (91,376) 9419 - (3,99) (58,256) (163,049)
Exchange adjustments % 900 40 (139) 4 (854) 8
At 31 March 2015 andl 1 April 2015 I5EIA3 B RIA015E4R 1A 4133 825 3905 1968 9,719 57812
Acquisition of subsidlaries (note 37) YEHBAAWZY) - - 97 - - 97
Additions ) - 15 399 221 2 2693
Disposal of subsidiaries HEREAT - (121) (365) = (136) (62
Written off i = - (958) - (1,213 217
Exchange adjustments % (1,654) (32 (169) (209) (347) (2.411)
At 31 March 2016 R2016E3831A 39,681 74 2,909 3976 8,085 55,398
Accumulated depreciation and impairment: ZERNE:
At 1 April 2014 R4ELA1H 46,481 7921 1347 4195 58,473 118,417
Acquisition of subsidiary (note 37) YEHBAA YY) - = = 218 = 218
Charge for the year Efgi 7,15 1462 580 681 8,39 18277
Eliminated on disposal of subsidaries HENBAFBME - (137) - - - (137)
Eliminated on disposals B 214 (1,710) (62) (907) (13,803) (16,696)
Reclassified to assets dlassiied as EMRERIFIEEE
held to sale (note) iz (48,897) (7.410) - (3.445) (51,060) (110812)
Exchange adjustments EiHE 400 133 (50) 30 173 686
At 31 March 2015 and 1 April 2015 H0SE3 A3 A RIS EA AR 4926 9 1,815 m 2181 9953
Charge for the year Efgi 933 151 406 793 1,263 3,54
Eliminated on disposal of subsidaries HERBATENS - 99) (252) - (1) (369)
Eliminated on written off bl = = (590) - (313) (903)
Impairment loss HEER 415 - - - = 415
Exchange edjustments B 1] 5 (14 (16) (30) (142)
At 31 March 2016 H201653A31A 9938 306 1,365 1,549 3,083 16,241
Carrying amounts: Bf:
At 31 March 2016 R016E3A31A 9,743 4 1,544 2471 5002 39157
At 31 March 2015 R5E3A31A 36,409 566 2,09 1,19 7,598 47859
Note: Kzt -

As at 31 March 2015, property, plant and equipment with a carrying amount of
approximately HK$52,237,000 have been reclassified to assets classified as held
for sale (for details, please refer to note 16).

201543 A31H + BRE{E 452,237,000 It 2 ¥
¥ BELRSBCETHOEEIBABELERE
(BRAFIEE2HME16) ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z201653 A31H I F &

19. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

19. FERNHEFE

The Group's prepaid lease payments comprise:

$%@Zi‘jﬁ1ﬁﬂ%\m1§@% :

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
THxT FHTT
Leasehold land outside Hong Kong: BBUINZ HE T H -
Medium term lease HRHAAE A9 - =
Analysed for reporting purposes as: RIFERTR B DT
Current portion BVERER - =
Non-current portion FERNERED > - =
Cost R
At the beginning of the year REH] - 5,183
Reclassified to assets classifies BN EENEAFBELE
as held to sale (note) BE(MiE) - (5,225)
Exchange adjustment PE X - 42
Accumulated depreciation R E
At the beginning of the year REA]) - 1,184
Charge for the year FAZH - 119
Reclassified to assets classifies BN EENERFBELE
as held to sale (note) ﬁ%(/}ﬁuf) - (1,314)
Exchange adjustment FE o 2 =& - 11
At the end of the year RER - -
Net book value FREEE - -

Note:

As at 31 March 2015, land use rights having a carrying amount of approximately
HK$3,911,000 have been reclassified to asset classified as held for sale (for

details, please refer to note 16).

i -

H2HHEE16)

201543 A31H + BREEAI3,911,0007 7T 2 + b
ERECEN BES BARFHEEAE(HREFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
N R R EaY N EES

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #;Z=2016F3 831 H I &

Exclusive right

BREFR
HK$'000
THET
Cost: AN
At 1 April 2014, 31 March 2015, R2014%F4 7318 ~ 201593 H31H -
1 April 2015 and 31 April 2016 20155F4 H1H K&20165F4H31H 576,334
Accumulated amortizations and B REE -
impairments:
At 1 April 2014 R201454H18 354,549
Charge for the year FAXH 20,716
Impairment loss recognised EERBEEE 168,342
At 31 March 2015 and 1 April 2015 M201563H31H R2015F4H1H 543,607
Charge for the year FAX M 6,170
Impairment loss recognised ERERBEEE 26,557
At 31 March 2016 R2016%3A31H 576,334
Carrying amounts: BRMEE :
At 31 March 2016 M2016%3H31H -
At 31 March 2015 R201553H31H 32,727

Notes:

Exclusive right represents the Deed of Statement and Power of Attorney dated
12 September 2009 and made between PT. Indo Modern Mining Sejahtera
(“Indo"), the holder of the operation license in the mining are located in
Lumajang, East Java, Indonesia, and PT. Dampar Golden International (“PT.
Dampar”), pursuant to which, Indo grants exclusive rights and authorities to PT.
Dampar to manage and arrange all activities in the mining area on behalf of

Indo.

Exclusive right is amortised on a straight-line basis over its estimated useful
economic life. The useful economic life of the exclusive rights was estimated with
reference to the validity of the operation license held by Indo. The operation
license was valid for ten years from 21 July 2010 and the holder was entitled to

apply for renewal for two times with a 10-year term each.
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% K # 7| 78 PT. Indo Modern Mining Sejahtera
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
N R R EaY N EES

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #;Z=2016F3 831 H I &

20. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED) 20. B EE(ET)

Notes: (continued)

Amortisation was provided for the years ended 31 March 2015 and 2014, the
capitalised cost of the exclusive right was amortised over the remaining period
of the licence as from 1 April 2014 to 20 July 2020.

During the year ended 31 March 2014, the Ministerial Regulation No. 1/2014
(“Ministerial Regulation”) promulgated by the Indonesian Government with
effect from 1 January 2014. According to the regulation, the Indonesian
government stopped the export of unprocessed mineral products with a view to
encouraging the upgrading of minerals through processing and refining before
such minerals can be exported. To mitigate this negative effect, the Company
entered into a purchase agreement to purchase equipment for the purpose
of refining the iron sand to sponge iron of higher than 75% Fe employing
the direct reduction method. For the details, please refer to the Company's

announcements dated 24 January 2014 and 2 May 2014 respectively.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the export restriction of iron sand
still in force and the purity level of the iron sand did not meet the minimum
requirement of Ministerial Regulation, and therefore the management had

decided to stem the export of the iron sand and trading business.

The Group is required to assess any indication of impairment of the end of each
reporting period. The Group has completed its annual impairment test for the
exclusive right, due to the mining operation was affected by the regulation
mentioned as above, amount of approximately HK$26,557,000 impairment
loss was recognised for the year ended 31 March 2016 (2015: approximately
HK$168,342,000), as the recoverable amount is calculated to be lower than its
carrying amount. The recoverable amount of the exclusive right was determined
based on a value in use calculation which uses five years cashflow projection,
and a discount rate of 20.42% per annum (2015: 19.90% per annum) Cash flows
beyond five year period had been extrapolated using a steady 3.49% per annum
growth rate (2015: 3.67%). As at 31 March 2016, the recoverable amount of the
exclusive right is insignificant (2015: approximately HK$32,727,000) is referenced
to valuation report issued by Peak Vision Appraisals Limited, independent
qualified valuers, which the exclusive right has been measured based on the

value in use calculation.

Hret : (&)

HZE2015F %2014F3A31 B ILFEC EH#35Y -
BRIEFZENMERAC BB E2014F4F18E
202047 A208 Z T EARI (R B 8 -

RBE2014F3A31 B IEFEHHE - BB EM
EBPIARG1551/20145% ([ EBPIAR 01 1) - 8201451 A1
BELEM - RIBZBH - DEBMFFELEHEORMNT
BER  ZUASBREREEHLOATSBEMNT
RIZPEABRBEE - BRELEEFE - ARAFIAL
BERZUBEIGEUEREEEREEEEDR
BRAESEETSRA L2 BHBE - BHFE  #2
BMARQF A B A201451 8248 K2014F582
B2 A e

HZE2016F3A3NBIEFE - SR EHARGBIDALE
MR B 2 fE ARG HPIRO 2 FEENK
It EBEEREMIEE S E S -

AEBBEREREHRTHTMRETR - A5EH
B EBRENZ FERENR - ARFEER
25| BRI F2 2 - #4126,557,0007% 7T (B & 18
EREE20165F3A31 B ILFEHER(0154 : 4
168,342,000/ 7T ) + RE A AT E & FBIR KR EER
HEEE - BREMZAIKESEDREERER
AE(HAARERSRETEA) REF20.42%8 38
(20154 : §419.90%) MEE - AFEBHEUAINZ
REMEBATFIA9%BEILRE (20155 : 3.67%)

& o A2016F3A31H @ BREF 2] E L5
T E (20154 : 932,727,000/ 70) HiE2£78
VEERGEMSSETEARARZL ZEERS
TE - MBREFNEBRIRE A EEE A TG

82 o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z201653 A31H I F &

21.INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE

21. N — Rl & A Al L #Em

N2/

Cost of investment in an associate
Unlisted outside Hong Kong
Share of post-acquisition losses and
other comprehensive expenses,

R—FHBERRZREZHA

FELET - ERBUASN

EIERBREBERREMEE

Fis - HBRCWALE

net of dividends received

Amount due from an associate

(a)

(b)

Amount due from an associate is unsecured, interest-free
and repayable on demand.

On 6 May 2015, the Group acquired 15% equity interests
in Shenzhen Zhaosheng Anye Investment Development
Company Limited* (RIIBELZHEREZRER AR
("Shenzhen Zhaosheng Anye") through acquisition by a
subsidiary. After the acquisition, Shenzhen Zhaosheng
Anye becomes available-for-sale investment of the
Group. On 23 September 2015, the Group acquired
20% equity interests in Shenzhen Zhaosheng Anye
through acquisition by a subsidiary. After the acquisition,
Shenzhen Zhaosheng Anye becomes an associate of the
Group.

150 Asia Resources Holdings Limited Zajil &/RIZARARA A

e — B & 2 ) 2 3R IR

(a)

(b)

2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
TExT TAT
462,309 -
(5,996) -
456,313 -
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TAT
4,167 -

& W — PR B & A B 2 SRIA R AR
o AR RBERERKEER -

MR2015F5H6H » AEBFBIWE
—FEK B AU R R E T EE
BEREARAT(NRIBEEZE])
15%0%H - RIER - RUIBER
E¥RABAEEBZAIHEERE - B
2015F9 B23H  ANEEEBEIWE
—FRB AR KB RINBE L E
20% 0% - MUEER  RYIBE &
¥k AR EBABE AT -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
N R R EaY N EES

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z201653 A31H I F &

21.INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (CONTINUED) 21

Details of the Group's associate, which are held indirectly by
the Company at the end of reporting period, are as follows:

Proportion of

R — R AR ()
AR ER D (KRR E BRI
) Z BT :

nominal value
Form of Place of Class of shares/ of paid capital/ Proportion
Business incorporation/  registered registered capital of voting Principal
Name of associate and structure  operation capital held held by the Group power held activity
FEERRL
ERRL/ KEZRG BTER/ER ¥Rz
BENAER EBPARRE £EuH EXEH EAABZEAL REEEDML IRER
Shenzhen Zhaosheng Anye  Incorporated ~ PRC Registered 35.0% 35.0% Property
MBERE 117780 i B development and
operation
WEREREE

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group's
associate for the period from the date of acquisition to the
year ended date for Shenzhen Zhaosheng Anye was set out
below which represents amounts shown in the respective
financial statements of an associate prepared in accordance
with HKFRSs. An associate is accounted for using the equity
method in the consolidated financial statements.

HRTXARE 2B E R A EERS
EERNERLE 2 FER LR ZY
BEMBE  RERBEARREREY
BREEARE S HEAPERERAFR
T EHE - BERRESEMBRERA
ARSI B

2016 2015

HK$’000 HK$'000

F&ExT TET

Current asset MENEE 215,623 -
Non-current asset EMBNEE 465 =
Current liabilities ViEII=RE 233,602 =
2016 2015

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Revenue WA - =
Loss for the period NERE TR 2,093 =

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information
to the carrying amount of the interest in an associate

recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

PR BERBMBRARNGEMBERERA
R E AR R REAEIHR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

are MR R MY AT

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z201653 A31H I F &

21. INTEREST IN ASSOCIATE (CONTINUED)

21. RERE N R 2 e (48)

2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$’'000
THERT FHET
Net liabilities of an associate BEARAETEH (15,723) -
Proportion of the Group’s ownership REBNFIEELE A
interest in Shenzhen Zhaosheng Anye EEZADL 35% =
Cost of investment in an associate REEE R B 218 & Z BN
Unlisted outside Hong Kong LT - BB (5,503) -
Goodwill EES 467,812 =
Share of post-acquisition losses and Fefh BB R R 2
other comprehensive expense, net of Xt MERE AR
dividends received (5,996) =
Carrying amount of the Group's interest REBRFINBELZEZ
in Shenzhen Zhaosheng Anye a2 BREE 456,313 =

There is no commitment and contingent liabilities under an

AR N E TR A EAGERIRE

associate. G
*  For identification purpose only * EHREE

22.INVENTORIES 22. 178
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT THT
Raw materials Rl - 16
Finished goods SURY Oh 3,493 3,761
3,493 3,777
Less: write down of obsolete inventories & : #UB&IEES (3,493) =
- 3,777

As at 31 March 2015, inventories of approximately
HK$2,355,000 have been reclassified to assets classified as
held for sale (for details, please refer to note 16).

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group has written

off obsolete finished goods of approximately HK$3,493,000
(2015: HKS$NIl).

Asia Resources Holdings Limited 5 & RIEHE AR A 7

20153 A318 + 492,355,000/ 7T .2
FEEEFOBEENBRFKIFLERE
(BRAFFBRELHME16) o

HZE2016F3A31MBILFE @ AEEE
R 4 88 2L K fR 49 3,493,0007% 7T (2015
& TET) o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
N R R EaY N EES

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z201653 A31H I F &

23.PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 23 ERAYIRE
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET THET
Properties under development BERAPYE 782,281 733,257
Properties under development related to the residential B RR R AESMNEES A LI E
property construction held for sale located in Beibu District, BEHEZEEEERAB RS
Jinshitan, Jinzhou New District, Dalian, the PRC. E
As at 31 March 2016, the balance included land use rights of MN2016E 3 8318 @ &8 A4
approximately HK$208,022,000 (2015: HK$219,546,000). Upon 208,022,000 7T (20154 : 219,546,000
completion of the construction, the land use rights would be L) 2 L AE o L Hb{E RGN
transferred to property held for sale. THREREEELEYE -
The Group's properties under development at their book AREFRERYERHERESTOT :
values are analysed as follows:
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET THETT
Located in the PRC, held on: EHRERE
Leases of between 10 to 50 years 10&E50FFH 49 782,281 733,257
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

I“/

ks

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z201653 A31H I F &

24. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 4. B S RUERF M EIRRIR
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT TAT
Trade receivables B 5 R - 45,347
Payment terms with customers are mainly on credit. Invoices EEIBREENNS -BETEHEE

are normally settled within 90 days to 180 days of issuance,
except for certain well established customers. The following
is an ageing analysis of trade receivables, net of impairment
losses, and bills receivable discounted/endorsed with recourse
at the end of the reporting period:

RPN —RARBRH R Z90
El:.:180EI NEEEE - RBEHRZ

B o RUERR (KR BERER) K&
REZHBRBERKERZERAT
W

2016 2015

HK$'000 HK$'000

TET T

0 to 90 days 0£290H - 44,400
91 to 180 days 912180H - 947
- 45,347

Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses the
potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits
by customer. Limits and credit quality attributed to customers
are reviewed periodically. At 31 March 2015, 100% of the
trade receivables are neither past due nor impaired, and are
assessed to be of satisfactory credit quality with reference to
the past track records.

No trade receivable is past due as at 31 March 2015 and 2016
for which the Group has not provided for impairment loss.
The amounts are mainly comprised amounts due from certain
well established customers, which the Group normally grants
an extension to them. The Group does not hold any collateral
over theses balances.

154 Asia Resources Holdings Limited S5 &RIERABR AR

REMNERFEER - AEESTEE
XEZEEEX j’rFZ*@)EZFEﬁE
HoRPEATZREREEES

Hite st o A201543H31H - t‘éﬁ%ﬁ’éuﬁz
BRF100% 37 AR @ BT ARBE - WARERE
B A AEEREZEEER -

R2015F % 2016%F3A31H » HEES
JE W BR 5 B 8 AR % AR A [ i SR VR R (E
EERE 2 BKIRK - 25X Iﬁfgﬁ
FREKETARTEERR (KNEE—
SLERFEZEER) 2HIE - NEEW
ERZEERSEEAERRD



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
N R R EaY N EES

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z201653 A31H I F &

24. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

(CONTINUED)

Movement in the provision for impairment loss
recognised in respect of trade receivables

24

B RIS K EREE

(4&)

ME S EWIRRER 2 BERE
RE2E

2016 2015

HK$'000 HK$’'000

THERT FHBT

Balance at beginning of the year RE) 2 sE 8k - 16,418

Impairment losses recognised on trade HE ZEWIRFIER

receivables AR R - 2,199

Impairment losses reversed BR[O - (3,756)
Reclassified to assets classified as B BEDERFHE

held for sale HERE - (14,984)

Exchange adjustments HE 5, A B - 123

Balance at end of the year R 2 48R - -

In determining the recoverability of a trade receivable, the
Group considers any change in credit quality of the trade
receivables from the date credit was initially granted up to
the end of the reporting period. Included in the allowance for
doubtful debts are all individually impaired trade receivables
which have either been placed under liquidation or in severe
financial difficulties. The Group does not hold any collateral
over these balances.

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Group has
recovered trade receivables of approximately HK$3,756,000
which has be impaired in previous years.

As at 31 March 2015, trade receivables and bills receivable of
approximately HK$12,711,000 and HK$4,765,000 have been
reclassified to assets classified as held for sale respectively (for
details, please refer to note 16).

REE B 5 RBUR 2 AT m £ 8 - K
SEEEREVIETEEERAREFE
BERRNEZERURER 2 EREEE
=2  REBRBEEEBRRENFRRERXK
BREMBRE MBS RESR S E
WERR - ARBES EAZFERFEE
(BT

REZE2015F3A31BIEFERN - K&E
BEERODABAEFEEREZESEK
BR 7K #93,756,0005 7T °

20153 4318 * 2 A1A&4912,711,000
BT % 4,765,000/ 7T 2 B 5 FE W ER R &
EREBREEMSBEEDEAFELE
BE(EAEH28MEE16) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

are MR R MY AT

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z201653 A31H I F &

25. LOAN RECEIVABLES

25. el E =

2016 2015

HK$'000 HK$'000

THxT FHET

Loan receivables JEIE R 39,000 =
Interest receivables JrE UL B 1,638 =
40,638 -

The maturity profile of the loan receivables at the end of the
reporting period, analysed by the maturity date, is as follow:

FA %R 25 HA 7R B U B SR A0 B BRBE L 32 B HR
BoMaT :

2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
Receivables: JEUGBES :
Within 1 year 1F A 40,638 =

The Group's loan receivables, which arise from the money
lending business in Hong Kong, are denominated in Hong
Kong dollars.

All loan receivables are secured, bear interest and are
receivable with fixed terms agreed with customers. They are
neither past due nor impaired. The maximum exposure to
credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of the loan
receivable.

Loan receivables are interest-bearing at rates of 19.2% per
annum. Interest income of approximately HK$3,942,000 has
been recognised in revenue in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income during the year
and receivable on the date of repayment.

156 Asia Resources Holdings Limited g5l &RIZARAR A A

AEBENERER(RENBBZRESE
%) A TTRHE °

PrBERKEZRY BAEER - 5t E kRS
B P W E < BIE B E - 52 F IR
BEARTERE NBEESABRKSZE
BRERAERERZREE -

R E IR F N E19.2%5 8 - FIA
ERGFeEakEtemkaRNER
M BUAKI3,942,0008 T - ZFEEHKA
RERBHEMN



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
N R R EaY N EES

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z201653 A31H I F &

26. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 26. VARTFRIE ~ e M E AR

RECEIVABLES AR X
2016 2015
HK$’'000 HK$'000
TET FAT
Deposit for acquisition equity interest We BE R i 2 ¥ % (M7, v)

(note i, v) - 132,013

Deposit for acquisition of a subsidiary WS B ARl 2 ike (M atii)
(note ii) - 10,155

Deposit for acquisition of investment WS B W3 2 =& (B atiii)
properties (note iii) 598,092 192,832
Other deposits paid (note iv) HA B R e (Mativ) - 24,922
Deposit paid (note iv) BfEe (M itiv) 22,895 912
Prepayments (note v) TR RIE (K atv) 9,901 7,291
Other receivables (note v, vi) H At FEUBR SR (it ety ~ vi) 25,493 6,305
58,289 14,508
Less: impairment recognised B BEEREE - =
58,289 14,508
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
N R R EaY N EES

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #;Z=2016F3 831 H I &

26. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(vi)

*

158 Asia Resources Holdings Limited EEV)

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Group has entered into a sale
and purchase agreement to acquire 15% equity interest of Shenzhen
Zhaosheng Anye. The Group has paid approximately HK$132,013,000
deposit to the vendor at the sign date of the acquisition agreement. For

the details, please refer to the announcement dated 9 February 2015.

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Group has entered into a sale
and purchase agreement to acquire 100% equity interest of Guangzhou
Shi An Ye Investment Development Company Limited* (BN & 5518 & 3%
B AR AR (“Guangzhou Shi An Ye"). The Group has paid approximately
HK$10,155,000 deposit to the vendor at the sign date of acquisition
agreement. For the details, please refer to the announcement dated 17
March 2015.

During the years ended 31 March 2016 and 2015, the Group has entered
into sale and purchase agreements to acquire investment properties
in the PRC. The amount represents the deposit paid to the vendors for

acquisition of investment properties.

The other deposits paid represents a building naming right located in
shenzhen. The Company is going to exercise the right in the coming year,
and therefore it has been reclassified as deposit paid in the year 2016.

As at 31 March 2016, deposit for acquisition of equity interest and
prepayments, deposits and other receivables of approximately
HK$48,109,000 and 16,237,000 (2015: HK$Nil and HK$3,592,000) have been
reclassified to assets classified as held for sale respectively (for details,

please refer to note 16).

As at 31 March 2016, other receivables were mainly comprised of other
tax recoverable in the PRC, payable to third party for a potential business
co-operation and cash advanced to staff of approximately HK$3,626,000,
HK$17,620,000 and HK$941,000 (2015: HK$1,545,000 and HK$4,684,000)

respectively.

For identification purpose only

N

BREBRERAR]

26.

*

AR ~ e M E AR

ARFK ()
Wik -

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

EHEHT

REZE2015F3A31BILLFE - AEEB K
BRI BT 1% L E S i -
CEEREZERBHREAERE NI MRS
#9132,013,000% T - BREFER2MBH A
20152 A9R 2 Aff o

REZE2015F3A3MNBLEFE - AEEEH
WHEENTREREZRAR AR (EM
MRE])ZE2BRETIEE Bk - A5
EEREZZEREBRZBEHRAESZFES
#910,155,000% 7 - BHAFEF2H B8 A
20154E3A17 B 2 A ©

REE2016F F20154F3A31HILEE @ &
SEERKERTRZREMEIIEE R
FoBREHAKBEREMENRNES N2
BE -

HeNEeE —BURNRIOBTH
# o ARAHRRFTEZEN  BAtEE
ENABR0165FEZENERS ©

MR2016F3A3E - WERERZS D
48,109,000 T « AT FIE « k& R EME
W R IE #916,237,0007% 7T (20154F « TR
3,592,000/ 7C) EEH DB ED B AFIEL
EZEBE(BHFBRLMME16)

R2016F3A318 « HiEREREZBELN
3,626,000 7T A B 2 B Ath AT e B1 B IE -~ g
EBIEEIESEREN S =5 3 IEH17,620,000
BT R A941,0008 TN FEIZES
(20154 : 5 B11,545,0005% 7T & 4,684,0005%
JT) °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
N R R EaY N EES

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z201653 A31H I F &

27.FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 27 BB HE AN EAR B
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS BiE

2016 2015

HK$'000 HK$'000

FBT FAT

Equity securities listed in Hong Kong at RER LT ZRAES -

quoted bid price RRE 10,632 5,820
Fair value are determined with reference to quoted market bid NEETDRBETISREETE °
price.
28. BANK BALANCES AND CASH 28. SR1TRESHR MR
As at 31 March 2016, the market rate on short-term MR2016F3A31H - FHEBREA
bank deposits of approximately HK$465,102,000 (2015: 3B A AT (20154 : 38 A ) 2 % B4R
HK$4,154,000), with average maturity of less than three months 77 17 3k #9 465,102,000 7% 7T (2015 £F -
(2015: three months) range from 0.10% to 2.70% (2015: from #94,154,0007 7t ) 2 T 4% F F| ) F
0.92% to 2.99%) per annum. 0.10% £ 2.70% (20154 : /T F0.92% &
2.99%) °
Cash and cash equivalents were denominated in the following ReRBFEEFEMUTIEEE :
currencies:
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT FHBT
RMB ARE 22,454 51,629
HKS T 482,222 285,734
Others EHAfth 809 132
505,485 337,495
The remittance of cash and cash equivalents denominated in BERBELHUARESFEZRE KRE
RMB out of the PRC is subject to the foreign exchange control SEBEEAFAETPRBNFE K INEE
restrictions imposed by the government of the PRC. H| PR 4] o
As at 31 March 2016, bank balances and cash of approximately 201663 H31H - RITHEBRRIER L
HK$1,321,000 (2015: HK$2,412,000) have been reclassified to 1,321,000/ 7T (20154 :2,412,0007% 7T )
assets classified as held for sale (for details, please refer to BEEHNOHES AR IEHEEE(RH
note 16). FI5AE2EME16) ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B ISR M RE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z201653 A31H I F &

29. TRADE PAYABLES 90 ¥ S ENEER
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FHETT
Trade payables 2 ZER IR 8,676 59,946
The following is an ageing analysis of trade payables at the RMERZE SRR DT 0
end of the reporting period: T:
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FHETT
0 to 90 days 0ZE9%0H - 59,784
91 to 180 days 912 180H 272 5
181 to 365 days 1812365H - 1
Over 365 days HEB365H 8,404 156
8,676 59,946
The average credit period on purchases is 3 months (2015: 3 BETHEEHA3IMEA (20154 : 31E
months). A) e
As at 31 March 2015, trade payables of approximately M2015F3A31H * BEZEAFERLD
HK$3,094,000 have been reclassified to liabilities directly 3,094,000 TE EF D EE HHE AR
associated with assets classified as held for sale (for details, EHECEEEZ MM G (BB
please refer to note 16). B2EWNE16) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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e PSRRI

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z201653 A31H I F &

30. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

31.

30. M FE N BRI N FEET B

2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT THT
Deposit received BiIES - 36,801
Land value added tax payable JE At + S 32 (E T 92,751 97,187
Accruals (note i) FEETE A (M ati) 1,191 1,530
Other payables (note i, ii) Hoth AT BR R (BT 37, i) 57,414 409
Accrued interest on AR EE &5
convertible notes/bonds ZIEETA B 18,616 35,410
169,972 171,337
Notes: Hiat -
() As at 31 March 2016, other payables and accruals of approximately (i)  M20165F3A31H - HttEMERRESEA

HK$Nil (2015: HK$2,120,000) have been reclassified to liabilities directly
associated with assets classified as held for sale (for details, please refer to
note 16).

(i) As at 31 March 2016, other payables were mainly comprised of received (ii)
from third party in the PRC for a potential business co-operation of
approximately HK$56,833,000 (2015: HK$Nil).

AT IT(20154F : 2,120,000 7T) E EH 5
BERESBARKEHEREERABZAR
(BRIFER2HMEe) -

M2016F3A31H - HMEMNEREZEBER
BIEEBEEEE 5 EE =5 KA IE
#956,833,000/8 7T (20154F : THTT) ©

AMOUNT DUE TO A NON-CONTROLLING  31. B — % FEi=Rg iR 8 2~ 2R08

SHAREHOLDER
The amount due to a non-controlling shareholder is FEAS
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. NG

— B IR 2 IR R EIE A

BRNEBREEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

are MR R MY AT

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z201653 A31H I F &

32. BANK BORROWINGS 32 #RITIEE
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
THExT THET
Bank borrowings RITIEE
—secured —HEH - -
The borrowings are repayable as follows: EE ZEFHWT ¢
Within one year 1F AR - -
In the second year RE2FN - -
Less: Amount due for settlement within B B 12ME A AR HAGEE
12 months (shown under current Z R (2R RE)
liabilities) BEA) - -

Amount due for settlement after 12 months  #M2E A2 S| HI4&E ~ £ %8 - -
=
=§

Bank borrowings at: BTt B ZiR1TE S
— floating interest rates —FEAE

As at 31 March 2015, secured bank borrowings having
a carrying of approximately HK$60,929,000 have been
reclassified to liabilities directly associated with assets
classified as held for sale (for details, please refer to note 16).

162 AsiaResources Holdings Limited S5 ERIERABR AR

7201543 A31H - BREI{E£760,929,000
BTN BEMRRITEEEENVOEER
BERSBARKIFHEEERBEMNAR(HE
B BR 2 EHE16)



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

are MR R MY AT

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z201653 A31H I F &

33.SHARE CAPITAL 33. fx A
Number of
ordinary
shares Amount
EBRRHE k-]
HK$'000
FHIT
Authorized: ETE
Ordinary share of HK$0.05 each, BAREE0.058 T 2 EiAR -
At 1 April 2014 R2014F4 718 2,000,000,000 500,000
Increase authorised ordinary shares ETE B RBCE N (Hta)
(Note a) 8,000,000,000 2,000,000
Ordinary share of HK$0.05 each, BAREEO.058 7T 2 iR
At 31 March 2015, 1 April 2015 201593 H31H » 20154
and 31 March 2016 4A1BK%2016%3H31H 10,000,000,000 2,500,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRARE
Ordinary share of HK$0.05 each, BAREE0.054 7T 2 EiAR -
At 1 April 2014 R2014F4 718 1,578,714,285 394,679
Conversion of convertible notes (Note b) & B[ G Z & (ffz2b) 1,194,975,715 298,744
Issue of ordinary shares upon TIEEBAR 1 BT L 3B
exercise of share options (Note c) (Kizte) 5,700,000 1,425
Ordinary share of HK$0.25 each, FRREE0.25H8 T 2 ERR -
At 31 March 2015, and 1 April 2015 201593 A31H &i20154F
4H1H 2,779,390,000 694,848
Conversion of convertible notes/bonds IR EE &5 (M itd)
(Note d) 860,000,000 215,000
Issue of ordinary shares upon T{FERER BT L B
exercise of share options (Note e) (Hiite) 34,300,000 8,575
Placement of shares (Note ) ISR An (47 5EF) 340,000,000 85,000
Share subscription (Note g) REERR (Hatg) 1,330,000,000 332,500
At 31 March 2016 2016F3H31H 5,343,690,000 1,335,923

Annual Report 2016 Fii



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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e

A 75 R R B

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #;Z=2016F3 831 H I &

Notes:

(a)

On 25 September 2014, the Company increased the authorised share
capital from HK$500,000,000 (divided into 2,000,000,000 shares) to
HK$2,500,000,000 (divided into 10,000,000,000 shares) by the creation
of an additional 8,000,000,000 shares, which will rank pari passu with all

existing shares.

On 5 June 2014, 10 June 2014, 13 June 2014, 20 June 2014, 27 June
2014, 11 July 2014, 17 July 2014, 29 August 2014, 16 September 2014,
10 October 2014 and 17 October 2014, the holders of the convertible
notes converted convertible notes of HK$12,852,250, HK$4,550,000,
HK$4,999,750, HK$1,750,000, HK$3,500,000, HK$250,000,000, HK$
4,550,000, HK$525,000, HK$875,000, HK$2,498,000 and HK$10,500,000
respectively into 36,720,715, 13,000,000, 14,285,000, 50,000,000,
10,000,000, 7,142,857, 13,000,000 15,000,000, 25,000,000, 7,137,143 and
30,000,000 ordinary shares at a conversion price of HK$0.35.

27 January 2015, 6 February 2015, 17 February 2015 and 2 March 2015,
the holders of the convertible notes converted convertible notes of
HK$53,200,000, HK$164,802,200, HK$106,400,000 and HK$45,600,000
respectively into 140,000,000, 433,690,000, 280,000,000 and 120,000,000

ordinary shares at a conversion price of HK$0.38.

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Company issued and allotted
an aggregate of 5,700,000 shares at a weighted average exercise price

HK$0.352 per share. For more details, please refer to Note 36.

Asia Resources Holdings Limited 351 & RIZHA R A A

Hrat -

R2014F9B258 © AR R EBER
8,000,000,000 P% 28 4 A% 15 # % £ BR AN
500,000,000 # 7t ( % % 2,000,000,000 f&
f% 15 ) # H0 = 2,500,000,000 #& 7T ( 5 A
10,000,000,000% f& 17 ) + 5% % AR 17 % 23R
BRNESHEZE RSFEF -

R201456 A58 ~ 201456 A108 ~ 201456
A138 - 201456 A208 - 2014F6H278 -
201447 4118 - 201447 A178 - 2014438
H298 - 201459 H168 « 2014%10H108 &
20144E10A17 8 « A REEFE ARER
80.35/8 7T 5 Bl #5 12,852,250 7T ~ 4,550,000
7 7T~ 4,999,750 7% st~ 1,750,000 #& T -
3,500,00058 7T + 250,000,0005% 7¢ - 4,550,000
7T ~ 525,000/ 7T + 875,000 7T - 2,498,000
7 7T 5. 10,500,000 7T 2 Al R R IR E R A
36,720,7158% ~ 13,000,0008% - 14,285,0008%
50,000,0004% + 10,000,0008% * 7,142,857 f% -
13,000,0008% * 15,000,0008% + 25,000,0008% *
7,137,1430% }.30,000,0008% & F% °

201541 8278 - 20152868 ~ 2015
F2R17H K%2015F3H82H « AR =i
A ARE#(E0.388 7T 5 Bl #5 53,200,000
7 T~ 164,802,200 % 7T+ 106,400,000
7 70 & 45,600,000 7 7T 2 0] 2% Z K 8
# A 140,000,000 f% - 433,690,000 A%
280,000,000/% 5.120,000,000 % % 378 %

HZE2015F3A31HILFE - AR AR INAE
T EESR032ETEITREEE &
5,700,000 % B 17 ° 3 — 2 F 15 F 2 B &
36 °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #;Z=2016F3 831 H I &

Notes: (continued)

(d)

On 8 May 2015, 19 May 2015, 22 May 2015 and 1 June 2015, the holders
of the convertible notes converted convertible notes of HK$79,800,000,
HK$102,600,000, HK$19,000,000 and HK$26,600,000 respectively into
210,000,000, 270,000,000, 50,000,000 and 70,000,000 ordinary shares at a
conversion price of HK$0.38.

On 25 November 2015, 3 December 2015 and 22 January 2016, the
holders of the convertible bonds converted convertible bonds of
HK$79,200,000, HK$37,440,000 and HK$70,560,000 respectively into
110,000,000, 52,000,000 and 98,000,000 ordinary shares at a conversion
price of HK$0.72. The Company intends to utilise the net proceeds for the
settlement of the outstanding balance of the consideration arising from
previous acquisitions and other potential business opportunities including

the real estate project.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Company issued and allotted
an aggregate of 8,000,000, 100,000 and 26,200,000 at a weighted average
exercise price HK$0.352, HK$0.52 and HK$0.395 per share respectively.

For more details, please refer to Note 36.

On 6 May 2015, the Company entered into a placing agreement (the
“Placing Agreement”) to allot and issue a total of 340,000,000 new shares
at a price of HK$0.42 per share to not less than six independent places.
The placing was completed on 22 May 2015. The Company intends to
utilise the net proceeds for property investment business of the Group and

general working capital of the Group.

On 16 November 2015, the holders of the share subscription subscribe of
HK$478,800,000 into 1,330,000,000 ordinary shares at a subscribed price
of HK$0.36. The Company intends to utilise the net proceeds as general
working capital of the Group and the investment in natural gas business

when opportunities arise.

Hret : (&)

(d)

M20159€5A88 ~ 201565H198 - 2015
F5822H %2015F6A1H » Al R =K
A A & % 8 0.38 78 7T 15 79,800,000 75
JT 102,600,000 % 7T+ 19,000,000 3% 7T &
26,600,000 7% 7T K A B R TR & 5 Bl E (L &
210,000,000/% ~ 270,000,0008% 50,000,000
% 52 70,000,0000% & @ A%

2015511 A258 - 2015512 A3H %2016
F1H228 - IRREFFHFE AREIRE0T2
75 7T #5 79,200,000 7% 7T~ 37,440,000 7T &
70,560,000 7% 7T &) 7] B #2155 5 Bl E (L &
110,000,000 f% 52,000,000 % % 98,000,000
LR o ARRRBAMSRIEFELS
EATRE R L MEEERR S (RERMER
BEENAEENELRS -

HE2016F3A31RILFE - NAFH AR
HEF1TEE0.35278 7T » 0.52/8 78 % 0.3957%
JC 17 R T 4 ££8,000,0008% + 100,000
fi& 26,200,000 B {5 - B RAFE BB 2B M
536 °

MR2015F586R - AR BRI —HAE &
#([EEWHE] @ BERER042BTHE
% AL RANBE AR ARERETE
$£340,000,000/% #7 %  ZIEFLE B 7 20154F
5A22B 5K - AN EERE) A AT SR IR F R
EREEMNYEREEBRAEBN —KE
BES -

R2015F 11 A168  RIDBERZFHFF AL
478,800,000 /% 7T, # & 1,330,000,000 A% &
B SRARIEE0.36BTT ° ARQ RIS AT
BREFHEERNEERN—REEED RN
EHRBRERAREY -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #;Z=2016F3 831 H I &

On 24 October 2013 and 15 November 2013, the Company
issued convertible notes due on 24 October 2015 with a
principal amount of HK$155,500,000 and HK$350,000,000,
which is interest free and 5% coupon rate per annum
respectively (the “2013 CN"). The convertible notes were
issued for raising equity capital for the future development.
The convertible notes are designated as fair value on initial
recognition, and are convertible into fully paid ordinary shares
with a par value of HK$0.25 each of the Company at an initial
conversion price of HK$0.35. The effective interest rate are
ranging from 14.25% to 15.78%. The Company will redeem
the convertible notes if the notes have not been converted on
maturity date. During the year ended 31 March 2015, all the
convertible notes were converted into ordinary shares.

On 15 October 2014, 22 October 2014 and 29 October
2014, the Company issued convertible notes due on 15
October 2016, 22 October 2016 and 29 October 2016 with
a principal amount of HK$190,000,000, HK$190,000,000 and
HK$228,000,000, which is intercomprising 12% coupon rate per
annum respectively (the “2014 CN"). The convertible notes
were issued for potential future investments, including real
estate projects and the general working capital of the Group.
The convertible notes are designated as fair value on initial
recognition and are convertible into fully paid ordinary shares
with a par value of HK$0.25 each of the Company at an initial
conversion price of HK$0.38. The effective interest rate are
ranging from 14.29% to 14.64%. The Company will redeem
the convertible notes if the notes have not been converted
on maturity date. The principal amount of convertible notes
outstanding was approximately HK$9,997,800 as at 31 March
2016.

On 20 August 2015, the Company issued convertible bond due
on 20 August 2018 with a principal amount of HK$432,000,000,
which is intercomprising 4% coupon rate per annum (the
“2015 CB"). The convertible bonds were issued for potential
future investments, including real estate projects and the
general working capital of the Group. The convertible bonds
are designated as fair value on initial recognition and are
convertible into fully paid ordinary shares with a par value
of HK$0.25 each of the Company at an initial conversion
price of HK$0.72. The effective interest rate is 15.91%. The
Company will redeem the convertible bonds if the bonds
have not been converted on maturity date. The principal
amount of convertible bonds outstanding was approximately
HK$244,800,000 as at 31 March 2016.

Asia Resources Holdings Limited 351 & RIZHA R A A

72013510824 H % 20135118158
XA B EE 1T AR & K8 & 155,500,000 7% 7T
%.350,000,0005%8 7T 7 20154 10 A 24 H
BB A AR E - DRI AR EREF
SEZS([2013F A IR ZHE |) - 81T
ARREREEARKERESERAE o
TRBREBDIRITHEREEEASR
FEARR » YA #%0.35/8 T 2 ¥ iR
B AR QR SR EE.2SB T ZH
BEBARK - BEREFMENFR14.25% =
15.78% ° NN R HE R Al R AR 245 - Al
REZEZEZERIPRARER SR - HE
20153 A31HIEFER » FiA AJ [
ZEREERBATRR -

MR20145 108158 ~ 2014510 A 22 H
N2014F 108298 © KRR DBIZEITA
% %8 /% 190,000,000 7T ~ 190,000,000
7 70 & 228,000,000 7T+ W 2016 F
108158 ~ 201610 A 22 B 20164
10A29B B EEMERBEF12%.2
AR =5 ([ 2014 F AT HRRR =45 |) o /]
BREE TR EEERB £R 2
EHREERAEE —REEES MR
17 ° AT EE TR ZEREIET A
NEEAER - WA#7038B L2958
BMEEREARRREREE2SBTL
HREEE - BEREMENTR14.29%F
14.64% ° AR Al G E R AR R & -
AR AZEZEREHBERER R - B
20163 H318 @ MARITEZAIRRKRE
B2 ARERE) A9,997,800/8 7T ©

20158 A20H @ A ARIZEITAELEE
7% 432,000,000 % 7L 10 2018 £ 8 H 20 H
B  ZEERABEFFA4% 2 A BRE S
([2015F Al AR fES ) - AIHRMRIESTD
REREHEEBEAZBEARKE
RAEE—REEESMETT o AJRRK
BHETIRVTERRET AR AFEEA
B WA#20.72/8 70 2 ¥ ik B ik
BARRSRAEMBE02SETLZAMR LR
B% o BFRFIR A15.91% ° AN Q &) 5 HE 5
ARES - fiRAZRSESFNEEA
RIEHH o BR2016%3H31H @ MA&TT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #;Z=2016F3 831 H I &

The convertible notes recognised in the statement of financial
position were calculation as follows:

2013 CN
2013%F
AR EE
HK$'000
BT
Equity component i)
At 1 April 2014 201454 H1H 48,238
Issue of convertible notes BT IRAR = -
Converted into shares during & A& &5 (7
the year (48,238)
At 31 March and 1 April 2015 720153 A31H &
4H1H =
Issue of convertible notes BT RR IR =
Converted into shares during & A& &% (7
the year -
At 31 March 2016 "2016F3H31H =
Liability component =N %)
At 1 April 2014 20144 A1H 4,837
Issue of convertible notes/bonds 27T ] iR Z= %~
&5 =
Converted into shares during & A& &% (7
the year (10,004)
Imputed interest expense HEMEXZH
charged 6,371
Interest paid EfTALE (1,204)
At 31 March and 1 April 2015 A2015%3 8318 &
4H1H =
Issue of convertible notes/bonds £/ ARG Z= 1%
(EE- =
Converted into shares during & A& &% (7
the year -
Imputed interest expense HE R B
charged -
Interest paid ENHE -
At 31 March 2016 M2016F3H31H =

The fair value of the convertible notes/bonds issued has been
arrived on the basis of a valuation carried out on the date of issue
by Peak Vision Appraisals Limited, independent professional
valuers not connect with the Group. As at 31 March 2016, the
fair value of the 2014 CN and 2015 CB were approximately of
HK$10,066,000 and HK$208,576,000 (2015: HK$43,945,000 and
HK$NIl) respectively.

B FEAR R MR 2 Al R RS Z 45 o=t
=/ N

2014 CN 2015 CB Total
2014% 20154

TMRREE [TRRES et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THEIT T T T T

- - 48,238

18,091 - 18,091
(10,882) - (59,120)
7,209 - 7,209

- 119,993 119,993
(6,879) (47,432) (54,311)
330 72,561 72,891

- - 4,837
581,657 = 581,657
(357,884) - (367,888)
30,408 = 36,779
(24,892) - (26,096)
229,289 = 229,289
— 312,007 312,007

(220,852) (139,982) (360,834)

5,870 24,904 30,774
(4,661) (8,481) (13,142)
9,646 188,448 198,094

BETABEKZEE E52AFE
R PR EL R S B N0 R B 2 B B
ERMEETEARARNRETHEF
HEIT 2 HEES - N20165E3831H -
20144 7] #2 % Z 4% K 2015 4F Al 2 iR (&
%52 NFED B A10,066,00078 7T K&
208,576,000 7t (20154 : 43,945,000
BILRTHETL) o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
N R R EaY N EES

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z201653 A31H I F &

35.DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

The components of deferred tax liabilities recognised on

35. BEMIBEE
RELE2016F K 201538318 ILEE
A REEE T BERRKRERBELETRIE
BEMMAKE D REBIT

the consolidated statement of financial position and the
movements during the years 31 March 2016 and 2015 are as
follows:

Fair value
adjustments
arising from

acquisition of
subsidiaries

W BB BT R 2 R
BEEXZATE
AR
HK$'000
TR
Deferred tax arising from: THEERELNIELESRE :
At 1 April 2014 R2014F4 318 =
Charged to the consolidated statement ireiEm kAT ERER
of profit or loss and other comprehensive FRH0BR
income 46,324
At 31 March 2015 and 1 April 2015 20153 4318 &2015F4 A1H 46,324
Credited to the consolidated statement STASREEEREMEEKER
of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income (2,114)
At 31 March 2016 R2016%3A31H 44,210

2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
F&T FHET
Net deferred tax liabilities in the RERE SRR R ER A
consolidated statement of financial BT I B EFEE
position 44,210 46,324
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #;Z=2016F3 831 H I &

The Company's share options scheme adopted on 14 January
2002 (the “2002 Share Option Scheme”) for the purposes of
recognition of significant contribution of and for the provision
of incentives to any directors, employees (whether full-time
or part-time), consultants, customers, suppliers, agents,
partners or advisors of or contractors to the Group or affiliates
(“Eligible Persons”). On 12 July 2011, the Company had
granted 140,500,000 share options to directors, employees
and other affiliates under the 2002 Share Option Scheme.

The 2002 Share Option Scheme has been terminated on 9
August 2011 and a new share option scheme (the “2011 Share
Option Scheme”) was adopted by the Company on 9 August
2011.

The 2011 Share Option Scheme is adopted for the same
purpose of the 2002 Share Option Scheme.

Under the terms of the 2011 Share Option Scheme, the Board
of Directors of the Company may for a notional consideration
of HK$1 grant option to the Eligible Persons to subscribe for
shares in the Company at a price no less than the higher of
(i) the closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of offer
of the option (which must be a business day); (ii) the average
closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's
daily quotations sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of offer of the option. Options granted
under the 2011 Share Option Scheme must be taken up
within 28 business days from the date on which the offer is
made by returning a written acceptance of the offer signed
by the Eligible Persons together with the payment of HK$1
per option (the “Acceptance Conditions”). Options granted
and accepted may be exercised at any time for 10 years
commencing on the date on which an option is accepted in
accordance with the Acceptance Conditions under the 2011
Share Option Scheme (the “Option Period”). Options granted
under the Scheme will be exercisable in the Option Period
notwithstanding that the scheme period of the 2011 Share
Option Scheme does not prescribe any minimum period for
which an option must be held before it can be exercised and
has not specified that the exercise of an option is subject to
any performance target.

ANAF 2R 200241 A 14 B BE 40 B AL 4
FTEI([2002F 5% #ERTEl]) - BES T
AEBSKEBARZEMNES - EE(CH
MR ERE) B BE - HER -
REBA - R ASZBASEBEE (&
BRALDFIEHZEZ TR - WAK
LR IEE) - N2011E7 A 128 - AR
AIERIE2002F ERIETENES - &
8 K H h Bt 8 A R] 5% i 140,500,00017 B
& #E o

2002 FF BE RS HE ST I 2 1A201158 HOR KR
1 MARATR20115E8 AR A —IE
FIEA T2 ([ 2011 EEEB P RERT &I ) -

2011 F BB A RT 81 T 5 1% 822002 4F B AU #E
At 8|2 H8F B BERA

RIE2011 FBERT BI Z (F5K - AR F]
EERNURBAREIETAARER
ATREBRE - AT DRV IR2EKR
BER(BAREER)ARNRR MM
R RRERARZEHE () BEE
RZ2EIEE B AL E S % ARG E
R B RERRZ PR HE AR
BER/E) - RIF201FREREEE
HzBRESNANZBASERALRE
BZEMBORMARG  ERREEE
RSB T ([ ZRAIERE]DETED
B HEF28EE XA AEER - B KR
B2 B A AR B 2011 F A AT 8
BEMGTERABREESE BEF10FR
([FERREHAR ) BERF 1T (% - RIBAT B
2z BREANBREREATE &
B2011 F R RO AT 8130 B AR T RE B
TEMZRERBY > TEEETER
PR BEAIRERR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #;Z=2016F3 831 H I &

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the 2011 Share
Option Scheme cannot exceed 10% (the “Limit”) of the issued
share capital of the Company at the date of adoption of the
2011 Share Option Scheme, excluding any options lapsed in
accordance with the terms of the 2011 Share Option Scheme
and any other share option schemes.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company shall not, in aggregate, exceed
30% of the total number of shares in issue from the time to
time. Option will not be granted to any Eligible Persons if
the exercise in full of all options, including any unexercised
options and shares already issued under all previous option
granted, would in the 12-month period up to and including
the date of such further grant enable that relevant Eligible
Person to have shares exceeding 1% of the issued shares of the
Company for the time being unless separate approval by the
shareholders in general meeting is obtained.

2002 Share Option Scheme

As at 31 March 2015, the number of shares in respect of which
share options remained outstanding under 2002 Share Option
Scheme was 3,500,000, representing 0.126% of the shares of
the Company in issue at 31 March 2015.

As at 31 March 2016, the number of shares in respect of which
share options remained outstanding under 2002 Share Option
Scheme was 3,220,000, representing 0.060% of the shares of
the Company in issue at the reporting date.

Asia Resources Holdings Limited 351 & RIZHA R A A

RIE2011 FRERRERT SR L 2 FT B B
PRI TR AT 2R EE RZ T
A ABBAN A B AR 49201 1 G BE AR A =1 2
B HDETRAZ10% (e EEE2011
FIEERTE R ER RS 2
1RFREB R EfrI B A ) ([ EBR 1) o

RAE AT &) M AN R R ] Ho Al R A A 5t 3
BB HARITRZ BRAEEETE
BA FHRTZENER  REAHATF
BB EBEITRD BB Z30% ° R
BEEMBRZE-—FRTZAHZ12(E
AHEEmTEE SERE(BREERR
RITEZBRERREMEBERLZ
BIREMETCRD) EHEHEER
ATHBEARRRERH 2B BHITHRMDESR
1% AIERE/S TSR TEMNEERA
T BRIFECRERAE ERGHRRST
B - RIBHISN -

2002 F BB IR REST 8l

PR2015F3 A318 @ 720024 & i i 5t
BB TN ARTTE 2 BB EL & 2 I&n
# B 43,500,0000% * 1542 AR 20154
3A31AE /TN 20.126% °

R2016F3 A31H - 120024 3E I AE =t
SITE TR ARITEE 2 BRRAES &2’k
# B 53,220,0008% ' {EARQ RN ®E B
HAE 817 /% 19 20.060% °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
N R R EaY N EES

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z201653 A31H I F &

36. SHARE OPTIONS (CONTINUED) 36 MRk ()
2002 Share Option Scheme (continued) 2002 R RS EI ()
During the year under review, the details and movements in REBFEA - RIE2002F BRE S
the share options granted under 2002 Share Option Scheme BB M EESE T

are as follows:

Number of share options
BRELA
Adjusted  Outstanding Granted  Exercised Lapsed  Cancelled Outstanding
exercise price  at 1 April during during during during  at 31 March
Date of grant Exercisable period per share 2015 the year the year the year the year 2016
R2015% 20165
sREHE 418 3A31H
RHAH s R BATE  REARE  RERTE  REARN  REREE AR
(Note i)
(i)
HKS$
AT
Category 1: Directors 12 July 2011 12 July 2011 - 11 July 2021 1775 420,000 - - 280,000) - 140,000
Fil-: &% MNMETANE ANETARBENNFTANA
Category 2: Employees 12 July 2011 12 July 2011 - 11 July 2021 1775 3,080,000 - - - - 3,080,000
Bl R NETA1RE WNETR1BENNETANA
Total for all categories 3,500,000 - - 280,000) - 3,220,000
IRl
Weighted average
exercise price (HK9) 1.775 - - 1.775 - 1.775
EraREGET)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
N R R EaY N EES

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z201653 A31H I F &

36. SHARE OPTIONS (CONTINUED) 36 ERHE(E)
2002 Share Option Scheme (continued) 2002 F BB IR RERT 2 (48)
Number of share options
REREZE
Adjusted Reclassification
exercise  Outstanding ~ of categories Granted Exercised Lapsed  Cancelled  Outstanding
price at 1 April during during during during during ~ at 31 March
Date of grant  Exercisable period per share 2014 the year the year the year the year the year 2015
B8R 2014 #2015
3z 481 ERERE 38318
BHAH i iR HAGTE EfOR  REARE  REROE  REAKN  REAEH WA
(Note ) (Note ii)
(Hidti) (i)
HKS
AT
Category 1: Directors 12 July 2011 12 July 2011 - 11 July 2021 1775 2,620,000 2,200,000) - - - - 420,000
Bhl- g% MIEFIRNA - DNFTANAENNFIANA
Category 2: Employees 12 July 2011 12 July 2011 - 11 July 2021 1775 880,000 2,200,000 - - - - 3,080,000
BHI=: g8 DIETAIE NNETAAZANETANR
Category 3: Other ffiliates 12 July 2011 12 July 2011 - 11 July 2021 1775 80,000 - - - (80,000 - -

ERI= EMEEALT  ONETR12R 0NMETR12BENNETANE

Total for all categories 3,580,000 = - - (80,000) - 3,500,000
Rt
Weighted average
exercise price (HK9) 1775 1775 - - 1.775 - 1.775
METARE(ER)
Notes: Kt
() The closing price of the Company'’s shares quoted on the Stock Exchange ()  ANRFRG R E B BR3P TR 2 W
on the date of grant was HK$0.071 (adjusted to HK$1.775 upon capital fE7/R0.071 8 T (RIRANEHRK2013F6A3H
reorganization became effective on 3 June 2013). ERIEFARR1.7758TT) °
(i)  Each of Mr. Chim, Mr. Cheung and Mr. Yeung resigned as a director of (i) EEAE - REERBEEDBIN2014F128
the Company on 11 December 2014, 20 January 2015 and 20 January 2015 118 + 201591 A208 % 201541 A 208 &t
respectively, but they remained as director of certain subsidiaries of the ARBEF  BERFRABEAEEE THE
Group during the year. Therefore, their respective outstanding options RAIZESE - At - HE B WARITRBRE
have been reclassified under “Employees” category. BEEFOEZE [EE IR -
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #;Z=2016F3 831 H I &

2002 F B AR AESTBI (&)
REZE201MF3A31HIEFER T ER
B2AFENFEA-ZEAPECEEREN
EfE - ZEABREEE 2 BAE -

2002 Share Option Scheme (continued)

The fair value of the share options granted during the year
ended 31 March 2011 were priced using the Trinomial model.
The inputs into the model share option type.

2002 Share

Option Scheme

2002F BB IR T &

Grant date share price i B EARE HK$0.0717 7T

Exercise price 1B HK$0.07 1757

Adjusted exercisable price after Capital Reorganisation ~ RAMAFAR 2 &FAEITHEE HK$1.775% 7T

Expected volatility TR AR 18 78.743%

Expected option life T HR B P A < A 10 years4F

Dividend yield PSS 0%

Risk-free interest rate 42 [ e 1) 2= 2.796%
2011 Share Option Scheme 2011 F B IR =T &

On 26 August 2014, 15,500,000 share options were granted to
directors and employees under 2011 Share Option Scheme at
an exercisable price of HK$0.352 per share.

On 25 September 2014, an ordinary resolution was duly
passed by the shareholders at a special general meeting of
the Company, approving, inter alia, to refresh the scheme
mandate limit under the 2011 Share Option Scheme of the
Company adopted on 9 August 2011. The refreshed scheme
limit as at 25 September 2014 was 176,286,285.

On 3 October 2014, 59,000,000 share options were granted to
directors and employees under 2011 Share Option Scheme at
an exercisable price of HK$0.52 per share.

As at 31 March 2015, the number of shares in respect of which
share options remained outstanding under 2011 Share Option
Scheme was 68,800,000, representing 2.48% of the Shares of
the Company in issue at 31 March 2015.

As at 31 March 2016, the number of shares in respect of which
share options remained outstanding under 2011 Share Option
Scheme was 139,800,000, representing 2.62% of the Shares of
the Company in issue at the reporting date.

R2014F8 H268 @ AR AR E20114F
R SR TEEZAR0.3528 T M E
= K& B # H15,500,00017 BE A% #E -

R2014F9 A25H » —HEBRERN
AABZRERFRIAE EEIENXBB
LABEfE (R 838 BT AN R R] 020114
SHOBHMZ 201 FHERERTEBETZ
SHEIREREE - P2014F9 8258 2 B
BHETEIREE5176,286,28517 °

R2014F10A3H @+ AR RIEE20114
BT EIRTHEEER0.52BTAE
%= K& B # H59,000,00017 B A% -

R2015F3 318 @ ZIBRE2011F R
RETEIR E M ADARITE 2 B AR AE 2 IR 0
B 4 68,800,0000% * {5742 "] #2015
FIANBE#EITHRN 22.48% °

201653318 « BR#E2011 FHER
REETRIR LMD ARTT 6 2 BB AR 2 B tn
B /5139,800,0000% « (AR A AR I®E
HEIE BTN 22.62% -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
N R R EaY N EES

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z201653 A31H I F &

36.SHARE OPTIONS (CONTINUED) 36. BERR#E (48)
2011 Share Option Scheme (continued) 2011 FIB IR RERT 8 (48)
During the year ended 31 March 2016 and 2015, the details BLE20165F K 2015F3A31RIEFE -
and movements in the share options granted under 2011 Share RIE2011 FEEARHERT 8I B 1% 1 2 BB AR 4
Option Scheme are as follows: ZEBEREHMT
Number of share options
BRERR
Reclassification
Exercise  Outstanding  of categories Granted Exercised Lapsed Cancelled  Outstanding
price at 1 April during during during during during  at 31 March
Date of grant  Exercisable period per share 2015 the year the year the year the year the year 2016
20158 20168
8R 4818 ERERE 38318
RLAH 8 ikl AR EfRE  WEARE  RERGE  WERXR  REREH AR
(Note )
(Wit
HKS
AL
Category 1: Directors 26 August 2014 26 August 2014 - 25 August 2024 0.3 1,200,000 (200,000) - (400,000) 200,000) - 400,000
Bi- 2% DI4EBA%E  2014E8R2E-UEBAISE
3October 2014 3 October 2014-2 October 204 0,520 20,000,000 (8,000,000) - - (10,000,000 - 2,000,000
N14E10A38  014E10A3B-2024510A28
20 April 201520 April 2015- 19 April 2025 0.395 - (338000000 100800000 (12,000,000) - - 55000000

1554208 W01554A208-200554A19R

Category 2: Employees 26 August 2014~ 26 August 2014 - 25 August 204~ 0352 8,600,000 200,000 - (7,600,000) - - 1,200,000
L | W14E8A2E  W14E8A26B-20458A25H
3October 2014 3 October 2014-2 October 2024 0520 39,000,000 8,000,000 - (100,000 (1,500,000) - 45400000
NUEI0A3E  W14E10A3B-204510A28
20 April 201520 April 201519 April 2025 0.3% - 33800000 3,000,000 (1,000,000) = - 35800000

WISEAANA 201554 A20R-200554A198

Category 3 Consultant 20 April 2015 20 April 201519 Apri 2025 0.395 - - 13200000 (13,200,000) - = -
= Bl M15E4A208  201554A208-2025847198

Totalfor all categories 68,800,000 - 17000000 (34300000 (11,700,000) - 139,800,000
HRERIE:

Weighted average
exercise price (HKS)

METEAERGET) 0496 = 0395 0385 0517 = 0437
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
N R R EaY N EES

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z201653 A31H I F &

36. SHARE OPTIONS (CONTINUED)

36. BRHE (48)

2011 Share Option Scheme (continued) 2011 B IR ST 8 ()
Number of share options
BREHRA
Reclassification
Exercise  Outstanding ~of categories Granted Exercised Lapsed  Cancelled  Outstanding
price at 1 April during during during during during  at 31 March
Date of grant  Exercisable period per share 214 the year the year the year the year the year 2015
R20145 R20158
= 4818 EmERIE 3A318
RHAH k8 fikE WA ENAR REARE  RERAR  RERRR REREE AR
(Note )
(Witi)
HKS
AT
Category 1: Directors 26 August 2014 26 August 2014-25 August 2024 0.3%2 - (7.400,000) 12,200,000 (3,600,000) - - 1,200,000
Bi-: 8% DIEBANE  N14E8R2E-UEBAE
3 October 2014 3 October 2014 - 2 October 2024 0.520 - (250000000 45,000,000 - - - 20,000,000
NV4E0A3R  N14E10A3B-2024%10728
Category 2: Employees 26 August 2014 26 August 2014 - 25 August 2024 0352 - 7,400,000 3,300,000 2,100,000) - - 8,600,000
Loy =1 014E8R268  201458R268-202448A25H
3October 2014 3 October 2014-2 October 2024 0520 - 25000000 14,000,000 - - - 39,000,000
N14510A38  014510A36-2024510A28
Total for all categories - 74,500,000 (5,700,000 - - 68,800,000
FRERlEst
Weighted average
exercise price (HK9)
WETLREET) - 0478 0352 - - 0488
Note: Wi
(i) Each of Mr. Lin and Mr. Mo resigned as a director of Asia Resources (i) MRS A R SE AR 2015411 A 16 A B EZE M

Holdings Limited on 16 November 2015, but Mr. Lin remained as director
of certain subsidiaries of the Group during the year; Mr. Mo remained as
director of certain subsidiaries of the Group till 17 March 2016. Therefore,
their respective outstanding options have been reclassified under
"Employees” category.

Each of Mr. Chim, Mr. Cheung and Mr. Yeung resigned as a director of
the Company on 11 December 2014, 20 January 2015 and 20 January 2015
respectively, but they remained as director of certain subsidiaries of the
Group during the year. Therefore, their respective outstanding options
have been reclassified under “Employees” category.

For equity-settled share-based payments with parties other than
employees, the Group has rebutted the presumption that the fair values
of the services received can be estimated reliably. As in the opinion of the
directors, the Group measured the services received from these parties
and its fair value is approximate to the fair values of the share options
granted using the trinomial option pricing model, at the date these parties
rendered related services to the Group.

(i)

ARERERABNES  MMELERER
BEAEBETHEBARZES - EXE2016
FIA178 - REEBEAEEE TIBRR
ZEE AN EXAHRTERBEREEES
o= [ES K5 -

BRE  REERBEEDRIN2014F128
118 ~ 2015451 A20 B 201541 B 20 B #HE
ARBEE  BERFRBETAEERS TH B
REIZES - At - HE B MATTEERE
EEHHEZE BB 18R -

SLERT#I77 (BRBRRIN) Z BAEEEARMN A
ERZNRME @ AEERE - ERRZR
B2 ATFEENSEG - EFERR  R&F
AT RASBRREERBAREZ B AE
Bt 8 B FA DRI Z RE RE X FE
HEA=AARECERAR L 2 BREZ
RHEHRE ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

are MR R MY AT

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z201653 A31H I F &

36.SHARE OPTIONS (CONTINUED) 36 FEIRE ()
2011 Share Option Scheme (continued) 2011 B IR ST 8 ()
The fair value of the share options granted during the year REZE2016F3A31H I FEREHEK
ended 31 March 2016 of approximately HK$35,564,000 were 7 2 A F{E#735,564,00078 L 3£ A =
pricing using the Trinomial model. The inputs into the model HXHAREEEXEE 2B 2B A
were as follow: (EROINE
2011 Share Option Scheme
Granted on
2011 iR fEEH 8
RHBH
20 April 26 August 3 October
2015 2014 2014
R2015% R2014% M2014%
4H20H 8H26H 10A3H
Grant date share price i A ERRE HK$0.395/%7 T  HK$0.345487C  HK$0.52%8 7T
Exercise price 1T1E(E HK$0.395/7C  HK$0.352/#7C  HKS$0.52% 7T
Expected volatility TR 8 73.37% 71.09% 71.741%
Expected option life & HR R Ak v o B 10 years4F 10 years4F 10 years4F
Dividend yield i B & 0% 0% 0%
Risk-free interest rate EENE YRS 1.4% 1.919% 1.969%
37.ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 37. BB QA
(i) Acquisition of Longxinchang (i) WEBEmRE

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group
acquired 100% of the issued share capital of
Longxinchang at a consideration of approximately
HK$16,613,000. Longxinchang is engaging in investment,
provision of investment advisory, information advisory
and investment management service and domestic trade.
The acquisition has been completed on 23 October 2015.
Please refer to announcement dated 18 September 2015.

HE2016F3A831HILFE - A&
B U BE £ X 2 100% B 2 /TR A -
RIB4)516,613,0005 7T  E RS
HELE -  EREHEEERRE - &
FER - URIEEETERBEME A
B5 o WEEM2015F 10238 5%
BX - B2 AR HEA2015
FOHI8H Z A °

HK$'000
FHTT
Fair value of the assets acquired and REBHRFAESEEREREGBZATE
liabilities recognised at the date of
acquisition
Prepayment and other receivable T A5 R IE B B fh e LS AR K 16,490
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRNIRE 123
Total identifiable net assets at fair value AR EEFELRE - IRATE 16,613
Total consideration BRE (16,613)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
N R R EaY N EES

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #;Z=2016F3 831 H I &

(i) WEERSE(HE)

(i) Acquisition of Longxinchang (continued)

The acquisition has been accounted for using the
acquisition method.

Acquisition-related costs amounting to approximately
HK$165,000 have been excluded from the consideration
transferred and have been recognised as an expense in
the period, within the “administrative expenses” line item
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

RBEWBDHRARBEAR -

Y5 78 48 B8 A AN 7% B0 165,00078 7T
ERERAEPME - YOEHR
RiFeBEEREMEEEER (1T
B |HB THERA/MX -

Net cash outflow from the acquisition Ue g 2 IR & m R 58
Cash consideration paid BERNRENRE (16,613)
Bank balances and cash acquired FrERIT s R & 123

Impact of acquisition on the results of Longxinchang
Included in the loss for the year is approximately
of HK$1,000 attributable to the additional business
generated by Longxinchang. Longxinchang did not
generate any revenue during the period.

Had these business combinations been effected at
1 April 2015, the revenue of the Group would have
been approximately HK$4,454,000, and the loss for
the year from continuing operations would have been
approximately HK$142,874,000. The Directors consider
these “pro-forma” numbers to represent an approximate
measure of the performance of the combined group on
an annualised basis and to provide a reference point for
comparison in future periods.

(16,490)

WIBHIEMRE 2 ¥EEH 2 ZE
AEEZEES BIEA1,0008 TE
REZBINEIE MG 2 R - BIR
SRR E AT BA -

Wit EEBEHR2015F4 A1
HEE®  AEBEZHRAZLA
4,454,000%8 7T * ANEERBEFEL
TS E B8 4 £ 142,874,000 7
Lo BEERE - MEF[HEEZIHFER
KEAHEERFELEFENRKIE
WA et = RIRMHE B & AR ETHY
LEESES, -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

are MR R MY AT

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z201653 A31H I F &

37.ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(CONTINUED)

37. WEEMT B A B (&)

(ii) Acquisition of It HEBERIRZAER QT

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group
acquired 100% of the issued share capital of It /A
BB 5B ARlat a consideration of approximately
HK$127,000. t REBEIREMAMRAF is inactive. The
acquisition has been completed during the year.

The acquisition of Jt REBEIRAMREMR QA did not
constitute a business. In accordance with HKFRS 3, such

acquisition did not give rise to goodwill.

(i) WBLREBRIRAHABR

YN

REZE2016F3A31HIEEE - K
SEWBILRERARZRAER
RAZHEBTRA  REAY
127,000/ 7L ° t REBEIR A
BRAREEEY - WHERERFA
TERK ©

WiEdt BB AR A AAR A RL
TRK—IBER - REFEM B R
SEREIN - ZWBTELRE -

HK$'000
FHTT
Fair value of the assets acquired and RUBRHMEEERBRAGEZATE
liabilities recognised at the date of
acquisition
Property, plant and equipment L N e 97
Bank balances and cash RITHAEBRNIRE 30
Total identifiable net assets at fair value BAFEFEZ A #AEEFEERE 127
Total consideration BRE (127)
Net cash outflow from the acquisition b 2 30 & i i F R
Cash consideration paid BERNRENRE (127)
Bank balances and cash acquired FrERIT R R & 30
(97)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z201653 A31H I F &

37.ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(CONTINUED)

37. WEEMT B A B (&)

(iii) Acquisition of Guangzhou Shi An Ye

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group
acquired 100% of the issued share capital of Guangzhou
Shi An Ye at a consideration of approximately
HK$12,737,000. Guangzhou Shi An Ye is engaging in
general consultancy service. The acquisition has been
completed on 4 May 2015.

(iii) WEBEM D L%
REZE2016F3A3MHIEFE @ &
EEWRERMNTZEEICETR
A RIEA#K12,737,0008 7T - &
M ZERBREBEMRS - Wi
E7R2015F5 4 H R °

HK$'000
FET
Fair value of the assets acquired and REBHRFAESEEREREGBZATE
liabilities recognised at the date of
acquisition
Trade and other receivables B 5 N E b e WGk IE 12,758
Accruals and other FEErE R R HEA (40)
Bank balances and cash IRTTHEBARE 19
Total identifiable net assets at fair value AV EFEZ A #A B EFERARE 12,737
Total consideration BRE (12,737)

The acquisition has been accounted for using the
acquisition method.

Acquisition-related costs amounting to approximately
HK$25,000 have been excluded from the consideration
transferred and have been recognised as an expense in
the period, within the “administrative expenses” line item
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

RAWBDRBUWEEARK -

Y 5 A8 B R AN 4925,0008 TT 2 (8
FZRETME - YCEHARGS
BahkEtE2ERER [TTHRX]
JAH THERRRX

Net cash outflow from the acquisition W IR &R FEEE

Cash consideration paid BB eNRE (12,737)

Bank balances and cash acquired FRER1T AR R IR & 19
(12,718)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
N R R EaY N EES

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #;Z=2016F3 831 H I &

(iii) Acquisition of Guangzhou Shi An Ye (iii) WIBEMN T 22 (&)

(continued)

Impact of acquisition on the results of Guangzhou Shi
An Ye

Included in the loss for the year is approximately
of HK$1,000 attributable to the additional business
generated by Guangzhou Shi An Ye. Guangzhou Shi
An Ye did not generate any revenue during the period.

Had these business combinations been effected at
1 April 2015, the revenue of the Group would have
been approximately HK$4,454,000, and the loss for
the year from continuing operations would have been
approximately HK$142,874,000. The Directors consider
these "pro-forma” numbers to represent an approximate
measure of the performance of the combined group on
an annualised basis and to provide a reference point for
comparison in future periods.

(iv) Acquisition of Utmost Creation group

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Group
acquired 100% of the share capital of Utmost Creation
Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries (“Utmost
Creation group”) at a consideration of approximately
HK$450,000,000. The Utmost Creation group is engaging
in real estate development and sale. The acquisition has
been completed on 13 June 2014. Please refer to the
announcement and circular dated 11 March 2014 and 26
May 2014, 11 June 2014 and 13 June 2014 respectively.

Asia Resources Holdings Limited 351 & RIZHA R A A

e L s FE T oY
E=
74 [ 5 1R 7R B 4 01,0000% 7T B
INTE % 2 BN AR NS 2 F0E -
P 17 22 42 70 B P 3 4 2 A A AT M
AO

it EEBEHR2015F4 A1
HEAS AEBZBABLE
4,454,000 7 * NERERBFEL
B TS B S 4 5 142,874,000 7
L BEERA - MFE [HE HFER
FEAHEERFRELEFERNRKRE
AT E RIREE B2 B REETH
LEE2ES -

(iv) B EAIE R

HZE2015F3A31MHILEE » A&
& LA (B £9450,000,0005 7T YW BE 2
BlERBRARREWB AR ([{E
B3R E ) Z 100% A  (E Al
TIREBN EEMELE RIS -
ZUWEE B R2014F6A13H /K °
F2E BB R A2014F3A118
N 2014455 26 H ~ 201446 A 11
HK2014F6 A 138 2 A KRk o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
N R R EaY N EES

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z201653 A31H I F &

37.ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 37 WEMB AR (&)
(CONTINUED)
(iv) Acquisition of Utmost Creation group (continued) (iv) WIBBREIIZRESE(F)
Carrying amount
of Utmost
Creation group'’s Fair value
identifiable of Utmost
net assets Creation group'’s
before Fair value identifiable
combination adjustment net assets
SO AR AIER BRIEZER
SEZABEE KB 25
BEEFREZ EEFEZ
BREE ATERR A¥E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET FHET
Property, plant and equipment M - BB MR 900 - 900
Properties under development BERPYE 316,139 282,485 598,624
Prepayment, deposits and other  FE{FIE - £ 4 RH
receivables b & Uk BR 7R 114,155 - 114,155
Bank balances and cash RITEHR MRS 2,426 = 2,426
Accruals and other fEst BB REM (29,507) = (29,507)
Land value added tax T I (E = (97,187) (97,187)
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIABE - (46,324) (46,324)
404,113 138,974 543,087
Total consideration mRE (450,000)
Provisional gain on bargain A = )4
purchase recognised in the HitzmKamR A
consolidated statement of profit R ERZHE
or loss and other comprehensive U B UK 75
income 93,087
Net cash outflow from the WiE 2 & 558
acquisition
Cash consideration paid ENBEeNKE (450,000)
Bank balances and FrigsRIT 4R K
cash acquired He 2,426

(447,574)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
N R R EaY N EES

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #;Z=2016F3 831 H I &

(iv) Acquisition of Utmost Creation group (continued)

(a)

(b)

Bargain purchase on the acquisition

A valuation report received upon completion of the
acquisition indicated that the fair value of properties
under development of the Utmost Creation group
at the date of acquisition was approximately of
HK$598,624,000, which was approximately of
HK$282,485,000 greater than the original carrying
amount.

The valuation of properties under development was
increased by approximately of HK$282,485,000 and
land value added tax and deferred tax liabilities
was increased by approximately of HK$97,187,000
and HK$46,324,000 at the date of acquisition
respectively. There was a corresponding gain on
bargain purchase of approximately HK$93,087,000 as
a result of the fair value of Utmost Creation group’s
identifiable net assets exceeds the fair value of the
consideration transferred.

Impact of acquisition on the result of the Utmost
Creation Group

Included in the loss for the year of approximately
HK$9,102,000 (gain on bargain purchase excluded)
attributable to the Group by the Utmost Creation
Group. Had these business combinations been
effected at 1 April 2014, the loss for the year
from continuing operations would have been
HK$216,720,000. The directors of the Group
considered these “pro-forma” numbers to represent
an approximate measure of the performance of
the performance of the combined group on an
annualized basis and to provide a reference point for
comparison in future periods.
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(iv) W ERIZEREE ()

(a)

(6)

WiEFEE 2 ZEWRE
RUEB e iR IR B 2 (hE RS

SECERTMERAFELY
7£5598,624,000 7T © EF 4
282,485,00078 JL 8 JR AR 2 BR
HEAZ °

RUREEBE - BRPYEZE
{8 12 AN 49 282,485,000 7T K
THREHRKELEHBEE
2 B3 HN#997,187,0007% It K
46,324,0007 7T © EBIFERR &
BraHplEEFEZAT
EertE@#zEzREQAFTEE
EZHEZEREREZN A
93,087,000/ 7T °

WS ERIZERFEFE S
2

=

BAEREBD T ALREEHRE
1y 7K 4F [ E5 48 499,102,000 785
T(TEEHEEREKE) -
HEHBEHR2014FE4 818
ER - BIRFERAFELE
¥ 75 B 1B 4 5 216,720,000 7%
T AEEEERAZE [
ZIBFREAHEEEBRTF
{EEEANBZBOES - WA
fEEERIREEE Sz 2EE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
N R R EaY N EES

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #;Z=2016F3 831 H I &

(i) Disposal of Billion Source group (i) HEBillion SourceffE

On 9 April 2015, the Group has entered into a conditional
sale and purchase agreement with the purchaser Mr. Pan
Guohua* (EBIZESLA), an independent third party in
respect of the sale 100% equity share of Billion Source
Investments Limited (which has two subsidiaries company,
Silver Epoch Investments Limited and Value Brilliant
Investments Limited, investment holdings companies,
and one indirect wholly owned subsidiary, Siping Ju Neng
Medicine Industry Co, Ltd.* (W FEREEEFRAR),
a company engaged in manufacturing and sale of
pharmaceutical products in the PRC) (“Billion Sourse
group”) at a consideration of RMB30,000,000. (For
details, please refer to the announcements dated 15
April 2015 and 12 June 2015, and the circular dated on
18 May 2015). The disposal of the PRC pharmaceutical
business was subsequently completed on 12 June 2015
and the consideration as determined on that date at
approximately HK$37,902,000.

M2015F4A9R - REEEFIE
=77 B 5 & B EE & A 5 H EBillion
Source Investments Limited
(EEERmEAKREREEROM
B A 7] Silver Epoch Investments
Limited %2 Value Brilliant Investments
Limited * WE# & & % A £+
NEEREERFEENNE R A
mMFEfEEARRAR)([Billion
Sourcef & |) AU 100% %4 + 5137
ERMHEERZE  REAARKE
30,000,0007T ° (FFBER2HAHA
2015 4 H15H & 2015F 6 A12H
Z Ak AEA2015F58188 2
FEK) o HERBHEEREBEER
2015F6 A12A /K - MAEBRZ
HE T A&%)37,902,000/ 7T °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
N R R EaY N EES

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z201653 A31H I F &

38.(LOSS)/GAIN ON DISPOSAL OF 38. HEMBL A (&), W
SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) (&)
(i) Disposal of Billion Source group (continued) (i) HEBillion Sourcef
(%)
The net assets of subsidiaries at the date of disposal were REEHHZENBRARICEEF
as follows: BEmT :
HK$'000
FABT
Consideration received BERE 37,902
Net assets disposed of: EHEEETHE :
Property, plant and equipment M - BE KRS (50,253)
Prepaid lease payment B EFKRIE (3,873)
Inventories FE (1,545)
Trade and other receivables B 5 K& H At fE Y AR X (15,376)
Bank balances and cash RITHERRIRE (1,577)
Trade and other payables 2 5 RHME IR 5,129
Bank borrowings RITEE 55,590
25,997
Release of translation reserve R 2 FE N R 28,496
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEME AR 54,493
Satisfied by: BTRH AR
Cash EHET 37,902
Net cash flow from disposal: HESE REREFE -
Cash consideration WEREB 37,902
Bank balances and cash disposal EHERITEMRER S (1,577)
36,325
For the period from 1 April 2015 to the date of disposal, R2015F4R1BEHESHEHE -
the above subsidiaries were engaged in manufacturing LB ARRARENERER
and sale of pharmaceutical products in the PRC. HEEMELK - ZEWBARE
The revenue contributed by the subsidiaries were Bk B I 2 %9 653,000 % 7T K & 18
approximately HK$653,000 and loss of approximately #74,382,0008 TE R A& E & =
HK$4,382,000 has recognised in the Group's loss for the 20163 A31HIEFEREERRNRE
year ended 31 March 2016. e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

are MR R MY AT

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z201653 A31H I F &

38.(LOSS)/GAIN ON DISPOSAL OF 38. 4
SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) (%
(ii) Disposal of High Legend group (ii)

In August 2015, the Group has disposed 100% equity
share of High Legend International Limited (which has
one subsidiary company fMNBEZEHRERERAA, a
company engaged in running a patisserie coffee shop
in the PRC) (“High Legend group”) at a consideration
of RMB1,300,000. The disposal of the PRC coffee
shop was subsequently completed on 13 August 2015
and the consideration as determined on that date at
approximately HK$1,572,000.

The net assets of subsidiaries at the date of disposal were

as follows:

iji

T

~—

/

EMEB AR (B1R), s

HEZREREE
2015588 - AEED HELRK
BERARAR (EHEE —HNEA
AMMEEEREERRAF(—
B B R AR R 2
A ([ RREREE]) M2 MK
- RE R/ ARH1,300,0007T °
& B PNk S K& 70201548 A
BEZEK KERZBEBERD
1,572,000 7T °

RHEBMZEMBRARZEEF
BT :

HK$'000
FHTT
Consideration received B E
Net assets disposed of: EHEEEFE : 1,572
Property, plant and equipment M - WE & (166)
Inventories FE (14)
Bank balances and cash RITAESREIRE (1,359)
Trade and other payables 2 5 RHEAM R 5
38
Release of translation reserve BRBR 2 E H (88)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEMEAREE (50)
Satisfied by: BRI AZAM
Cash He 1,572
Net cash flow from disposal: HEEBEZHEGTEFE
Cash consideration RENRE 1,572
Bank balances and cash disposal EHRERITERKIIR S (1,359)
213
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANC
N R R EaY N EES

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z201653 A31H I F &

IAL STATEMENTS

38.(LOSS)/GAIN ON DISPOSAL OF 38 WEMB AR (EE), W
SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) (%8)
(ii) Disposal of High Legend group (continued) (i) HERKRBEIRER(E)
For the period from 1 April 2015 to the date of disposal, R2015F4 1 BEEZHE BB

the above subsidiaries were engaged in running
a patisserie coffee shop in the PRC. The revenue
contributed by the subsidiaries were approximately
HK$123,000 and loss of approximately HK$72,000 has
recognised in the Group's loss for the year ended 31
March 2016.

(iii) Disposal of It REBRIRZAER AT (iii)

On 28 December 2015, the Group has entered into a sale

and purchase agreement with the purchaser It RIIEFEE

‘AR 2AA] an independent third party in respect of the

sale of 100% share equity of It REBEIRZANERAF at

a consideration of approximately HK$120,000. 3t 1A @£

B AR AR is inactive in the PRC. The disposal of it

REBE B AR AR was completed on 4 March 2016.

The net assets of subsidiary at the date of disposal were
as follows:

o EfBRARERBRKEEE
NALZEMNBETE - ZEWB AR E
A B Uk 25 %9 123,000 7T & &5 18 49
72,0007 T E R AN EE A = 20164F
A3 FENBEAER -

HELXREBERARZHAER
YN

R2015% 128288 » AEEEE )
ItrmEEeRERAG(BLE=
) EE R ERERZRNER
NAN00%HE - I —HE B W
&% RIE%A120,0008 7T ° bR
EREIRZRABRAGTNFRHE =
*7% o HEILLREREIRFERAER
ARIER2016%F3 4B 5T °

RHEBMZEMBRARZEEF
BT :

HK$'000
FAT
Consideration received BRE 120
Net assets disposed of: EHEEETE
Property, plant and equipment YIZE - R E Rk (87)
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRRIRS (33)
Gain on disposal of subsidiary HEWB AR 2 e =
Satisfied by: BZTRH AR
Cash Re 120
Net cash flow from disposal: HESHE2HSREFE -
Cash consideration BeRE 120
Bank balances and cash disposal EHERTEBRKEE S (33)
87
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z201653 A31H I F &

38. (LOSS)/GAIN ON DISPOSAL OF 38. HEMB AT (EE) WS
SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) (%)
(iii) Disposal of It REB IR ZHAER AT

(iii) HEX REBRIEZHAER
(continued)

For the period from 1 April 2015 to the date of disposal,
the above subsidiary was inactive in the PRC. The revenue
contributed by the subsidiary was approximately HK$Nil and
profit of approximately HK$Nil has recognised in the Group's
loss for the year ended 31 March 2016.

(iv) Disposal of Guangzhou Shi An Ye

On 18 January 2016, the Group has entered into a sale
and purchase agreement with the purchaser B/ E%Z
R EZERAMR AT, an independent third party in respect
of the sale of 100% share equity of Guangzhou Shi An Ye
at a consideration of approximately HK$12,027,000.
Guangzhou Shi An Ye is majority engaging in business
services in the PRC. The disposal of Guangzhou Shi An Ye
was completed on 1 March 2016.

The net assets of subsidiary at the date of disposal were
as follows:

ANE (&)

R2015F4 1 BHEEEEEAHIE
Bif - FaifE AR NP RE =
%o MBARERMMKRENATE
TREFMHOZEBFTERAEEEHE
2016%F 3 A31H L FERHEE AR

27
e ©

(iv) HEEMm R

R2016F1A18H » AEBEEE
EMNTMELZREERER AT (B
VYE=ZF)REEEMNTELEZ
100% BRI EE e - RELD
£12,027,0008 7T - BM L ZEE
BHERBEMEEBRS - HEEM
MZEER2016F381HEK °

RHEBMZEMBRARIZEEF
(ERUNNE

HK$'000
FET
Consideration received BRRE 12,027
Net assets disposed of: EHREEEFE :
Trade and other receivables B 5 R H A FE W AR (11,906)
Bank balances and cash RITHEBR RIS (96)
Gain on disposal of subsidiary HEMB AR 2 W 25
Satisfied by: BRI AZA
Cash HE 12,027
Net cash flow from disposal: HESE RESREFE :
Cash consideration HENRE 12,027
Bank balances and cash disposal EHERTEBRREE S (96)
11,931
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 & Z201653 A31H I F&E

38. (LOSS)/GAIN ON DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

(iv) Disposal of Guangzhou Shi An Ye

(v)

(continued)

For the period from 1 April 2015 to the date of disposal,
the above subsidiary was engages in general consultancy
services in the PRC. The revenue contributed by the
subsidiary was approximately HK$Nil and loss of
approximately HK$1,000 has recognised in the Group's
loss for the year ended 31 March 2016.

Disposal of Infinite Nature group

On 25 March 2015, the Group has entered into a
conditional sale and purchase agreement with the
purchaser Mr. Tan Shaliang, an independent third party in
respect of the sale of 100% share equity of Infinite Nature
Limited and its subsidiaries (“Infinite Nature group”) at a
consideration of HK$1,000,000. The Infinite Nature group
is majority engaging in iron mining business in Mongolia.
(For details, please refer to the announcement dated 25
March 2015). The disposal of the Mongolia iron mining
business was subsequently completed on 31 March 2015.
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38. thEME AR (B1R) s

(%8

ne=

)

(iv) HEREMNH X (E)

(v)

R2015F4 1 BEEESEEAHIE
B - EHift B AR R R B ELR
SRR - B AR 5 A KaE
HARZTBITREEL1,0008TE
NAEBE Z 20165331 IEF
EREERER -

H EInfinite Nature £ E
R201553 250 @+ NEEEE T
BAOREE(BIE=ZF)%LE
Infinite Nature Limited & £ M B A
Al([Infinite Nature5% & |)#100%
Rz ST BIRTEEE R
X {8 & 1,000,000 /& JT ° Infinite
Nature S Bl F ERNT H A SRR
7% o (F1BEB2MEHA201543A4
2582 ) o HESHEBEER
BE&F2015F3 A31 B M °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z201653 A31H I F &

38. (LOSS)/GAIN ON DISPOSAL OF

38. EEE PN (E18), e

SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) (&)

(v) Disposal of Infinite Nature group (v)

(continued)
The net assets of subsidiaries at the date of disposal were

H € Infinite Nature & B
(48)

RHEEBRMZEMBRARIZEEF

as follows: (LN
HK$'000
FHET
Consideration received BERRE 1,000
Net assets disposed of: EHEEETHE :
Property, plant and equipment M - BE KR (140)
Trade and other receivables B 5 & H At FEU R TR (100)
Bank balances and cash RITABR LIRS (11)
Trade and other payables B 5 RE A FERBRK 1,437
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries & BB A R as 2,186
Satisfied by: BRI AT
Cash T4 1,000
Net cash flow from disposal: HEFHEZ A REFE
Cash consideration HERE 1,000
Bank balances and cash disposal EHRERITERKIRE (11)
989

For the period from 1 April 2014 to the date of disposal,
the above subsidiaries were engages in iron mining
business in Mongolia. The revenue contributed by
the subsidiaries were approximately HK$Nil and loss
of approximately HK$1,109,000 has recognised in the
Group's loss for the year ended 31 March 2015.

R2014F4R 1 BHEHESHBEHEIE
B - FiiftB AR SR H R EE
B - BRAREBMKELN A
T T M E518 491,109,000/ 7L E A
ANEEFHE2015F3A31MBIEFE
B ES18 A RERR o
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z201653 A31H I F &

39.RESERVES 39. f#E#E

Details of the movements of the Group's reserves are set out in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 58.

Details of the movements of the Company's reserves are set
out in note 45 to the consolidated financial statements.

40. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

A G R DR R ESSE 25
RERBE -

o)

ANRIREESHF BN TS A HRE
BiaE4S -

40, 48 & FH 4 PR

The Group as lessee FEBEREEA
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET
Within one year 18 AR 3,606 5,645
In the second to fifth years inclusive MRE2ZFSF(BEEREME) 1,220 3,624
4,826 9,269

A lease is negotiated for remaining 3 year and rentals are fixed
throughout the lease term.

41. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 41.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the
following capital commitments:

HOBERKTIF MEHRARZES
B °

B AR
REEIR - AEEA THEARE -

2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT T

Contracted but not provided for: EEFEESETE
acquisition of equity interest W s AR - 33,003
acquisition of subsidiaries U B BT B R &) - 2,539
acquisition of investment properties WIS B 65,296 168,916
acquisition of fixed assets W EE & E - 6,199
65,296 210,657

190 AsiaResources Holdings Limited ZEM EIRIERR AR 2 ]




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

=

e PSRRI

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z201653 A31H I F &

42.

43.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The Group’s qualifying employees in Hong Kong participate in
the Mandatory Provident Fund (the “MPF") in Hong Kong. The
assets of the MPF are held separately from those of the Group
in funds under the control of trustee. The Group and each of
the employees make monthly mandatory contributions to the
MPF scheme.

The employees of the PRC subsidiaries are members of
the state-managed retirement benefits scheme operated
by the PRC government. The PRC subsidiaries are required
to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll to the
retirement benefits scheme to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement benefits
scheme is to make the required contributions under the
scheme.

The total expense recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income of approximately HK$221,000 (2015:
HK$186,000) represents contributions payable to these plans
by the Group at rates specified in the rules of the plans.

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, which
are related parties of the Company, have been eliminated
on consolidation and are not disclosed in this note. Save as
disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements,
details of transactions between the Group and other related
parties are disclosed below.

Compensation of key management personnel
The remuneration of key management personnel during the

year was as follows:

42.

43.

EAREF T S
AEENEBZAAREESREBY
BHEAES ((BEL]) - WS E
ERAREZAENRE  BEEA
ZHZEGER - ARBREUERS
RRHIER T RE S -

FEIMEB AR BB IR ERARY Z
BRERRKEMNEIKE - - EH B
REVAMERRENGIENEHFEET
Bt 2R MERERAZES -
AEBMERARBHNGEZHE-—RERM
AHEIEH PR K -

FERHKNERARABLLRZAN
221,000 7% 7T ( 20154 : #J 186,000 /&
TL) - A BEIRETEIRBIEE < th X fE
BN R BT 8 2K o

BEEEALRS

ARmEEK B AR (RFARE L
BADIRZRZERGAREE - B
BRAKERE - BRSHEMB@RE
HibEEPAMEESN - AR EEE RS
BATHRZZRSHBRENOT °

TEEE AR ZHM
REBRABRFAZFHMAOT :

2016 2015

HK$'000 HK$'000

F&ET AT

Short-term benefits GHBtE A 284 5,700
Retirement benefit scheme RIREANET S 92 90
Share-based payment expenses VAR AR 2 A5 32 30,640 25,203
31,016 30,993
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #;Z=2016F3 831 H I &

RBERR  AEEZEBMEBAAF

Details of the Group’s material subsidiaries at the end of the

reporting period are as follows.

BT -

Class of Fully paid  Proportion of nominal
Place of shares/ share capital/  value of paid capital/
incorporation/ registered registered registered capital
Name of subsidiaries operation capital held capital  held by the Company Principal activities
MR,/ iR/ BRRE/ ARRIBEZBRRE/
MELAREE - EMERER dmER dMEAEELH FTERH
Directly  Indirectly
E# %
Asia Financial Holdings Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 - 100% Money lending
(Hong Kong) Limited B ERER 10,000/ 7T &
TNeREE(EE)BRAR
Land Ace Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 - 100%  Gold trading
ERARAT &b LRk 18T 5585
Man Lee Management Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 - 100% Management services
Limited B =il 28T and securities
ENERBERRA trading
ERREREFES
PT. Dampar Golden Indonesia Ordinary US$250,000 - 60%  Refine and sell iron
International Hfe LB 250,000 7T sand exploited
BRREEERRZ
#y
PT. Damper International British Virgin -~ Ordinary US$100 - 100%  Trading of iron sand
Limited Islands LR 100%7C HYES
RERLES
Senco Investment Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 - 100%  Management services
AZREBRAH B EER 18T BEERYE
SNCEEECF) The PRC Registered RMB60,000,000 - 100%  Investment holding
BB AT (note a) HE Eal] AK 860,000,000 REEKR
SHEREE(RY)
BRAR(Hita)
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #;Z=2016F3 831 H I &

Name of subsidiaries

MEARER

ERHEEETECR)
BRAT (note a)
EREEEEECRI)
BRAR(Hizta)

AEEIMEH
BERAA (note a)
RNERMERBRAR

(Hizta)

nMEREHBRAR
(note a)

mMEEESER A
(Hiita)

B S @ACR)
BB A7 (note a)
BRESBACKY)
BRAR(HZa)

WETAEETNESE
ZERBRAF (note a)

METALSETNE %
¥RERDA(Mia)

Place of
incorporation/
operation
L
Bep

The PRC
PE

The PRC
PE

The PRC
PE

The PRC
E

The PRC
E

The PRC
PE

Class of
shares/
registered
capital held
iR/
i fEFER

Registered
it

Registered
Bl

Registered
wfi

Registered
afit

Registered
Eal]

Registered
A

Fully paid
share capital/
registered
capital
BRRE/
afER

RMB6,000,000
AE#6,000,0007C

HK$205,000,000
205,000,000/ 7

RMB 15,000,000
AR H15,000,0007C

RMB3,000,000
AE%3,000,0007T

US$2,000,000
2,000,000 7

RMB3,000,000
AK#3,000,0007C

Proportion of nominal
value of paid capital/
registered capital

held by the Company

RAAREZHRRER/
AMEREELA

Directly  Indirectly
EE %
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%

Principal activities

TEEHK

Investment holding

REEK

Property development

NEERE

Dormant
ﬁﬂ AA%

Investment holding

RERR

Dormant
g

Property investment

VESE
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 & Z201653 A31H I F&E

44 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)

44 B R AR (E)

Class of Fully paid  Proportion of nominal
Place of shares/ share capital/  value of paid capital/
incorporation/ registered registered registered capital
Name of subsidiaries operation capital held capital  held by the Company Principal activities
G iR,/ BRRE/ ARRIBEZBRRE/
MEQE A Repy &SRR AfER AMEFEELA TERH
Directly  Indirectly
=8 G
TR E EL %R The PRC Registered RMB1,000,000 - 100% Investment holding
BB A7 (note a) i i AK%1,000,0007T RERR
AERR ERER
BRAR(Hta)
A EE £ R The PRC Registered RMB1,000,000 - 100%  Property investment
BB A7 (note a) i M AR#1,000,0007C NERE
ALK EERER
BRAR(Hita)
FTERTEEERE The PRC Registered RMB1,000,000 - 100%  Dormant
BB AT (note a) e Eal] ARH1,000,0007C TEex
MITRRTEXERE
BRAR(Hita)
AR EREELE The PRC Registered RMB5,000,000 - 100%  Dormant
BB AT (note a) H it AKHS5,000,0007C TEeX
RREREXER
BRAR(Hita)
YRR E A The PRC Registered HK$10,000,000 - 100%  Dormant
BB AT (note a) i ff 10,000,000/ 7 TEER
AR B
BRAR(Hita)
AR R R The PRC Registered RMB100,000 - 100%  Investment Holding
BB AT (note a) i i AR%100,00070 REER
A BB R & %R
BRAT(Hita)
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #;Z=2016F3 831 H I &

Class of Fully paid
Place of shares/ share capital/
incorporation/ registered registered
Name of subsidiaries operation capital held capital
EMRL/ FrismRe,/ BRRE/
MEQE A g S ERER aER
Longxinchang (note a) The PRC Registered RMB1,000,000
BME (Hita) hE i AK%1,000,0007T
BIERES OFRI) The PRC Registered RMB100,000,000
ARRH (note a) il EEai AR #100,000,0007C
SMEIRES ORYI)
BRAR(Kita)
SMNERRERE(RY) The PRC Registered US$30,000,000
BB (note a) e ) 30,000,000% 7%
SNERRERECRI)
BRAR(Ha)
Note:
(@) The subsidiary was an indirectly wholly foreign owner enterprises

established in the PRC.

Proportion of nominal
value of paid capital/
registered capital
held by the Company

RREAREZARRE/
&R LA

Directly  Indirectly
EB 3
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%

Kt

Principal activities

IR

Investment, provision
of investment
advisory, information
advisory and
investment
management service
and domestic trade

B8 REREER

EEERLRARE
REARTIE 5

Dormant
e
EmEx

Dormant
P
g

@) ZHMBARANRTEKYZREEIIMIBED
S
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
N R R EaY N EES

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #;Z=2016F3 831 H I &

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding
at the end of the year, or at any time during the year.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group, which in
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the result or
assets of the Group. To give the details of other subsidiaries
would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of
excessive lengths.

The table below shows details of non-wholly owned subsidiary
of the Group that have material non-controlling interests:

Proportion of ownership
Place of interest and voting rights

incorporation/  held by non-controlling

Name of subsidiary operation interest
AR, FEREBFBELZ
WEAREH REhE BEREERRERE
2016 2015
% %
PT. Damper
Golden International Indonesia
ge 40 45

Summarised financial information in respect of each of the
Group's subsidiary that has material non-controlling interests
is set out below. The summarised financial information below
represents amounts before intragroup eliminations.

Asia Resources Holdings Limited 351 & RIZHA R A A

Loss allocated to non-
controlling interest

HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TAT FERT TAT

RERIFAETMER - MHERRGE
EREREZERHES -

EERR/LERIMZAKEZHE AR
HBARBEZRXENEEREEFE - &
ERRBINEMHBRARAZFEEER
fEENITR °

TREIAEEFEA LR ES 2R
BMBRRIZFHIE

Accumulated non-
controlling interests

FERER Rt
i3 i FERE
2016 2015 2016 2015

HK$'000 HK$'000

2,945 87,088 (8,168) 8,682

BARARE S REAERNIERE R 2 M
BRARZHBERBMEBEINGT - AT
MBERBMERREEANLHA 2 28
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z201653 A31H I F &

44 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

(CONTINUED)

PT. Damper Golden International

44. {98 A A]

PT. Damper Golden

International

5 (&)

2016 2015

HK$’000 HK$'000

F&T TET

Current assets MENEE 1,565 5014

Non-current assets ERBNEE 4,045 39,380

Current liabilities mEaE 26,030 25,100

Non-current liabilities ERBEE - -
Equity attributable to owners RARER NEIEHER

of the Company (12,252) 10,612

Non-controlling interest FEFERR M A (8,168) 8,682
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z201653 A31H I F &

44 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)

PT. Damper Golden International (continued)

44 B R RlFEIE ()

PT. Damper Golden

International (#&)

2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$’'000
THERT FHBT
Revenue WA - =
Expenses 53 (7,125) (193,531)
Loss for the year REFBE (7,125) (193,531)
Loss attributable to the owners of the RRARES ANELEE
Company (4,180) (106,443)
Loss attributable to non-controlling PR R G 5 1R
interest (2,945) (87,088)
Loss for the year REFEE (7,125) (193,531)
Other comprehensive income attributable ZRQR#EA AEEZ
to the owners of the Company H2EK s 53 973
Other comprehensive (expense)/income JEFESE R B 2
attributable to non-controlling interest HEHth2mE (M%) W (174) 794
Other comprehensive (expense)/income  H#i2E (B ), Mz (121) 1,767
Total comprehensive expense attributable ANAFI#EAG AENZ
to the owners of the Company ERS L (4,127) (105,470)
Total comprehensive expense attributable JFiEIEREZSFE(S &
to non-controlling interest 2HEMAZ 285 (3,119) (86,294)
Total comprehensive expense 2HEFX 4% (7,246) (191,764)
Net cash outflow from REEEXB 2 RERLFHE
operating activities (438) (1,382)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from KEEZELEZ
investing activities BemnA/ ORt)FHE 54 (65)
Net cash outflow from REFBMEEE RS ML FE
financing activities (78) -
(462) (1,447)

198 AsiaResources Holdings Limited ZEM EIRIERR AR 2 ]




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

are MR R MY AT

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z201653 A31H I F &

45. SUMMARISED STATEMENT OF

45, AR F) 2 BN R A K

FINANCIAL POSITION INFORMATION OF 2]
THE COMPANY
Summarised statement of financial position information of the AN A B R & HI R 2 B 7S AR O 3R B L
Company at the end of the reporting period includes: EAFE
2016 2015
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
{23 FET FET
Non-current assets FRBEE
Interests in subsidiaries T NG 106,500 106,500
106,500 106,500
Current assets REEE
Prepayments, deposits and other TEfRIE - e R
receivables H i e I BR 3R 707 707
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE U BT /B 2 | 5K I8 1,277,341 1,068,017
Bank balances and cash RITHEHREIE S 8,476 209,489
1,286,524 1,278,213
Current liabilities RBERE
Trade payables B 5 BRI 154 -
Amounts due to subsidiaries FETHT B A B FkIE 121,269 36,235
Other payables and accruals E A E BRI FERT
b= 9= 712,428 348,899
Convertible notes Al IRRR =K 9,646 =
843,497 385,134
Net current assets REEEEE 443,027 893,079
Total assets less current liabilities HWEERREBARE 549,527 999,579
Capital and reserves EXREE
Share capital A% AR 33 1,335,923 694,848
Reserves G 45 (974,844) 75,442
361,079 770,290
Non-current liabilities FRBERE
Convertible bonds Al RRRES 188,448 229,289
549,527 999,579
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #;Z=2016F3 831 H I &

Summarised statement of financial position information of RATRIBEH KR 7 BB R R TR
the Company at the end of the reporting period includes: SaE: (8)
(continued)

Loss of the Company for the current year amounted to AABRAEE 7 BB 51,550,371
approximately HK$1,550,371 (2015: HK$395,639,000). JL(20154F : #9395,639,0005% 7T o

The financial statements were approved and authorised for BB RENR2016F6A 248K EES
issue by the Board of Directors on 24 June 2016 and signed on HES R WHTIALTRERS
its behalf by: 2T

Mr. Huang Yilin Mr. Chan Shi Yin, Keith
BRMEE REBELE
Director Director
EF EF
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z201653 A31H I F &

45. SUMMARISED STATEMENT OF A5, R B2 Bk R B rHE

FINANCIAL POSITION INFORMATION OF B(4E)
THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)
Convertible Share-base
Share Share notesfhonds ~ Capital  payment Exchange  General Accumulated
capital  premium  reserve  reserve  reseve  reserve  reserve losses Total
T8k
2/ WA
Ba  REBE EEEE  RABE XNEE  ERBE  -RRE  EiEE g
HKF000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKF000  HKS000
Thn  Tér  TEr  TEr TR TEr  TEr  TEr  Thn
At 1 April 2014 ROUEAIR 3204619 1,060,328 48239 198,350 591 2 180030 (1134789 752,785
Loss for the year TEEBR = = = = = = - 395639 (395639)
Total comprehensive expenses for theyear  AEE2E R A = = = = = = - (95639 (395639)
Recognition of convertible notes into shares BT AREEER AR = = 18,091 = = = = - 18,091
Conversion of convertible notes into shares (AR EEH AR 28744 1583 (59120 = = = = - 354
Lapse of share option BRERH = = = = (116) = = 116 =
Equity settled share-based transactions NEREENRABEE %5 - - - - UM - - - UM
Issue ordinary shares upon exercise fIREREAETERR
of share options 1425 2074 - - (1.495) - - - 2008
At31 March 2015 and 1 April 2015 ROSE3AIIAR
WI5ELR1H 094848 1,188,237 1210 198350 31900 a0 180030 (1530312 770,290
Loss for the year rEEER - - - - - - - (155037 (1.550,37)
Total comprehensive expenses for theyear — AEF2ER AR = = = = = = - (1550371 (1.550371)
Recognition of convertible notes/bonds TNEREE/
into shares ErEnaRh - - 1199 - - - - - 119993
Conversion of convertiole notes/bonds TARZE/ BHERERD
into shares 25000 200,200 (54.312) - - - - - 30889
Lapse of share option BRELH = = = - (10,259) = - 10,255 -
Equity settled share-based transactions NESEENRNBER I = = = = 35,564 = = - 3,564
Issue ordinary shares upon exercise of TERRERRTERR
share options 8575 4,602 - - (10,102) - - - 3115
Placing of shares RERR 85,000 57,800 - - - - - - 142800
Share subscription K3 WS 146300 = = = = = - 478800
At 31 March 2016 R2016%E3A31A 133923 1,597,179 1260 196,350 47107 i) 180030 (3070428 361,079
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #;Z=2016F3 831 H I &

The directors did not recommend the payment of any dividend
for the year ended 31 March 2016 (2015: Nil).

As announced on 25 March 2015, on 25 February 2015 over 150
employees of Siping Ju Neng Medicine filed two claims against
Siping Ju Neng Medicine Industry Co. Ltd. (a subsidiary engaged
in manufacture and sale of pharmaceutical products) in the
Arbitration Court of the Siping City Labour Human Resources
Disputes Arbitration Commission respectively (“Arbitration
Claims”) for wages and benefit compensation in the sum totaling
approximately of RMB26,400,000. As at 31 March 2015, the
outcome of the Arbitration Claims is uncertain. Save for Siping
Ju Neng Medicine Industry Co. Ltd., the Group did not have any
significant contingent liabilities at as 31 March 2015. Subsequently,
the pharmaceutical business was disposed on 12 June 2015.

(@) The disposal of 100% equity interest of Longxinchang and
the sale loan was completed in April 2016.

(b) The Group entered into a share transfer agreement in
April 2016 to dispose 100% equity interest of EIIFE
IREZEZERABR AT and the sale loan at a consideration
of RMB41,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$49,200,000). The disposal was subsequently
completed on 25 April 2016.

During the years ended 31 March 2016 and 2015, there was
no non-cash transaction relating to investing and financing
activities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #;Z=2016F3 831 H I &

Certain comparative amounts have been reclassified to
conform with the current year's presentation.

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on 24 June 2016.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

B #5422

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z201653 A31H I F &

Year ended 31 March

HE3A31BLEE
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHIT FHT THT FHT TEx
(Restated)
(=E5)
Results £
Revenue A 113,586 111,957 18,189 (3,560) 4,454
Loss before tax BRERTEE (155,374) (199,320) (349,981) (209,686)  (141,211)
Tax charge MEX (202) - (114) (368) (1,664)
Loss for the year from AEERHELKE
continuing operations X% ER (155,576)  (199,320)  (350,095)  (210,054)  (142,875)
Profit/(loss) for the year from AEEBRIEERZ
discontinued operations w5 (EE) = = (18,966) (35,248) 50,111
Loss for the year AEEBE (155,576) (199,320) (369,061) (245,302) (92,764)
Attributable to: FEf
Equity holders of the RRAESFHAA
Company (154,276) (197,967) (207,068) (157,152) (76,205)
Minority interests DERFEER (1,300) (1,353) (161,993) (88,150) (16,559)
(155,576) (199,320) (369,061) (245,302) (92,764)
As at 31 March
M3A31H
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT FET FHT TER
Assets and liabilities BERER
Total assets BEHRE 998,681 849,351 1,007,677 1,663,281 2,560,721
Total liabilities LA (282,855) (331,766) (90,526) (573,910)  (520,853)
Shareholders’ funds REE S 715,826 517,585 917,151 1,089,371 2,039,868
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